
BR/04/03/02 

London Borough of Barking and Dagenham 
 

Notice of Meeting 
 

THE EXECUTIVE 
 

Tuesday, 28 June 2005 - 7:00 pm 
Council Chamber, Civic Centre, Dagenham 

 
Members: Councillor C J Fairbrass (Chair); Councillor T G W Wade (Deputy 
Chair); Councillor J L Alexander, Councillor G J Bramley, Councillor H J Collins, 
Councillor C Geddes, Councillor S Kallar, Councillor M A McCarthy, Councillor M E 
McKenzie and Councillor L A Smith 
 
Declaration of Members Interest: In accordance with Article 1, Paragraph 12 of the 
Constitution, Members are asked to declare any direct/indirect financial or other 
interest they may have in any matter which is to be considered at this meeting  
 
 
17.6.05     R. A. Whiteman 
        Chief Executive 
 
 

Contact Officer Barry Ray 
Tel. 020 8227 2134 
Fax: 020 8227 2171 

Minicom: 020 8227 2685 
E-mail: barry.ray@lbbd.gov.uk 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Apologies for Absence   
 
2. Minutes - To confirm as correct the minutes of the meeting held on 

21 June 2005 (to follow)   
 
Business Items  

 
Public Items 3 to 6 and Private Items 16 to 20 are business items.  The Chair will 
move that these be agreed without discussion, unless any Member asks to raise a 
specific point. 
 
Any discussion of a Private Business Item will take place after the exclusion of the 
public and press.  

 
3. Implementing E-government Statement (IEG) (Pages 1 - 33)  
 
4. Feedback on Anglo German Medical Society Medical Conference 4 July - 

1 August 2004 and Consent for Involvement in the Conference from 
15 - 17 July 2005 (Pages 35 - 39)  

 



BR/04/03/02 

5. Planning Delivery Grant 2005 / 2006 (Pages 41 - 49)  
 
6. Cleaning Up the Borough (to follow)   
 
Discussion Items  

 
7. London Road / North Street and Lintons / Station Quarter Master Plans 

Update - Barking Town Centre (Pages 51 - 67)  
 
8. Barking and Havering Local Improvement Finance Trust (NHS LIFT) - 

Level of Involvement (Pages 69 - 76)  
 
9. Supporting People Five Year Strategy 2005 / 2010 (Pages 77 - 93)  
 
 Appendix 4 – The Supporting People Strategy will be circulated to all Executive 

Members.  The Strategy will also be available in the Members’ Rooms, via the 
Internet and in public Libraries  
 

10. Barking and Dagenham Sustainable Energy Strategy (Pages 95 - 101)  
 
11. Any other public items which the Chair decides are urgent   
 
12. To consider whether it would be appropriate to pass a resolution to 

exclude the public and press from the remainder of the meeting due to 
the nature of the business to be transacted.   

 
Private Business 

 
The public and press have a legal right to attend Council meetings such as the 
Executive, except where business is confidential or certain other sensitive 
information is to be discussed.  The list below shows why items are in the private 
part of the agenda, with reference to the relevant legislation (the relevant 
paragraph of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972).  

 
Discussion Items  

 
13. Children's Services Inspections (Restricted Report, circulated separately)  
 
 The contents of this report are embargoed by the Commission for Social Care 

Inspection, in accordance with the Council’s Constitution (Part B, Article 14, 
paragraph 10.1) until after 28 June 2005.  Copies of this report will be 
circulated to all Members and be available on the Internet after this date.  
 

14. Development of Barking Town Square - Acquisition of Properties and 
Authority to Use Compulsory Purchase Order Powers (Pages 103 - 109)  

 
 Concerns a Contractual Matter (paragraphs 7 and 8) 

 
Appendices 2 and 3 to be circulated separately  
 



BR/04/03/02 

15. Term Contract for the Provision of Additional and Alternative Options for 
the Payment of Local Revenues and General Income (Pages 111 - 115)  

 
 Concerns a Contractual Matter (paragraph 8)  

 
Business Items  

 
16. Award of Supply of Cleaning, First Aid and Protective Items Report 

Cleaning Materials Term Contract - Tender (Pages 117 - 123)  
 
 Concerns a Contractual Matter (paragraphs 7, 8 and 9)  

 
17. Construction Related Framework Agreements - The Way Forward (Pages 

125 - 143)  
 
 Concerns a Contractual Matter (paragraphs 7 and 9)  

 
18. Becontree Primary School - Children's Centre Development with 

Associated Community Facilities, Car Parking and Landscaping (Pages 
145 - 148)  

 
 Concerns a Contractual Matter (paragraphs 7 and 9)  

 
19. Gascoigne Ward - Development of Children's Centre at Gascoigne 

Primary School and Gascoigne Community Hall (Pages 149 - 152)  
 
 Concerns a Contractual Matter (paragraphs 7 and 9)  

 
20. Any other confidential or exempt items which the Chair decides are 

urgent   
 



This page is intentionally left blank



THE EXECUTIVE 
 

28 JUNE 2005 
 

REPORT FROM THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
IMPLEMENTING E-GOVERNMENT STATEMENT (IEG) FOR DECISION 

 
The Executive is asked to consider the submission of the IEG Statement (4.5) as being a 
reflection of the Councils progress and future projected development of the implementation of 
“e” services across the Council.  The Statement has to be agreed at the Executive level, prior 
to submission to the Office of the Deputy Prime Minister (ODPM) to ensure corporate 
approval. 
 
Summary 
 
This report sets out the Council’s expected position at July 2005 in meeting e-government 
targets set out by the ODPM in July 2004 as ‘Priority Outcomes’.   
 
Further reports to Executive in November 2005 and March 2006 will identify progress against 
the priority outcomes and BVPI157. 
 
Wards Affected: All 
 
Recommendations 
 
The Executive is asked to: 
 
1. Agree submission of IEG Statement (4.5) to the ODPM by 18 July 2005; with any final 

amendments prior to submission to be delegated to the Director of Finance; and 
 
2. Note current corporate position in achieving 100% of providing services electronically 

(BVPI 157) as being defined as 72% currently. 
 
Reasons 
 
To achieve the government’s performance indicator of 100% of council services (where 
practicable) to be accessible electronically by April 2006. 
 
Contact: 
Sarah Bryant 

 
Head of Information 
Management and 
Technology 

 
Tel: 020 8227 2015 
Fax: 020 8227 2060 
Minicom: 020 8227 2685 
E-mail: sarah.bryant@lbbd.gov.uk 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM 3

Page 1



1. Background 
 
1.1 The Government has set a performance indicator of 100% of council services (where 

practicable) to be accessible electronically by April 2005 (BVPI 157).  Since 2001 / 
2002 councils have received a total of £850,000 in successive Implementing Electronic 
Government (IEG) grants to help to achieving this target. 

 
1.2 On 29 April 2004, the ODPM published a list of Required, Good and Excellent Priority 

Outcomes which formed the basis for eligibility to IEG funding in 2004 / 2005 and 2005 
/ 2006 totaling £500,000 (£350,000 and £150,000 respectively).  The list of ‘Excellent’ 
outcomes is only relevant to those authorities which have substantially completed the 
process of e-enabling their services and are not sufficiently challenged by the 
‘Required’ and ‘Good’ lists:  Barking and Dagenham does not fall into this category.  
Barking and Dagenham is focusing on achieving the required and Good outcomes. 

 
2. Implementing E-Government Statement  
 
2.1 To obtain the IEG funding of £350,000 in 2004 / 2005, a position statement as at 1 

April 2004 was submitted to the ODPM by the due date of 14 June 2004.  Funding has 
now been granted by the ODPM which is to be used to enable the priority outcomes to 
be achieved. 

 
2.2 To enable this funding (and further funding) to be allocated across the Council where 

needed, all services have been asked to indicate what plans they have to achieve the 
Required and Good outcomes by December 2005, and to highlight any gaps, issues or 
problems in doing so, including funding and resourcing issues.  The ‘traffic light’ 
assessment process has been used where: 

 
• Red = work at research, planned or primary stage;  
• Amber = projects have been approved and are being implemented; 
• Green = work has been actioned and achieved. 

 
2.3 This Gap Analysis indicates that several Priority Outcomes will not be achieved unless 

action is taken – either decisions or resourcing or both.  In terms of the ODPM’s traffic 
light system: 

 
by 18/7/05  20 Red, 21 Amber, 13 Green 
by 30/9/05   8 Red, 33 Amber, 13 Green 
by 31/12/05   4 Red, 24 Amber, 26 Green 
by 31/3/06   2 Red,   9 Amber, 43 Green 

 
The key aim is to ensure that the provision of the priority outcomes achieve ‘Green’ 
status.  Priority outcomes at Amber stage are due to projects and programmes being 
implemented but not achieving ‘live’ status.  The ‘Red’ status denotes projects at the 
research stage.   

 
The 2 “red” outcomes are: 
 

Page 2



• G8 - The establishment of a Single Business Account linked to the (Customer First) 
Customer Relationship Management (CRM) system.  This red status is because the 
CRM programme is giving priority to people-based systems.  When the CRM has 
been rolled out across all people-based systems, consideration will be given to the 
single business account.  This will enable us to take full advantage of the London 
Connects work in this area which will be developing a single business account. 

 
• G19 - Adoption of ISO 15489 methodology for Electronic Records Management.  

Work has started on a document retention and disposal policy as a first stage of 
good records management.  It is accepted by the ODPM that this is likely to be a 
lengthy programme. 

 
The 9 amber outcomes are due to: 
 
• Dependency on externally provided systems (R1, G1 and R12). 
 
• Links to the Revenues and Benefits modernisation programme which runs beyond 

March 2006 (R11, G11, R16, R17 and G15). 
 
• Links to the Adoption of ISO 15489 methodology (G19 above) which runs beyond 

March 2006 (G21).  
 
2.4 The IEG 4.5 Statement (see Appendix 1) to be submitted to the ODPM by 18/7/2005 

details that the Council has achieved 72% of meeting the BVPI 157 Electronic 
Government Agenda (awaiting clarification from the IDeA Electronic Service Delivery 
Toolkit to confirm the processes of downloading data).  Work will be continued to 
achieve 100% (previous forecast from IEG Statement 4 estimated achieving 90% by 
this period however the e-government unit has only become fully operational). 

 
3. Proposals 
 
3.1 An e-government programme has been established by the Council’s e-Government 

Team to deliver the priority outcomes, improve access to information and services and 
continuously drive the achievement of BVPI 157 based on IEG 4 priority outcomes and 
the gaps in BVPI 157.  Departmental Information Management and Technology 
Managers have been working and will continue to work with Departments to establish, 
determine, drive forward and implement the priority outcomes in line with both 
corporate and Departmental priorities and business needs.  This will ensure the 
programme is managed, reviewed, monitored and evaluated across the Council.   

 
3.2 The £350,000 from IEG3 has been allocated to fund some of the priority outcomes with 

further funding of £150,000 (due in July 2005) to fund the priority outcomes and the 
infrastructure needed to support and underpin the development of the e-agendas. 

 

Page 3



3.3 There is a two-pronged approach to delivering BVPI 157 and the Priority Outcomes: 
 

3.3.1 BVPI 157:  A team with representatives from each Department has been set up 
to concentrate on delivering BVPI 157 at 100%.  This team has worked across 
Departments at all levels and improved BVPI 157 from 53% December 2004 to 
72% by 18 July 2005 (when the attached report will be submitted to the ODPM). 

 
3.3.2 Priority Outcomes:  We are using the Office of Government Commerce’s (OGC) 

Managing Successful Programmes (MSP) methodology to deliver the priority 
Outcomes.  This breaks the various Outcomes into traunches which can then be 
managed.  The individual Outcomes are being managed as projects using the 
OGC’s Prince2 Project Management Methodology. 

 
4. Consultation 
 
5.1 The following people have been consulted in this Report. 
 

• IM+T Departmental Managers 
• Heads of Service 
• Corporate Management Team 
• Councillor M McCarthy 
• Finance Officers 

 
 
 
 
Background Papers 
 
• IEG3 Statement 
• Reports on Customer First 
 

 

Page 4



IEG4.5 Final Version0 9 
    
    
   

 

                                        
 
 

IMPLEMENTING ELECTRONIC 
GOVERNMENT RETURN 

 2005 MID TERM 
 (IEG4.5) 

 
“Realising the benefits from our investment in e-

government” 
 

Proforma for esd-toolkit entry 
 
 

This is the proforma for IEG4 returns. A copy of this proforma will be published for 
online data entry via www.esd-toolkit.org from May 2005.  Please note that the 

deadline for 'IEG4 mid term' submissions via the esd-toolkit is midday on Monday 
18 July 2005. 

 

 
 
 

 

Page 5



 

IEG4 Final Version 2

IMPLEMENTING ELECTRONIC GOVERNMENT RETURNS 2005 (IEG4.5) 
 
Introduction 
This IEG return is an essential part of the national monitoring process for assessing electronic local 
service delivery capability against the 2005 target and supports the delivery of priority outcomes for 
local e-government.  It is an important feedback mechanism for assessing progress towards 
realising the benefits from our investment in e-government and the use of IEG funding in individual 
local authorities.  It is also an effective mechanism to help us identify national support and capacity 
needs for local authority e-government activity. 

A key objective of the Office of the Deputy Prime Minister’s (ODPM) SR2002 Public Service 
Agreement (PSA) involves improving delivery and value for money of local services within a 
framework of national targets and policies. This includes: 

• assisting local government to achieve 100% capability in electronic delivery of priority 
services by 2005, in ways that customers will use. 

Building on the work undertaken by Sir Peter Gershon in his independent review of public sector 
efficiency1, SR2004 sets the ODPM a new PSA target on local government: 

• by 2008, improve the effectiveness and efficiency of local government in leading and 
delivering services to all communities 

This equates to a target for local services of achieving 2.5% efficiency gains per year, amounting to 
at least £6.45bn per annum by 2007/08. Clearly, e-government will make a substantial contribution 
towards the achievement of this target.  The ODPM is working in partnership with local authorities 
and their representative national organisations to help achieve the specified objectives, including a 
new request in the IEG4 return to provide a summary of efficiency gains arising from the 
implementation of local e-government. 

The format of the IEG return is subject to extensive consultation.  Last year, this helped to achieve a 
100% return rate of IEG4 submissions from local authorities.  As last year, the format of the IEG4 
mid term return is intended to simplify the return process for local authorities through a self-
assessment approach.  Successful completion of the IEG4 mid term return also demands 
awareness of the ODPM’s National Strategy for Local e-Government published in November 2002, 
deliverables from the National Project programme and the priority outcomes for local e-
government2.  Further details on all of these areas can be found at the ODPM’s local e-government 
portal website www.localegov.gov.uk. 

E-Government is a key tool in delivering local services.  Within the CPA process, those councils that 
have not done well in achievement, investment, capacity or performance management may 
particularly need to consider the role that e-government can play in delivering improvements as part 
of a wider strategy for improvement planning. 

The proforma format for IEG4 mid term returns complies with Government commitments to reduce 
service plan requirements for local authorities, whilst balancing the need for authorities to supply 
statistical information for the purpose of monitoring national progress on the implementation of local 
e-government.  From this year through to 31 March 2006, all authorities will be able to input and 
maintain IEG data in real time via the esd-toolkit (www.esd-toolkit.org) allowing them to sign-off 
completion against the IEG self-assessment traffic lights as projects are actually implemented.  For 

                                            
1 See http://www.hm-treasury.gov.uk/media/879E2/efficiency_review120704.pdf 
2 See http://www.odpm.gov.uk/pns/DisplayPN.cgi?pn_id=2004_0112  

Page 6



 

IEG4 Final Version 3

funding and risk management purposes, the ODPM will continue to set key dates in the calendar at 
which it intends to inspect the extent of progress and take action accordingly.  These will include: 

• 18 July 2005 mid term IEG snapshot; 

• December 2005 deadline for IEG5 return; 

• April 2006 deadline for IEG6 end of programme return. 

“Excellent” CPA authorities are requested to continue to comply with requests for IEG data in order 
to assist in benchmarking national progress, to demonstrate their commitment to e-government and 
appropriate use of IEG capital grant.  In particular, the fourth year of IEGs represents a crucial point 
of reference as local authorities move from the investment to the delivery phase of their local e-
government programmes. 

This proforma is intended to standardise Implementing Electronic Government (IEG) returns for 
2004.  It has been prepared for English County, District, Unitary Councils, London Boroughs, the 
Corporation of London, the Greater London Authority, London Development Agency, Transport for 
London who are subject to the Best Value Performance Indicator 157 and have been requested to 
prepare these statements.  An amended version of this IEG4 proforma is available to National Park 
Authorities reflecting their different priority outcome responsibilities.  Please note that Fire & Rescue 
authorities are not required to submit an IEG4 return, although county councils with responsibility for 
this service should include fire and rescue data as part of their general return. 

Priority Outcomes 

Practitioner guidance on the interpretation of the priority outcomes is available from 
http://www.idea-knowledge.gov.uk/idk/core/page.do?pageId=1704073.  All enquiries on policy 
matters relating to the priority outcomes should be addressed to the local e-government team at 
the ODPM. 

Funding & Completeness 

You should complete the IEG4 mid term return on the basis that it is a required reference 
document to provide evidence to auditors of how IEG grant funding has been used.  You should 
consult with relevant members of the ODPM’s local e-government team for clarification of what is 
required to complete the proforma fully or to request assistance. 
Approval & Publication 
It is important that the information contained in your completed IEG4 mid term proforma is 
approved by the Council before submission and that adequate time for this is built into the 
timetable. Please note that the esd-toolkit entry process allows you to save a pdf copy of your IEG4 
mid term return to facilitate its approval by Members.  You are also reminded to note any 
requirements for disclosure of this information on your public website, in line with your authority’s 
approved Publication Scheme under the requirements of the Freedom of Information Act 2000.  
 
What's New in the Proforma? 
The IEG4 Mid Term proforma purposely does not contain any substantive changes from last 
year's IEG4 proforma.  However, it does contain minor updates to reflect the publication of the 
revised Local Government Efficiency Technical Note in January 2005 and the publication of the 
Government Connect Prospectus in March 2005.

Page 7



 

IEG4 Final Version 4

Submission 

Please note that submissions will only be accepted online via the Electronic Service 
Delivery (ESD) toolkit supported by the Improvement & Development Agency (IDEA)   
(www.esd-toolkit.org)3.  Councils must make individual submissions - partnership returns 
are not acceptable. 
You should allow adequate time to register and acquaint yourself with this facility prior to the 
submission deadline. Registration is free, and is both sufficient for the purposes of IEG4 mid term 
submission and for obtaining a copy of the local Government Services List (LGSL) needed for 
BVPI 157 calculation. 
Please do not hesitate to contact relevant members of the ODPM local e-government team should 
you require further information or clarification. Contact details can be found on the last page of 
this guidance. 
 

PROFORMA CONTENT 

 
 
 
 
 
You are asked to summarise the plans and progress of your local authority according to the 
information requested below, as follows: 
 

Section 1 – Priority Outcomes (self-assessment) 
Section 2 – Change Management (self-assessment) 
Section 3 – BVPI 157 
Section 4 – Access Channel Take-Up 
Section 5 – Local e-Government Implementation Costs 
Section 6 – Local e-Government Programme Efficiency Savings 
 
Please refer to www.localegov.gov.uk for further background information, including details of the 
priority outcomes guidance paper.  Information on National Projects is available at 
www.localegovnp.org.  Further information about local e-government is also available from the 
IDEA’s Knowledge website at www.idea-knowledge.gov.uk. 
 
In relation to Section 1 below, it is recognised that local authorities in two-tier areas may not have 
a statutory responsibility for service delivery in some of the areas listed.   It is not the intention to 
ask district councils to deliver service provision outcomes for schools, or for county councils to 
deliver outcomes for benefits.   However, a minimum requirement in terms of meeting a priority 
outcome for an authority with no direct statutory service responsibility is to offer appropriate 
(deep) hyperlinks to the relevant web pages of the local district or county councils that do provide 
the service. In practice, authorities in two-tier areas will need to work in partnership to establish 

                                            
3 IEG4 returns submitted by email will only be accepted for National Park Authorities, the Greater London 
Authority, the London Development Agency and Transport for London who are not catered for through esd-
toolkit arrangements. 

Page 8



 

IEG4 Final Version 5

protocols covering the deep linking responsibilities within the ODPM’s Priority Outcomes. This 
information should then be ‘traffic-lighted’ on the proforma accordingly. 
 
Please add any explanatory or qualifying notes in the comment column, as appropriate. 
 
Not all the elements in the proforma checklist in Section 2 below will necessarily be a part of your 
local e-government strategy, but you are expected to be aware of all of these elements and have 
taken a corporate position in relation to them.  It is recognised that your IEG strategy will reflect 
local priorities and customer preferences, but you are asked specifically to provide accompanying 
commentary on any areas of the proforma checklist that remain “red” in 2005/06.

Page 9



 

IE
G

4.
5 

Fi
na

l V
er

si
on

0 
9 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

  Na
m

e 
of

 A
ut

ho
rit

y:
 _

__
__

__
__

Lo
nd

on
  B

or
ou

gh
 o

f B
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 D
ag

en
ha

m
 

 IE
G

 C
on

ta
ct

 N
am

e:
 _

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
_J

ac
k 

M
cK

eo
w

n_
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
_ 

 Em
ai

l: 
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

_j
ac

k.
m

ck
eo

w
n@

lb
bd

.g
ov

.u
k_

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
 

 Te
le

ph
on

e 
No

: _
__

__
__

_0
20

 8
22

7 
35

00
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

_ 
 

Page 10



 

IE
G

4.
5 

Fi
na

l V
er

si
on

 
 

7

 Lo
ca

l C
on

te
xt

 
 Yo

u 
m

ay
 e

nt
er

 fr
ee

 te
xt

 h
er

e 
to

 s
um

m
ar

is
e 

th
e 

cu
rre

nt
 s

ta
ge

 o
f d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f y
ou

r a
ut

ho
rit

y’
s 

lo
ca

l e
-g

ov
er

nm
en

t p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

an
d 

yo
ur

 d
el

iv
er

y 
pl

an
s 

up
 to

 a
nd

 b
ey

on
d 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

5,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

be
ne

fit
s 

th
at

 c
iti

ze
ns

 w
ill 

se
e 

as
 a

 re
su

lt 
of

 e
-g

ov
er

nm
en

t i
nv

es
tm

en
t. 

 It
 is

 s
ug

ge
st

ed
 th

at
 

th
is

 s
ec

tio
n 

be
 u

til
is

ed
 to

 s
et

 th
e 

lo
ca

l c
on

te
xt

 fo
r t

he
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
co

nt
ai

ne
d 

in
 th

is
 re

tu
rn

 a
vo

id
in

g 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 te
ch

ni
ca

l j
ar

go
n.

 
 

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f B
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 D
ag

en
ha

m
 

 W
e 

ha
ve

 a
 v

is
io

n 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 q
ua

lit
y 

se
rv

ic
es

 to
 o

ur
 c

iti
ze

ns
 b

y 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 a
ll 

C
ou

nc
il 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n.

 W
e 

w
ill 

de
liv

er
 th

es
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 in
 a

 c
os

t e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
m

an
ne

r, 
un

de
rp

in
ne

d 
by

 o
ur

 e
-G

ov
er

nm
en

t s
tra

te
gy

. 
 W

e 
ha

ve
 a

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

of
 w

or
k 

to
 m

od
er

ni
se

 a
nd

 in
te

gr
at

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 s

o 
th

at
 o

ur
 e

ffo
rts

 a
nd

 re
so

ur
ce

s 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
: 

o
 

Th
at

 w
e 

ha
ve

 li
st

en
ed

 to
 w

ha
t o

ur
 c

us
to

m
er

s 
te

ll 
us

 th
ey

 w
an

t 
o
 

W
e 

ha
ve

 m
ad

e 
th

e 
gr

ea
te

st
 u

se
 o

f e
xi

st
in

g 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 

o
 

W
e 

ha
ve

 fo
cu

se
d 

on
 m

ax
im

is
in

g 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

sa
vi

ng
s 

C
us

to
m

er
 F

irs
t 

A 
ke

y 
co

m
po

ne
nt

 o
f o

ur
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
of

 w
or

k 
is

 th
e 

‘C
us

to
m

er
 F

irs
t’ 

in
iti

at
iv

e 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 ‘A
n 

ex
ce

lle
nt

 c
on

ta
ct

 s
er

vi
ce

 w
ith

 h
ig

h 
st

an
da

rd
s 

of
 q

ua
lit

y 
an

d 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
’. 

C
us

to
m

er
 F

irs
t h

as
 b

ee
n 

liv
e 

si
nc

e 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
4,

 d
el

iv
er

in
g 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l S
er

vi
ce

s.
 

In
te

gr
at

io
ns

, l
in

ki
ng

 th
e 

C
us

to
m

er
 F

irs
t C

R
M

 s
ys

te
m

 w
ith

 th
re

e 
m

ai
n 

ba
ck

-e
nd

 s
ys

te
m

s 
in

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l S
er

vi
ce

s,
 h

av
e 

be
en

 li
ve

 
si

nc
e 

Sp
rin

g 
20

05
.  

Th
is

 is
 u

nd
er

pi
nn

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
“D

on
e-

in
-O

ne
” i

ni
tia

tiv
e 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l w
hi

ch
 in

tro
du

ce
s 

on
e 

in
te

ra
ct

io
n 

fo
r 

cu
st

om
er

s 
w

ho
 re

qu
es

t s
er

vi
ce

s 
or

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n.

 
As

 a
 re

su
lt 

of
 im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
th

e 
C

R
M

 s
ys

te
m

, t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
be

ne
fit

s 
ar

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
: 

o
 

An
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t i
n 

cu
st

om
er

 s
at

is
fa

ct
io

n 
fo

r c
us

to
m

er
 s

er
vi

ce
 a

nd
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 

o
 

Be
tte

r b
us

in
es

s 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

s 
ou

r u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 o

f o
ur

 c
us

to
m

er
s 

us
e 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

im
pr

ov
es

 
o
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 in
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

an
d 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
O

ur
 ta

rg
et

 is
 to

 h
av

e 
80

%
 o

f a
ll 

se
rv

ic
es

 b
ei

ng
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 v
ia

 fr
on

t l
in

e 
st

af
f u

si
ng

 th
e 

C
R

M
 s

ys
te

m
 o

r t
hr

ou
gh

 c
iti

ze
n’

s 
us

e 
of

 s
el

f-
se

rv
ic

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

vi
a 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’s

 w
eb

-s
ite

 b
y 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

6.
  

W
eb

 b
as

ed
 s

el
f-s

er
vi

ce
 

O
ur

 w
eb

 s
ite

 is
 p

ro
vi

ng
 to

 b
e 

po
pu

la
r w

ith
 o

ur
 c

iti
ze

ns
; p

ag
e 

im
pr

es
si

on
s 

an
d 

un
iq

ue
 v

is
ito

rs
 a

re
 u

p 
by

 6
6.

5%
 a

nd
 1

0%
 

re
sp

ec
tiv

el
y.

 
O

ur
 w

eb
-s

ite
 h

as
 a

 c
iti

ze
n’

s 
po

rta
l f

ac
ilit

y 
w

hi
ch

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
ac

ce
ss

 to
: 

Page 11



 

IE
G

4.
5 

Fi
na

l V
er

si
on

 
 

8

o
 

O
nl

in
e 

pa
ym

en
ts

 
o
 

A 
H

ou
si

ng
 R

ep
ai

r E
nq

ui
ry

 to
 e

na
bl

e 
a 

ch
ec

k 
on

 th
e 

st
at

us
 o

f a
n 

ou
ts

ta
nd

in
g 

re
pa

ir 
re

qu
es

t a
nd

 to
 li

st
 th

e 
m

os
t r

ec
en

tly
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 re

pa
irs

 
o
 

A 
G

IS
 b

as
ed

 ‘l
oc

at
or

’ s
ys

te
m

 w
hi

ch
 p

re
se

nt
s 

lo
ca

tio
ns

 a
nd

 d
is

ta
nc

es
 o

f f
ac

ilit
ie

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
lib

ra
rie

s 
an

d 
do

ct
or

s 
su

rg
er

ie
s 

fro
m

 a
 g

iv
en

 p
os

tc
od

e 
or

 a
dd

re
ss

 
o
 

R
en

ew
 li

br
ar

y 
lo

an
s 

an
d 

vi
ew

 th
e 

lib
ra

ry
 c

at
al

og
ue

 
o
 

Vi
ew

in
g 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
 a

nd
 n

ew
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 
C

iti
ze

ns
 a

re
 a

bl
e 

to
 m

ak
e 

on
lin

e 
pa

ym
en

ts
 fo

r C
ou

nc
il 

Ta
x,

 C
ar

 P
ar

ki
ng

 F
in

es
, N

on
-D

om
es

tic
 R

at
es

, H
om

e 
Lo

an
s 

an
d 

Su
nd

ry
 

D
eb

t i
te

m
s 

vi
a 

th
e 

w
eb

 s
ite

 o
r t

hr
ou

gh
 a

 to
uc

h 
to

ne
 te

le
ph

on
e 

pa
ym

en
ts

 fa
ci

lit
y.

 
Th

e 
w

eb
 s

ite
 u

se
s 

G
IS

 b
as

ed
 m

ap
pi

ng
 to

 fa
ci

lit
at

e 
th

e 
re

po
rti

ng
 o

f a
ba

nd
on

ed
 v

eh
ic

le
s,

 b
lo

ck
ed

 d
ra

in
s,

 re
gi

st
er

 g
en

er
al

 
co

m
pl

ai
nt

s,
 lo

g 
ho

us
in

g 
re

pa
irs

, s
tre

et
 li

gh
t f

au
lts

 a
nd

 s
tre

et
 / 

fo
ot

pa
th

 re
pa

irs
. 

O
ur

 C
ou

nc
illo

rs
 h

av
e 

th
ei

r o
w

n 
w

eb
 p

ag
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 c

an
 a

cc
es

s 
al

l a
ge

nd
as

 a
nd

 c
om

m
itt

ee
 m

in
ut

es
 fr

om
 th

e 
w

eb
 s

ite
. 

W
e 

ha
ve

 a
n 

on
lin

e 
fa

ci
lit

y 
to

 b
oo

k 
sp

or
ts

 a
nd

 le
is

ur
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
pl

an
ne

d,
 s

up
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 a

 te
le

ph
on

e 
bo

ok
in

g 
sy

st
em

.  
 C

ol
la

bo
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 
W

e 
ar

e 
pa

rti
ci

pa
tin

g 
in

 a
 n

um
be

r o
f c

ol
la

bo
ra

tiv
e 

or
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 jo

in
t w

or
ki

ng
 a

rra
ng

em
en

ts
 a

s 
fo

llo
w

s:
 

o
 

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l i

s 
pa

rti
ci

pa
tin

g 
in

 th
e 

Pa
n 

Lo
nd

on
 C

oo
rd

in
at

ed
 S

ch
oo

ls
 A

dm
is

si
on

 s
ys

te
m

, d
ev

el
op

in
g 

an
 in

te
rfa

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

re
gi

st
er

 a
nd

 lo
ca

l a
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
sy

st
em

s 
in

 e
ac

h 
LE

A 
o
 

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l i

s 
pa

rti
ci

pa
tin

g 
in

 th
e 

N
or

th
-E

as
t L

on
do

n 
Pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

, d
ev

el
op

in
g 

sh
ar

ed
 p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t o

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 a

n 
e-

m
ar

ke
tp

la
ce

. I
nt

er
na

lly
, w

e 
ar

e 
im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
an

 e
-p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t m

od
ul

e 
in

 o
ur

 F
in

an
ce

 s
ys

te
m

 to
 fa

ci
lit

at
e 

pa
pe

rle
ss

 
or

de
rin

g 
an

d 
in

vo
ic

in
g 

o
 

An
 in

te
gr

at
ed

 c
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

se
rv

ic
es

 s
ys

te
m

 is
 b

ei
ng

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 a
 n

um
be

r o
f a

ge
nc

ie
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
he

al
th

, 
an

d 
po

lic
e 

  
o
 

W
e 

ar
e 

pa
rti

ci
pa

tin
g 

in
 th

e 
N

at
io

na
l P

la
nn

in
g 

Po
rta

l p
ro

je
ct

 to
 im

pl
em

en
t o

nl
in

e 
su

bm
is

si
on

 o
f p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

. O
nl

in
e 

su
bm

is
si

on
 o

f p
la

ns
 fo

r p
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
bu

ild
in

g 
co

nt
ro

l h
as

 re
ce

nt
ly

 b
ec

om
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
  

o
 

W
e 

w
er

e 
ch

os
en

 b
y 

th
e 

D
fE

S 
to

 b
e 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
£2

0m
 IC

T 
Te

st
 B

ed
 P

ro
je

ct
 a

im
ed

 a
t d

em
on

st
ra

tin
g 

th
e 

po
si

tiv
e 

im
pa

ct
 th

at
 

hi
gh

 le
ve

ls
 o

f i
nv

es
tm

en
t i

n 
IC

T 
ca

n 
ha

ve
 o

n 
ra

is
in

g 
pu

pi
l a

tta
in

m
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

ds
.  

Th
is

 p
ro

je
ct

 is
 d

ue
 to

 ru
n 

to
 A

ug
us

t 2
00

6.
  

It 
is

 b
ei

ng
 e

xt
er

na
lly

 e
va

lu
at

ed
 b

y 
N

ot
tin

gh
am

 T
re

nt
 U

ni
ve

rs
ity

.  
O

ur
 c

on
tin

ue
d 

in
ve

st
m

en
t i

n 
fu

rth
er

in
g 

ou
r e

-G
ov

er
nm

en
t p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
as

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

d 
in

 la
te

r s
ec

tio
ns

 o
f t

hi
s 

Im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

El
ec

tro
ni

c 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t S
ta

te
m

en
t s

ho
w

s 
ou

r c
on

tin
ue

d 
co

m
m

itm
en

t t
o 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
ou

r v
is

io
n 

fo
r c

us
to

m
er

 s
er

vi
ce

.  
 

Page 12



 

IE
G

4.
5 

Fi
na

l V
er

si
on

 
 

9

 Tr
af

fic
 L

ig
ht

 S
ta

tu
s:

 a
va

ila
bi

lit
y 

ag
ai

ns
t 3

1 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
5 

ta
rg

et
 d

at
e 

fo
r l

oc
al

 e
-g

ov
er

nm
en

t 
C

ur
re

nt
 

St
at

us
 

As
 a

t 1
8 

Ju
ly

 0
5 

An
tic

ip
at

ed
 

St
at

us
 a

t 
30

/0
9/

05
 

An
tic

ip
at

ed
 

St
at

us
 a

t 
31

/1
2/

05
 

An
tic

ip
at

ed
 

St
at

us
 a

t 
31

/0
3/

06
 

C
om

m
en

t 

Lo
ca

l e
-o

rg
an

is
at

io
n:

 
 R

ed
 =

 P
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

&
 p

la
nn

in
g 

– 
to

 in
cl

ud
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 th
at

 
ar

e 
be

in
g 

pl
an

ne
d 

or
 b

ei
ng

 p
ilo

te
d 

   A
m

be
r =

 Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
st

ag
e 

– 
ro

ll 
ou

t o
f a

pp
ro

ve
d 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 
  G

re
en

 =
 F

ul
ly

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

– 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 &
 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

         e.
g.

 fo
r p

ro
gr

es
s 

ag
ai

ns
t a

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 e

le
m

en
t y

ou
 m

ig
ht

 
en

te
r:

 

                     R
ed

 

                     A
m

be
r 

                     G
re

en
  

  

                     G
re

en
 

  

 e.
g.

 “
re

d”
 s

ta
tu

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 a

ll 
el

em
en

ts
 o

n 
th

e 
pr

of
or

m
a 

w
he

re
 w

or
k 

is
 

at
 a

 p
rim

ar
y 

or
 re

se
ar

ch
 s

ta
ge

, b
ei

ng
 

pi
lo

te
d 

be
fo

re
 w

id
er

 ro
llo

ut
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
au

th
or

ity
/p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
, o

r p
la

nn
ed

 b
ut

 n
ot

 
ye

t a
pp

ro
ve

d 
fo

r f
un

di
ng

. 
 e.

g.
 “

am
be

r”
 s

ta
tu

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 

al
l e

le
m

en
ts

 o
n 

th
e 

pr
of

or
m

a 
w

he
re

 w
or

k 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

fo
r f

un
di

ng
 a

nd
 is

 
ac

tiv
el

y 
be

in
g 

im
pl

em
en

te
d.

 
 e.

g.
 “

gr
ee

n”
 s

ta
tu

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 

al
l e

le
m

en
ts

 o
n 

th
e 

pr
of

or
m

a 
w

he
re

 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
ct

io
ne

d 
an

d 
 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

or
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 w
ith

 p
la

ns
 fo

r e
xt

en
de

d 
ro

llo
ut

 
on

 a
n 

en
te

rp
ris

e-
w

id
e 

ba
si

s,
 i.

e.
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
au

th
or

ity
/p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
.  

Pl
ea

se
 n

ot
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

“R
” 

an
d 

“G
” 

nu
m

be
re

d 
pr

io
rit

y 
ou

tc
om

es
 li

st
ed

 in
 S

ec
tio

n 
1 

ar
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 b

e 
“g

re
en

” 
by

 3
1 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

05
 a

nd
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

6 
re

sp
ec

tiv
el

y.
  

Th
is

 in
cl

ud
es

 a
 re

qu
ire

m
en

t f
or

 d
ee

p-
lin

ki
ng

 in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 n
on

-s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

fu
nc

tio
ns

. 

Page 13



 

IE
G

4.
5 

Fi
na

l V
er

si
on

 
 

10

Se
ct

io
n 

1 
– 

Pr
io

rit
y 

O
ut

co
m

es
 (s

el
f-a

ss
es

sm
en

t)4  
Sa

tis
fa

ct
or

y 
pr

og
re

ss
 to

w
ar

ds
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
lis

te
d 

pr
io

rit
y 

ou
tc

om
es

 li
st

ed
 b

el
ow

 is
 re

qu
ire

d 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

re
m

it 
fo

r a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 e

-
go

ve
rn

m
en

t b
y 

20
05

 a
nd

 w
ill 

in
fo

rm
 th

e 
re

le
as

e 
of

 IE
G

 c
ap

ita
l f

un
di

ng
 in

 2
00

5/
06

 
O

ut
co

m
e 

&
 T

ra
ns

fo
rm

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

C
ur

re
nt

 
St

at
us

 

As
 a

t 1
8 

Ju
ly

 0
5 

An
tic

ip
at

ed
 

St
at

us
 a

t 
30

/0
9/

05
 

An
tic

ip
at

ed
 

St
at

us
 a

t 
31

/1
2/

05
 

An
tic

ip
at

ed
 

St
at

us
 a

t 
31

/0
3/

06
 

C
om

m
en

t 

Yo
u 

m
ay

 c
om

m
en

t h
er

e 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 q
ua

lif
y 

th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

gi
ve

n,
 re

qu
es

t O
D

P
M

 s
up

po
rt,

 o
r i

de
nt

ify
 

yo
ur

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
as

 a
n 

ex
em

pl
ar

 o
f g

oo
d 

pr
ac

tic
e 

in
 a

 
pa

rti
cu

la
r a

re
a 

R
1 

Pa
re

nt
s/

gu
ar

di
an

s 
to

 a
pp

ly
 o

nl
in

e 
fo

r s
ch

oo
l p

la
ce

s 
fo

r c
hi

ld
re

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
20

07
 s

ch
oo

l y
ea

r. 
 T

he
 a

dm
is

si
on

s 
pr

oc
es

s 
st

ar
ts

 a
bo

ut
 a

 y
ea

r 
be

fo
re

 th
e 

be
gi

nn
in

g 
of

 th
e 

sc
ho

ol
 y

ea
r, 

e.
g.

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6 

fo
r 

20
07

 e
nt

ry
5  

A
m

be
r 

  A
m

be
r 

  A
m

be
r  

  A
m

be
r  

Pa
rti

ci
pa

tin
g 

in
 th

e 
Pa

n-
Lo

nd
on

 A
dm

is
si

on
s 

sy
st

em
. O

n 
tra

ck
- a

ll 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

w
eb

 p
ag

es
 

in
 p

la
ce

.  
LB

BD
 w

or
k 

co
m

pl
et

ed
.  

Am
be

r 
be

ca
us

e 
w

e 
ar

e 
de

pe
nd

an
t o

n 
Pa

n 
Lo

nd
on

 
Po

rta
l b

ei
ng

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
(L

ea
d 

by
 

W
an

ds
w

or
th

). 
R

2 
O

nl
in

e 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t e

du
ca

tio
na

l s
up

po
rt 

se
rv

ic
es

 
th

at
 s

ee
k 

to
 ra

is
e 

th
e 

ed
uc

at
io

na
l a

tta
in

m
en

t o
f L

oo
ke

d 
Af

te
r 

C
hi

ld
re

n6 .  

 
G

re
en

 

 G
re

en
 

 G
re

en
 

 G
re

en
 

 

G
1 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f a

n 
Ad

m
is

si
on

s 
Po

rta
l a

nd
 / 

or
  e

-e
na

bl
ed

 
te

le
ph

on
e 

co
nt

ac
t c

en
tre

 to
 a

ss
is

t p
ar

en
ts

, c
ar

er
s 

an
d 

ch
ild

re
n 

in
 th

ei
r 

ch
oi

ce
 o

f, 
an

d 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
to

 lo
ca

l s
ch

oo
ls

 
A

m
be

r 

 A
m

be
r 

 A
m

be
r 

 A
m

be
r  

Pa
rti

ci
pa

tin
g 

in
 th

e 
Pa

n-
Lo

nd
on

 A
dm

is
si

on
s 

sy
st

em
. O

n 
tra

ck
- a

ll 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

w
eb

 p
ag

es
 

in
 p

la
ce

 a
nd

 a
w

ai
tin

g 
Pa

n 
Lo

nd
on

 P
or

ta
l. 

  
LB

BD
 w

or
k 

co
m

pl
et

ed
.  

Am
be

r b
ec

au
se

 w
e 

ar
e 

de
pe

nd
an

t o
n 

Pa
n 

Lo
nd

on
 P

or
ta

l b
ei

ng
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
(L

ea
d 

by
 W

an
ds

w
or

th
)..

 
E1

 If
 a

lre
ad

y 
‘g

re
en

’ o
n 

R
1,

 R
2 

& 
G

1 
ab

ov
e,

 p
le

as
e 

co
m

m
en

t o
n 

ag
re

ed
 b

as
el

in
e 

an
d 

ta
rg

et
s 

fo
r t

ak
e-

up
 o

f o
nl

in
e 

sc
ho

ol
s 

ad
m

is
si

on
s 

se
rv

ic
e 

an
d 

ed
uc

at
io

na
l a

tta
in

m
en

t o
f L

oo
ke

d 
Af

te
r C

hi
ld

re
n 

in
 

co
m

m
en

t c
ol

um
n 

op
po

si
te

.  
O

th
er

w
is

e,
 le

av
e 

th
is

 ro
w

 b
la

nk
. 

 
 

 
 

 

R
3 

O
ne

 s
to

p 
di

re
ct

 o
nl

in
e 

ac
ce

ss
 a

nd
 d

ee
p 

lin
ki

ng
 to

 jo
in

ed
 u

p 
A-

Z 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 a
ll 

lo
ca

l 
au

th
or

ity
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

vi
a 

w
eb

si
te

 o
r 

sh
ar

ed
 

te
le

ph
on

e 
co

nt
ac

t c
en

tre
 u

si
ng

 th
e 

re
co

gn
is

ed
 ta

xo
no

m
y 

of
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t C

at
eg

or
y 

Li
st

7  (s
ee

 w
w

w
.la

w
s-

pr
oj

ec
t.o

rg
.u

k)
.  

G
re

en
 

G
re

en
 

G
re

en
 

G
re

en
 

M
ap

pi
ng

 fr
om

 A
PL

AW
S 

to
 L

G
C

L 
on

 ta
rg

et
 

R
4 

Lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
an

d 
yo

ut
h 

ju
st

ic
e 

ag
en

ci
es

 to
 c

o-
or

di
na

te
 th

e 
se

cu
re

 o
nl

in
e 

se
nd

in
g,

 s
ha

rin
g 

of
 a

nd
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

in
 

su
pp

or
t o

f c
rim

e 
re

du
ct

io
n 

in
iti

at
iv

es
 in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 th
e 

lo
ca

l 
co

m
m

un
ity

. 
G

re
en

 
G

re
en

 
G

re
en

 
G

re
en

 

N
o 

fu
rth

er
 w

or
k 

re
qu

ire
d 

as
 w

e’
re

 u
si

ng
 th

e 
Yo

ut
h 

Ju
st

ic
e 

Bo
ar

d 
em

ai
l s

ys
te

m
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
4  S

ee
 h

ttp
://

w
w

w
.o

dp
m

.g
ov

.u
k/

pn
s/

D
is

pl
ay

PN
.c

gi
?p

n_
id

=2
00

4_
01

12
 a

nd
 h

ttp
://

w
w

w
.id

ea
.g

ov
.u

k/
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

5  O
w

in
g 

to
 th

e 
lo

ng
 le

ad
-in

 ti
m

e,
 s

ch
oo

l a
dm

is
si

on
s 

sy
st

em
s 

w
ill 

ne
ed

 to
 b

e 
in

 p
la

ce
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

6 
at

 th
e 

la
te

st
. 

6  i.
e.

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ho
 c

an
no

t l
iv

e 
w

ith
 th

ei
r f

am
ilie

s 
an

d 
ar

e 
in

 th
e 

ca
re

 o
f S

oc
ia

l S
er

vi
ce

s 
(re

fe
rre

d 
to

 b
y 

th
e 

D
fE

S 
as

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
in

 P
ub

lic
 C

ar
e)

. 
7  A

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
us

in
g 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

ta
xo

no
m

ie
s 

(e
.g

. s
ea

m
le

ss
U

K)
 s

ho
ul

d 
pl

an
 fo

r m
ig

ra
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

LG
C

L 
by

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

5.
   

 

Page 14



 

IE
G

4.
5 

Fi
na

l V
er

si
on

 
 

11

G
2 

Em
po

w
er

in
g 

an
d 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
lo

ca
l o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

, c
om

m
un

ity
 

gr
ou

ps
 a

nd
 c

lu
bs

 to
 c

re
at

e 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

th
ei

r o
w

n 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

lin
e,

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

pr
om

ot
io

n 
of

 jo
b 

va
ca

nc
ie

s 
an

d 
ev

en
ts

 

 R
ed

 

 R
ed

 
A

m
be

r 
G

re
en

 
Ba

rk
in

g 
& 

D
ag

en
ha

m
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 –

 S
oc

ia
l 

C
oh

es
io

n 
su

b 
gr

ou
p 

w
ill 

ow
n 

th
is

.  
It 

w
ill 

be
 

in
 p

la
ce

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
6.

   

E2
 If

 a
lre

ad
y 

‘g
re

en
’ o

n 
R

3,
 R

4 
& 

G
2 

ab
ov

e,
 p

le
as

e 
co

m
m

en
t o

n 
ag

re
ed

 b
as

el
in

e 
an

d 
ta

rg
et

s 
fo

r c
us

to
m

er
 s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

an
d 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
sa

vi
ng

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
su

pp
ly

in
g 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 o
n 

sh
ar

ed
 c

om
m

un
ity

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
in

iti
at

iv
es

 in
 th

e 
co

m
m

en
t c

ol
um

n 
op

po
si

te
.  

O
th

er
w

is
e,

 
le

av
e 

th
is

 ro
w

 b
la

nk
. 

 
 

 
 

 

R
5 

Pu
bl

ic
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 o
nl

in
e 

re
po

rts
, m

in
ut

es
 a

nd
 a

ge
nd

as
 fr

om
 p

as
t 

co
un

ci
l m

ee
tin

gs
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 fu
tu

re
 m

ee
tin

gs
 d

ia
ry

 u
pd

at
ed

 d
ai

ly
. 

G
re

en
 

G
re

en
 

G
re

en
 

G
re

en
 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 

R
6 

Pr
ov

id
in

g 
ev

er
y 

C
ou

nc
illo

r w
ith

 th
e 

op
tio

n 
to

 h
av

e 
an

 e
as

y-
to

-
m

an
ag

e 
se

t o
f p

ub
lic

 w
eb

 p
ag

es
 (f

or
 c

om
m

un
ity

 le
ad

er
sh

ip
 p

ur
po

se
s)

 
th

at
 is

 e
ith

er
 m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
fo

r t
he

m
, o

r t
ha

t t
he

y 
ca

n 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

th
em

se
lv

es
. 

G
re

en
 

G
re

en
 

G
re

en
 

G
re

en
 

Th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

th
is

, 
so

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 

G
3 

C
iti

ze
n 

pa
rti

ci
pa

tio
n 

an
d 

re
sp

on
se

 to
 fo

rth
co

m
in

g 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

ns
 

an
d 

de
ci

si
on

s 
on

 m
at

te
rs

 o
f p

ub
lic

 in
te

re
st

 (e
-c

on
su

lta
tio

n)
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 
fa

ci
lit

y 
fo

r c
iti

ze
ns

 to
 s

ig
n 

up
 fo

r e
m

ai
l a

nd
/o

r S
M

S 
te

xt
 a

le
rts

 o
n 

no
m

in
at

ed
 to

pi
cs

. 

 R
ed

 

 R
ed

 
A

m
be

r 

 G
re

en
 

W
ill 

be
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 b
y 

C
us

to
m

er
 F

irs
t 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill 
ru

n 
un

til
 2

00
6/

7.
  

In
iti

al
 s

ta
ge

s 
co

m
pl

et
ed

.  
G

re
en

 s
ta

tu
s 

ba
se

d 
on

 “p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
w

ith
 p

la
ns

 fo
r e

xt
en

de
d 

ro
llo

ut
 o

n 
an

 
en

te
rp

ris
e 

ba
si

s”
.  

SM
S 

is
 n

ot
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 
ou

r p
la

ns
 a

t t
hi

s 
st

ag
e.

 
G

4 
Es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
t o

f m
ul

tim
ed

ia
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

on
 lo

ca
l p

ol
ic

y 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 v

ia
 p

ub
lic

 w
eb

si
te

 (e
.g

. v
id

eo
 &

 a
ud

io
 fi

le
s)

. 
 R

ed
 

 R
ed

 
A

m
be

r 
 G

re
en

 

D
VD

s 
ar

e 
cu

rre
nt

ly
 b

ei
ng

 p
ro

du
ce

d.
  B

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

6,
 th

es
e 

w
ill 

be
 p

ub
lis

he
d 

in
 a

 
fo

rm
at

 th
at

 c
an

 b
e 

lo
ad

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
LB

BD
 

w
eb

si
te

.  
  

E3
 If

 a
lre

ad
y 

‘g
re

en
’ o

n 
R

5,
 R

6,
 G

3 
& 

G
4 

ab
ov

e,
 p

le
as

e 
co

m
m

en
t o

n 
ag

re
ed

 b
as

el
in

e 
an

d 
ta

rg
et

s 
fo

r e
-p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

ac
tiv

iti
es

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 

ta
rg

et
s 

fo
r c

iti
ze

n 
sa

tis
fa

ct
io

n 
in

 th
e 

co
m

m
en

t c
ol

um
n 

op
po

si
te

.  
O

th
er

w
is

e,
 le

av
e 

th
is

 ro
w

 b
la

nk
. 

 
 

 
 

 

R
7 

O
nl

in
e 

pu
bl

ic
 re

po
rti

ng
/a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
, p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t a

nd
 tr

ac
ki

ng
 o

f 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l s

er
vi

ce
s,

 in
cl

ud
es

 w
as

te
 m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 s
tre

et
 

sc
en

e 
(e

.g
. a

ba
nd

on
ed

 c
ar

s,
 g

ra
ffi

ti 
re

m
ov

al
, b

ul
ky

 w
as

te
 re

m
ov

al
, 

re
cy

cl
in

g)
. 

A
m

be
r 

A
m

be
r 

G
re

en
 

G
re

en
 

Pu
bl

ic
 c

an
 re

po
rt 

bu
t n

ot
 tr

ac
k.

  T
he

 
tra

ck
in

g 
fa

ci
lit

y 
is

 p
la

nn
ed

 fo
r L

at
e 

20
05

 

R
8 

O
nl

in
e 

re
ce

ip
t a

nd
 p

ro
ce

ss
in

g 
of

 p
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
bu

ild
in

g 
co

nt
ro

l 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
. 

  
R

ed
 

  

 A
m

be
r 

G
re

en
 

G
re

en
 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 

G
5 

Pu
bl

ic
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 c
or

po
ra

te
 G

eo
gr

ap
hi

c 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Sy

st
em

s 
(G

IS
) 

fo
r m

ap
-b

as
ed

 d
at

a 
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 p
ro

pe
rty

-re
la

te
d 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n.

 
A

m
be

r 
A

m
be

r 
G

re
en

 
G

re
en

 
Th

is
 is

 p
la

nn
ed

 fo
r l

at
e 

20
05

 

Page 15



 

IE
G

4.
5 

Fi
na

l V
er

si
on

 
 

12

G
6 

Sh
ar

in
g 

of
 T

ra
di

ng
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 d
at

a 
be

tw
ee

n 
co

un
ci

ls
 fo

r b
us

in
es

s 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
 e

nf
or

ce
m

en
t p

ur
po

se
s.

  

 
A

m
be

r 
 

A
m

be
r 

   A
m

be
r 

   G
re

en
 

LB
BD

 a
re

 u
si

ng
 IE

G
 fu

nd
s 

to
 c

le
an

 th
e 

da
ta

.  
Th

is
 w

ill 
be

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
by

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
6.

  
At

 th
at

 p
oi

nt
, t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
 w

ill 
be

 re
vi

ew
ed

 a
s 

its
 o

ng
oi

ng
 c

os
ts

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

m
at

ch
ed

 b
y 

sa
vi

ng
s 

m
ad

e.
  T

hi
s 

de
pe

nd
s 

on
 o

th
er

 
au

th
or

iti
es

 h
av

in
g 

de
liv

er
ed

 G
6 

by
 M

ar
ch

 
20

06
.  

Th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t w

ill 
on

ly
 p

ro
ce

ed
 if

 th
er

e 
is

 a
 z

er
o 

or
 n

eg
at

iv
e 

re
ve

nu
e 

co
st

. 
G

7 
U

se
 o

f t
ec

hn
ol

og
y 

to
 in

te
gr

at
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

, r
eg

ul
at

io
n 

an
d 

lic
en

si
ng

 
fu

nc
tio

ns
 (i

nc
lu

di
ng

 E
nt

er
ta

in
m

en
t L

ic
en

si
ng

 a
nd

 L
iq

uo
r L

ic
en

si
ng

) i
n 

or
de

r t
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

po
lic

y 
an

d 
de

ci
si

on
-m

ak
in

g 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

ar
ou

nd
 th

e 
pr

ev
en

tio
n 

of
 a

nt
i-s

oc
ia

l b
eh

av
io

ur
. 

A
m

be
r 

A
m

be
r 

G
re

en
 

G
re

en
 

Bu
dg

et
 a

llo
ca

te
d.

 5
0%

 c
om

m
itt

ed
.  

R
em

ai
nd

er
 w

ill 
be

 s
pe

nt
 b

y 
D

ec
 2

00
5 

E4
 If

 a
lre

ad
y 

‘g
re

en
’ o

n 
R

7,
 R

8,
 G

5,
 G

6 
& 

G
7 

ab
ov

e,
 p

le
as

e 
co

m
m

en
t o

n 
ag

re
ed

 b
as

el
in

e 
an

d 
ta

rg
et

s 
fo

r t
ak

e-
up

 o
f p

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

re
gu

la
to

ry
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

on
lin

e,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

ta
rg

et
s 

fo
r c

us
to

m
er

 s
at

is
fa

ct
io

n 
an

d 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

sa
vi

ng
s 

in
 th

e 
co

m
m

en
t c

ol
um

n 
op

po
si

te
.  

O
th

er
w

is
e,

 
le

av
e 

th
is

 ro
w

 b
la

nk
. 

 
 

 
 

 

R
9 

Ap
pr

op
ria

te
 o

nl
in

e 
e-

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t s

ol
ut

io
ns

 in
 p

la
ce

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 a

s 
a 

m
in

im
um

 p
ap

er
le

ss
 o

rd
er

in
g,

 in
vo

ic
in

g 
an

d 
pa

ym
en

t. 
A

m
be

r 
A

m
be

r 
G

re
en

 
G

re
en

 
Va

rio
us

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
un

de
r w

ay
. 

G
8 

Es
ta

bl
is

hm
en

t o
f a

 s
in

gl
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

 a
cc

ou
nt

 (i
.e

. a
 c

ro
ss

-
de

pa
rtm

en
ta

l ‘
ac

co
un

t’ 
ru

n 
by

 th
e 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
w

he
re

by
 b

us
in

es
se

s 
ar

e 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

a 
un

iq
ue

 id
en

tif
ie

r t
ha

t c
an

 b
e 

st
or

ed
 a

nd
 m

an
ag

ed
 v

ia
 

a 
co

rp
or

at
e 

C
R

M
 a

cc
ou

nt
 fa

ci
lit

y 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

fa
ce

-to
-fa

ce
, w

eb
si

te
 a

nd
 

co
nt

ac
t c

en
tre

 tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

). 

 R
ed

 

 R
ed

 

 R
ed

 

 R
ed

 

Th
is

 p
ro

je
ct

 is
 a

t t
he

 re
se

ar
ch

 s
ta

ge
.  

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 C
R

M
 ro

llo
ut

 is
 g

iv
in

g 
pr

io
rit

y 
to

 
pe

op
le

-b
as

ed
 s

ys
te

m
s.

  W
he

n 
th

is
 h

as
 

be
en

 ro
lle

d 
ou

t a
cr

os
s 

al
l p

eo
pl

e-
ba

se
d 

sy
st

em
s,

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
w

ill 
be

 g
iv

en
 to

 th
e 

si
ng

le
 b

us
in

es
s 

ac
co

un
t. 

 T
hi

s 
w

ill 
en

ab
le

 
us

 to
 ta

ke
 fu

ll 
ad

va
nt

ag
e 

of
 th

e 
Lo

nd
on

 
C

on
ne

ct
s 

w
or

k 
in

 th
is

 a
re

a 
w

hi
ch

 is
 d

ue
 to

 
de

ve
lo

p 
a 

si
ng

le
 b

us
in

es
s 

ac
co

un
t b

y 
Ju

ly
 

20
05

, w
ith

 th
e 

ai
m

 fo
r t

hi
s 

st
an

da
rd

 to
 b

e 
ad

op
te

d 
na

tio
na

lly
. W

e 
w

ill 
al

so
 n

ee
d 

to
 

co
ns

id
er

 th
e 

be
ne

fit
s 

of
 im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
th

is
 

ou
tc

om
e,

 c
on

si
de

rin
g 

th
e 

hi
gh

 c
os

ts
 

in
vo

lv
ed

.  
G

9 
R

eg
io

na
l c

o-
op

er
at

io
n 

on
 e

-p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t b
et

w
ee

n 
lo

ca
l c

ou
nc

ils
. 

G
re

en
 

G
re

en
 

G
re

en
 

G
re

en
 

C
ur

re
nt

ly
 ru

nn
in

g 
e-

au
ct

io
ns

 w
ith

 
H

am
m

er
sm

ith
 &

 F
ul

ha
m

.  
W

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 

ot
he

r L
on

do
n 

Au
th

or
iti

es
 to

 s
ha

re
 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t o

f c
om

m
on

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
& 

re
so

lu
tio

ns
.  

Al
so

 p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t s
ol

ut
io

ns
 

be
in

g 
ex

am
in

ed
 w

ith
 S

O
C

PO
 a

nd
 o

th
er

s 
an

d 
us

e 
of

 N
H

S/
O

G
C

/S
-C

at
 &

 G
-C

at
 

co
nt

ra
ct

s.
 

Page 16



 

IE
G

4.
5 

Fi
na

l V
er

si
on

 
 

13

If 
al

re
ad

y 
‘g

re
en

’ 
on

 R
9,

 G
8 

& 
G

9 
ab

ov
e,

 p
le

as
e 

co
m

m
en

t 
on

 
pr

og
re

ss
 to

w
ar

ds
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

: 
 E5

 A
cc

es
s 

to
 v

irt
ua

l e
-p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t ‘

m
ar

ke
tp

la
ce

’; 
 E6

 
In

cl
us

io
n 

of
 

Sm
al

l 
an

d 
M

ed
iu

m
 

En
te

rp
ris

es
 

(S
M

Es
) 

in
 

e-
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e,
 in

 o
rd

er
 t

o 
pr

om
ot

e 
th

e 
ad

va
nt

ag
es

 o
f 

e-
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t 
to

 l
oc

al
 s

up
pl

ie
rs

 a
nd

 r
et

ai
n 

ec
on

om
ic

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
be

ne
fit

s 
w

ith
in

 lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

ity
; 

 E7
 

Ag
re

ed
 

ta
rg

et
s 

(p
le

as
e 

sp
ec

ify
) 

fo
r 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
sa

vi
ng

s 
by

 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
05

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

%
 o

f 
un

di
sp

ut
ed

 in
vo

ic
es

 p
ai

d 
in

 3
0 

da
ys

 (B
VP

I 8
); 

 in
 th

e 
co

m
m

en
t c

ol
um

n 
op

po
si

te
.  

O
th

er
w

is
e,

 le
av

e 
th

is
 ro

w
 b

la
nk

. 

 
 

 
 

 

R
10

 O
nl

in
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
to

 b
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 a
llo

w
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 to
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l 
in

 w
ay

s 
th

at
 e

ng
en

de
r p

ub
lic

 tr
us

t a
nd

 c
on

fid
en

ce
 in

 lo
ca

l 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t e
le

ct
ro

ni
c 

pa
ym

en
t s

ol
ut

io
ns

 (e
.g

. e
m

ai
l r

ec
ei

pt
in

g/
pr

oo
f 

of
 p

ay
m

en
t, 

su
pp

ly
 o

f a
ut

om
at

ic
 tr

an
sa

ct
io

n 
ID

 n
um

be
rs

). 
G

re
en

 
G

re
en

 
G

re
en

 
G

re
en

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 

R
11

 D
el

iv
er

y 
of

 ‘a
dd

ed
 v

al
ue

’ a
ro

un
d 

on
lin

e 
pa

ym
en

t f
ac

ilit
ie

s,
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
ab

ilit
y 

to
 c

he
ck

 C
ou

nc
il 

Ta
x 

an
d 

Bu
si

ne
ss

 R
at

e 
ba

la
nc

es
 

on
lin

e 
or

 v
ia

 to
uc

h 
to

ne
 te

le
ph

on
e 

di
al

lin
g.

   
R

ed
 

A
m

be
r 

A
m

be
r 

 A
m

be
r 

Th
is

 is
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 R
ev

s 
& 

Be
ns

 
M

od
er

ni
sa

tio
n 

Pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

w
hi

ch
 is

 
sc

he
du

le
d 

fo
r i

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
by

 A
ug

 2
00

6.
  

G
10

 D
em

on
st

ra
tio

n 
of

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 s

av
in

gs
 a

nd
 im

pr
ov

ed
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n 
ra

te
s 

fro
m

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 e
-p

ay
m

en
ts

. 
A

m
be

r 
A

m
be

r 
G

re
en

 
G

re
en

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 

G
11

 R
eg

is
tra

tio
n 

fo
r C

ou
nc

il 
Ta

x 
an

d 
Bu

si
ne

ss
 R

at
es

 e
-b

illi
ng

 fo
r 

D
ire

ct
 D

eb
it 

pa
ye

rs
. 

R
ed

 
A

m
be

r 
A

m
be

r 
 A

m
be

r 
Th

is
 is

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 R

ev
s 

& 
Be

ns
 

M
od

er
ni

sa
tio

n 
Pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
w

hi
ch

 is
 

sc
he

du
le

d 
fo

r i
m

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

by
 A

ug
 2

00
6.

 

If 
al

re
ad

y 
‘g

re
en

’ o
n 

R
10

, R
11

 G
10

 &
 G

11
 a

bo
ve

, p
le

as
e 

co
m

m
en

t o
n 

pr
og

re
ss

 to
w

ar
ds

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
: 

 E8
 P

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f f

ac
ilit

ie
s 

fo
r m

ak
in

g 
cr

ed
it 

or
 d

eb
it 

ca
rd

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 v

ia
 

SM
S 

te
xt

 m
es

sa
ge

 fo
r p

ar
ki

ng
 fi

ne
s 

(m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

); 
 E9

 A
do

pt
io

n 
of

 s
m

ar
t 

ca
rd

s 
as

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
fo

r 
st

or
ed

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 (

e.
g.

 
re

pl
ac

in
g 

sw
ip

e 
ca

rd
s)

; 
 E1

0 
Ag

re
ed

 b
as

el
in

e 
an

d 
ta

rg
et

s 
fo

r r
ed

uc
tio

ns
 in

 u
ni

t c
os

ts
 o

f 
pa

ym
en

t t
ra

ns
ac

tio
ns

; 

in
 th

e 
co

m
m

en
t c

ol
um

n 
op

po
si

te
.  

O
th

er
w

is
e,

 le
av

e 
th

is
 ro

w
 b

la
nk

. 

 
 

 
 

 

R
12

 O
nl

in
e 

re
ne

w
al

 a
nd

 re
se

rv
at

io
ns

 o
f l

ib
ra

ry
 b

oo
ks

 a
nd

 c
at

al
og

ue
 

se
ar

ch
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

 
 

A
m

be
r 

 
A

m
be

r 

  A
m

be
r 

  G
re

en
 

Th
e 

lib
ra

ry
 s

ys
te

m
 is

 d
ue

 to
 b

e 
re

pl
ac

ed
 b

y 
M

ar
 2

00
6 

as
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
sy

st
em

 w
ill 

no
t b

e 
su

pp
or

te
d 

by
 th

is
 d

at
e 

an
d 

do
es

 n
ot

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 fo
r e

-G
if,

 e
-G

M
S 

an
d 

ac
ce

ss
ib

ilit
y.

  W
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 L
A 

Li
br

ar
ie

s 

Page 17



 

IE
G

4.
5 

Fi
na

l V
er

si
on

 
 

14

co
ns

or
tiu

m
 o

n 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

a 
Lo

nd
on

 s
ea

rc
h 

of
 

Li
br

ar
ie

s 

R
13

 O
nl

in
e 

bo
ok

in
g 

of
 s

po
rts

 a
nd

 le
is

ur
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

bo
th

 
di

re
ct

 a
nd

 c
on

tra
ct

ed
-o

ut
 o

pe
ra

tio
ns

. 
R

ed
 

A
m

be
r 

  
G

re
en

 
 

 

  
G

re
en

 
 

 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
un

de
r w

ay
.  

Bo
ok

in
gs

 w
ill 

be
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
w

eb
 &

 v
ia

 p
ho

ne
 

bo
ok

in
g 

G
12

 In
te

gr
at

ed
 IC

T 
in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t t

o 
en

su
re

 th
e 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

ac
ro

ss
 a

ll 
ac

ce
ss

 c
ha

nn
el

s 
(e

.g
. w

eb
, 

te
le

ph
on

e,
 fa

ce
 to

 fa
ce

) b
as

ed
 o

n 
e-

en
ab

le
d 

ba
ck

 o
ffi

ce
s 

an
d 

sm
ar

t 
ca

rd
 in

te
rfa

ce
s 

fo
r c

ou
nc

il 
lib

ra
ry

, s
po

rts
 a

nd
 le

is
ur

e 
se

rv
ic

es
. 

R
ed

 
R

ed
 

R
ed

 
A

m
be

r 

Se
e 

R
12

; T
he

 li
br

ar
ie

s 
re

pl
ac

em
en

t s
ys

te
m

 
ha

s 
Sm

ar
tc

ar
ds

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 it

s 
sp

ec
ifi

ca
tio

n.
   

Th
e 

Sp
or

ts
 C

en
tre

 S
ys

te
m

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 h

as
 a

 
ba

rc
od

e 
ca

rd
 s

ys
te

m
.  

A 
re

vi
ew

 o
f t

hi
s 

sy
st

em
 w

ill 
be

 d
on

e 
as

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 L

ib
ra

rie
s 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t p

ro
je

ct
.  

 
E1

1 
If 

al
re

ad
y 

‘g
re

en
’ o

n 
R

12
, R

13
 &

 G
12

 a
bo

ve
, p

le
as

e 
co

m
m

en
t o

n 
ag

re
ed

 b
as

el
in

e 
an

d 
ta

rg
et

s 
fo

r t
ak

e-
up

 o
f l

ib
ra

ry
, s

po
rts

 &
 le

is
ur

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 o

nl
in

e,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

ta
rg

et
s 

fo
r c

us
to

m
er

 s
at

is
fa

ct
io

n 
an

d 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

sa
vi

ng
s 

in
 th

e 
co

m
m

en
t c

ol
um

n 
op

po
si

te
.  

O
th

er
w

is
e,

 le
av

e 
th

is
 ro

w
 b

la
nk

. 

 
 

 
 

 

R
14

 O
nl

in
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
to

 b
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 a
llo

w
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 to
 in

sp
ec

t l
oc

al
 

pu
bl

ic
 tr

an
sp

or
t t

im
et

ab
le

s 
an

d 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
vi

a 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

lin
ks

 to
 ‘l

iv
e’

 s
ys

te
m

s 
fo

r i
nt

er
ac

tiv
e 

jo
ur

ne
y 

pl
an

ni
ng

. 
A

m
be

r 
A

m
be

r 
G

re
en

 
G

re
en

 

 

R
15

 O
nl

in
e 

pu
bl

ic
 e

-c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
fo

r n
ew

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 o

n 
tra

ffi
c 

m
an

ag
em

en
t (

e.
g.

 c
on

tro
lle

d 
pa

rk
in

g 
zo

ne
s 

(C
PZ

s)
, t

ra
ffi

c 
ca

lm
in

g 
sc

he
m

es
), 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
pu

bl
ic

at
io

n 
of

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

su
rv

ey
 re

su
lts

. 
R

ed
 

A
m

be
r 

G
re

en
 

G
re

en
 

Th
e 

on
lin

e 
e-

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

sy
st

em
 is

 in
 u

se
 

on
 th

e 
w

eb
.  

It 
w

ill 
be

 fu
rth

er
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 fo
r 

ea
ch

 o
f t

he
 a

re
as

 th
at

 re
qu

ire
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n.
  

G
13

 E
-fo

rm
s 

fo
r “

pa
rk

in
g 

co
nt

ra
ve

nt
io

n 
m

iti
ga

tio
n”

 (i
.e

. a
pp

ea
l 

ag
ai

ns
t t

he
 is

su
e 

of
 a

 p
en

al
ty

 c
ha

rg
e 

no
tic

e)
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 e
m

ai
l 

no
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 fo

rm
 re

ce
ip

t a
nd

 a
pp

ea
l p

ro
ce

du
re

s.
 

 
A

m
be

r 
 

A
m

be
r 

 A
m

be
r 

 G
re

en
 

C
iv

ic
a 

sy
st

em
s 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 s

ol
ut

io
n 

G
14

 G
IS

-b
as

ed
 p

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

of
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 ro
ad

w
or

ks
 in

 th
e 

lo
ca

l 
ar

ea
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 c
on

ta
ct

 d
et

ai
ls

 a
nd

 u
pd

at
ed

 d
ai

ly
. 

R
ed

 
A

m
be

r 
A

m
be

r 

 G
re

en
 

Sy
m

ol
og

y 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

co
m

m
is

si
on

ed
 to

 
im

pl
em

en
t t

hi
s 

pr
oj

ec
t, 

bu
t t

he
 d

el
iv

er
y 

de
pe

nd
s 

on
 S

tre
et

 W
or

ks
 L

eg
is

la
tio

n.
  

C
ur

re
nt

 e
st

im
at

es
 a

re
 th

at
 w

ill 
de

liv
er

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
6,

 b
ut

 th
is

 m
ay

 c
ha

ng
e.

 
E1

2 
If 

al
re

ad
y 

‘g
re

en
’ o

n 
R

14
, R

15
, G

13
 &

 G
14

 a
bo

ve
, p

le
as

e 
co

m
m

en
t o

n 
ag

re
ed

 b
as

el
in

e 
an

d 
ta

rg
et

s 
fo

r c
us

to
m

er
 s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

an
d 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
sa

vi
ng

s 
in

 th
e 

co
lu

m
n 

op
po

si
te

.  
O

th
er

w
is

e,
 le

av
e 

th
is

 
ro

w
 b

la
nk

. 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 18



 

IE
G

4.
5 

Fi
na

l V
er

si
on

 
 

15

R
16

 E
-e

na
bl

ed
 “o

ne
 s

to
p”

 re
so

lu
tio

n 
of

 H
ou

si
ng

 &
 C

ou
nc

il 
Ta

x 
Be

ne
fit

 e
nq

ui
rie

s 
vi

a 
te

le
ph

on
e,

 c
on

ta
ct

 c
en

tre
s,

 o
r v

ia
 o

ne
 s

to
p 

sh
op

s 
us

in
g 

 w
or

kf
lo

w
 to

ol
s 

an
d 

C
R

M
 s

of
tw

ar
e 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
at

 a
ll 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 lo

ca
tio

ns
 a

nd
 e

na
bl

e 
el

ec
tro

ni
c 

w
or

ki
ng

 fr
om

 fr
on

t t
o 

ba
ck

 o
ffi

ce
. 

R
ed

 
A

m
be

r 
A

m
be

r 

 A
m

be
r  

W
ill 

be
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 b
y 

C
us

to
m

er
 F

irs
t 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill 
ru

n 
un

til
 2

00
6/

7.
  

In
iti

al
 s

ta
ge

s 
co

m
pl

et
ed

.  
 

R
17

 O
nl

in
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
to

 b
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 a
llo

w
 c

iti
ze

ns
 o

r t
he

ir 
ag

en
ts

 to
 

ch
ec

k 
th

ei
r e

lig
ib

ilit
y 

fo
r a

nd
 c

al
cu

la
te

 th
ei

r e
nt

itl
em

en
t t

o 
H

ou
si

ng
 &

 
C

ou
nc

il 
Ta

x 
Be

ne
fit

 a
nd

 to
 d

ow
nl

oa
d 

an
d 

pr
in

t r
el

ev
an

t c
la

im
 fo

rm
s.

 
R

ed
 

A
m

be
r 

A
m

be
r 

 A
m

be
r  

 

Th
is

 is
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 R
ev

s 
& 

Be
ns

 
M

od
er

ni
sa

tio
n 

Pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

w
hi

ch
 is

 
sc

he
du

le
d 

fo
r i

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
by

 A
ug

 2
00

6.
  

G
15

 M
ob

ile
 o

ffi
ce

 s
er

vi
ce

 u
si

ng
 te

ch
no

lo
gy

 to
 o

ffe
r p

ro
ce

ss
in

g 
of

 
C

ou
nc

il 
Ta

x 
an

d 
H

ou
si

ng
 B

en
ef

it 
cl

ai
m

s 
di

re
ct

ly
 fr

om
 c

iti
ze

ns
’ h

om
es

. 
R

ed
 

A
m

be
r 

A
m

be
r 

 A
m

be
r  

Th
is

 is
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 R
ev

s 
& 

Be
ns

 
M

od
er

ni
sa

tio
n 

Pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

w
hi

ch
 is

 
sc

he
du

le
d 

fo
r i

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
by

 A
ug

 2
00

6.
  

If 
al

re
ad

y 
‘g

re
en

’ 
on

 R
16

, 
R

17
 &

 G
15

 a
bo

ve
, 

pl
ea

se
 c

om
m

en
t 

on
 

pr
og

re
ss

 to
w

ar
ds

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
: 

 E1
3 

Ag
re

ed
 b

as
el

in
e 

an
d 

ta
rg

et
s 

fo
r t

ur
na

ro
un

d 
in

 p
ro

ce
ss

in
g 

of
 

C
ou

nc
il 

Ta
x 

an
d 

H
ou

si
ng

 B
en

ef
it 

cl
ai

m
s 

(B
VP

I 7
8)

 a
nd

 re
ne

w
al

s.
 

E1
4 

Pr
e-

qu
al

ifi
ca

tio
n 

of
 C

ou
nc

il 
Ta

x 
an

d 
H

ou
si

ng
 B

en
ef

it 
cl

ai
m

an
ts

 
fo

r o
th

er
 e

lig
ib

le
 e

nt
itl

em
en

ts
 (e

.g
. s

ch
oo

l u
ni

fo
rm

 g
ra

nt
s,

 fr
ee

 s
ch

oo
l 

m
ea

ls
), 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
pr

e-
fil

lin
g 

of
 re

le
va

nt
 c

la
im

 fo
rm

s.
 

in
 th

e 
co

m
m

en
t c

ol
um

n 
op

po
si

te
.  

O
th

er
w

is
e,

 le
av

e 
th

is
 ro

w
 b

la
nk

. 

 
 

 
 

 

R
18

 C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 a

nd
 d

ed
ic

at
ed

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t a
cc

es
s 

to
 lo

ca
l 

ca
re

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

ov
er

 th
e 

w
eb

 a
nd

 te
le

ph
on

e 
co

nt
ac

t c
en

tre
s.

 
G

re
en

 
G

re
en

 
G

re
en

 
G

re
en

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 

R
19

 R
em

ot
e 

w
eb

 a
cc

es
s 

or
 m

ed
ia

te
d 

ac
ce

ss
 v

ia
 te

le
ph

on
e 

(in
cl

ud
in

g 
ou

ts
id

e 
of

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
w

or
ki

ng
 h

ou
rs

 a
va

ila
bi

lit
y)

 fo
r a

ut
ho

ris
ed

 o
ffi

ce
rs

 
to

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t i
nd

iv
id

ua
l ‘

ca
re

 p
ac

ka
ge

s’
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 p
ay

m
en

ts
, 

re
qu

es
ts

 fo
r s

er
vi

ce
 a

nd
 re

vi
ew

 d
at

es
. 

R
ed

 
A

m
be

r 
G

re
en

 
G

re
en

 
Ad

ul
ts

 o
n 

ta
rg

et
 fo

r D
ec

em
be

r –
 C

hi
ld

re
ns

 
is

 ju
st

 a
w

ai
tin

g 
fu

rth
er

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t 

cl
ar

ifi
ca

tio
n.

 

G
16

 S
ys

te
m

s 
to

 s
up

po
rt 

jo
in

ed
-u

p 
w

or
ki

ng
 o

n 
ch

ild
re

n 
at

 ri
sk

 a
cr

os
s 

m
ul

tip
le

 a
ge

nc
ie

s.
 

R
ed

 
R

ed
 

A
m

be
r 

G
re

en
 

C
AF

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 is

su
ed

 a
nd

 p
ro

je
ct

 
te

am
 to

 b
e 

fo
rm

ed
 a

cr
os

s 
ch

ild
re

n’
s 

se
rv

ic
es

 –
 IC

S 
An

ite
 w

ill 
de

liv
er

 a
s 

so
on

 a
t 

G
ov

 d
ec

id
es

 o
n 

th
e 

w
ay

 fo
rw

ar
d.

  .
 

G
17

 J
oi

nt
 a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 n
ee

ds
 o

f v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

pe
op

le
 (c

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

ad
ul

ts
), 

us
in

g 
m

ob
ile

 te
ch

no
lo

gy
 to

 s
up

po
rt 

w
or

ke
rs

 in
 th

e 
fie

ld
. 

R
ed

 
A

m
be

r 
A

m
be

r 
G

re
en

 
M

ob
ile

 te
ch

no
lo

gy
 n

ow
 b

ei
ng

 ro
lle

d 
ou

t 
ac

ro
ss

 A
du

lt 
se

rv
ic

es
, C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
w

ill 
de

pe
nd

 o
n 

th
e 

ab
ov

e.
 

E1
5 

If 
al

re
ad

y 
‘g

re
en

’ o
n 

R
18

, R
19

, G
16

 &
 G

17
 a

bo
ve

, p
le

as
e 

co
m

m
en

t o
n 

ag
re

ed
 b

as
el

in
e 

an
d 

ta
rg

et
s 

fo
r c

us
to

m
er

 s
at

is
fa

ct
io

n,
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t i
n 

nu
m

be
rs

 o
f u

se
rs

/c
ar

er
s 

w
ho

 s
ai

d 
th

at
 th

ey
 

go
t h

el
p 

qu
ic

kl
y 

(B
VP

I 5
7)

 in
 th

e 
co

lu
m

n 
op

po
si

te
.  

O
th

er
w

is
e,

 le
av

e 
th

is
 ro

w
 b

la
nk

. 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 19



 

IE
G

4.
5 

Fi
na

l V
er

si
on

 
 

16

R
20

 E
m

ai
l a

nd
 In

te
rn

et
 a

cc
es

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 fo

r a
ll 

M
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 s
ta

ff 
th

at
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

a 
ne

ed
 fo

r i
t. 

G
re

en
 

G
re

en
 

G
re

en
 

G
re

en
 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 

R
21

 IC
T 

su
pp

or
t a

nd
 d

oc
um

en
te

d 
po

lic
y 

fo
r h

om
e/

re
m

ot
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 
(te

le
w

or
ki

ng
) f

or
 c

ou
nc

il 
m

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 s

ta
ff.

 
A

m
be

r 
 A

m
be

r 
G

re
en

 
G

re
en

 
Po

lic
y 

be
in

g 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 in

 c
on

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 
H

R
 

R
22

 A
cc

es
s 

to
 h

om
e/

re
m

ot
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
to

 a
ll 

co
un

ci
l m

em
be

rs
 

an
d 

st
af

f t
ha

t s
at

is
fy

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 s
et

 b
y 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’s

 p
ub

lis
he

d 
ho

m
e/

re
m

ot
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 p
ol

ic
y.

 
A

m
be

r 
 A

m
be

r 
G

re
en

 
G

re
en

 
Po

lic
y 

be
in

g 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 in

 c
on

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 
H

R
 (S

ee
 R

21
) 

G
18

 E
st

ab
lis

hm
en

t o
f e

-s
ki

lls
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
fo

r c
ou

nc
il 

m
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 s
ta

ff 
w

ith
 re

co
gn

is
ed

 b
as

ic
 le

ve
l o

f a
tta

in
m

en
t (

e.
g.

 
Eu

ro
pe

an
 C

om
pu

te
r D

riv
in

g 
Li

ce
nc

e,
 B

rit
is

h 
C

om
pu

te
r S

oc
ie

ty
 

Q
ua

lif
ic

at
io

n 
“e

-C
iti

ze
n”

). 
A

m
be

r 
A

m
be

r 

  A
m

be
r 

  G
re

en
 

R
e 

th
e 

EC
D

L,
 w

e 
ha

ve
 a

 th
re

e 
pr

on
ge

d 
at

ta
ck

.  
Th

e 
Ad

ul
t C

ol
le

ge
 h

av
e 

of
fe

re
d 

to
 

us
e 

th
ei

r f
ac

ilit
ie

s 
to

 tr
ai

n 
al

l m
em

be
rs

 o
f 

C
ou

nc
il 

st
af

f. 
 W

e 
ar

e 
cu

rre
nt

ly
 ru

nn
in

g 
w

ee
kl

y 
lu

nc
h 

tim
e 

EC
D

L 
co

ur
se

s.
  W

e 
ar

e 
co

ns
id

er
in

g 
an

 In
te

ra
ct

iv
e 

M
ul

tim
ed

ia
 

tra
in

in
g 

pi
lo

t f
or

 2
00

 s
ta

ff.
 

E1
6 

If 
al

re
ad

y 
‘g

re
en

’ o
n 

R
20

, R
21

, R
22

 &
 G

18
 a

bo
ve

, p
le

as
e 

co
m

m
en

t o
n 

ag
re

ed
 ta

rg
et

s 
fo

r b
as

el
in

e 
an

d 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

sa
vi

ng
s 

ar
is

in
g 

fro
m

 th
e 

in
tro

du
ct

io
n 

of
 n

ew
 w

ay
s 

of
 w

or
ki

ng
 in

 th
e 

co
lu

m
n 

op
po

si
te

.  
O

th
er

w
is

e,
 le

av
e 

th
is

 ro
w

 b
la

nk
. 

 
 

 
 

 

R
23

 S
el

f-s
er

vi
ce

 o
r m

ed
ia

te
d 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 a
ll 

co
un

ci
l s

er
vi

ce
s 

ou
ts

id
e 

st
an

da
rd

 w
or

ki
ng

 h
ou

rs
 v

ia
 th

e 
In

te
rn

et
 o

r t
el

ep
ho

ne
 c

on
ta

ct
 c

en
tre

s 
(i.

e.
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

fo
r e

xt
en

de
d 

ho
ur

s 
ou

ts
id

e 
of

 9
am

-5
pm

 M
on

da
y 

to
 

Fr
id

ay
). 

A
m

be
r 

A
m

be
r 

  A
m

be
r 

  G
re

en
  

W
ill 

be
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 b
y 

C
us

to
m

er
 F

irs
t 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill 
ru

n 
un

til
 2

00
6/

7.
  

In
iti

al
 s

ta
ge

s 
co

m
pl

et
ed

.  
G

re
en

 s
ta

tu
s 

ba
se

d 
on

 “p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
w

ith
 p

la
ns

 fo
r e

xt
en

de
d 

ro
llo

ut
 o

n 
an

 
en

te
rp

ris
e 

ba
si

s”
. 

R
24

 Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 a
 c

on
te

nt
 m

an
ag

em
en

t s
ys

te
m

 (C
M

S)
 to

 
fa

ci
lit

at
e 

de
vo

lv
ed

 w
eb

 c
on

te
nt

 c
re

at
io

n 
an

d 
w

eb
si

te
 m

an
ag

em
en

t. 
 

A
m

be
r 

 A
m

be
r 

 
G

re
en

 
 

G
re

en
 

In
-h

ou
se

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f C

M
S 

un
de

rw
ay

 

G
19

 A
do

pt
io

n 
of

 IS
O

 1
54

89
 m

et
ho

do
lo

gy
 fo

r E
le

ct
ro

ni
c 

D
oc

um
en

t 
R

ec
or

ds
 M

an
ag

em
en

t (
ER

D
M

) a
nd

 id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 a
re

as
 w

he
re

 
cu

rre
nt

 re
co

rd
s 

m
an

ag
em

en
t p

ol
ic

ie
s,

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

an
d 

sy
st

em
s 

ne
ed

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t t
o 

m
ee

t t
he

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f F

re
ed

om
 o

f I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
(F

O
I) 

 a
nd

 D
at

a 
Pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

le
gi

sl
at

io
n 

(s
ee

 
w

w
w

.p
ro

.g
ov

.u
k/

ab
ou

t/f
oi

/m
ap

-lo
ca

l.r
tf )

. 

 
R

ed
 

 
R

ed
 

 
R

ed
 

  R
ed

 

W
or

k 
ha

s 
st

ar
te

d 
on

 a
 d

oc
um

en
t r

et
en

tio
n 

& 
di

sp
os

al
 p

ol
ic

y 
as

 a
 fi

rs
t s

ta
ge

 o
f g

oo
d 

re
co

rd
s 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l. 
 

Fu
nd

in
g 

& 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

ar
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 

im
pl

em
en

t p
ol

ic
ie

s,
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
& 

sy
st

em
s 

fo
r I

SO
15

48
9.
 

G
20

 C
on

fo
rm

an
ce

 w
ith

 le
ve

l A
A 

of
 W

3C
 W

eb
 A

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y 

In
iti

at
iv

e 
(W

AI
) s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 o
n 

w
eb

si
te

 a
cc

es
si

bi
lit

y 
 (s

ee
 w

w
w

.w
3.

or
g/

W
AI

). 
G

re
en

 
G

re
en

 
G

re
en

 
G

re
en

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

.  
Th

e 
LB

BD
 w

eb
si

te
 is

 li
st

ed
 in

 
th

e 
to

p 
20

 s
ite

s 
in

 th
e 

co
un

try
 b

y 
So

cI
TM

 
20

05
 

G
21

 C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t I

nt
er

op
er

ab
ilit

y 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

(e
-

G
IF

), 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t M

et
ad

at
a 

St
an

da
rd

 (e
-G

M
S)

 (s
ee

 
w

w
w

.e
gi

fc
om

pl
ia

nc
e.

or
g 

& 
w

w
w

.g
ov

ta
lk

.g
ov

.u
k)

. 
 

R
ed

 

 
R

ed
 

 
R

ed
 

A
m

be
r 

W
he

re
 s

up
pl

ie
r’s

 s
ys

te
m

s 
ar

e 
eG

IF
 

co
m

pl
ia

nt
, t

hi
s 

w
ill 

be
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 b
y 

C
us

to
m

er
 F

irs
t p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill 

ru
n 

un
til

 2
00

6/
7.

  I
ni

tia
l s

ta
ge

s 
co

m
pl

et
ed

.  
C

ur
re

nt
ly

 a
ll 

W
eb

 p
ag

es
 a

re
 e

G
M

S 
co

m
pl

ia
nt

. 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 e

G
M

S 
fo

r 

Page 20



 

IE
G

4.
5 

Fi
na

l V
er

si
on

 
 

17

do
cu

m
en

ts
 w

ill 
be

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

w
he

n 
ou

r 
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

in
to

 IS
O

15
48

9 
ha

s 
be

en
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 (s

ee
 G

19
). 
 

E1
7 

If 
al

re
ad

y 
‘g

re
en

’ o
n 

R
23

, R
24

, G
19

, G
20

 &
 G

21
 a

bo
ve

, p
le

as
e 

co
m

m
en

t o
n 

ag
re

ed
 b

as
el

in
e 

an
d 

ta
rg

et
s 

fo
r e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 s
av

in
gs

 b
as

ed
 

ar
ou

nd
 im

pr
ov

ed
 a

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

in
 th

e 
co

lu
m

n 
op

po
si

te
.  

O
th

er
w

is
e,

 le
av

e 
th

is
 ro

w
 b

la
nk

. 

 
 

 
 

 

R
25

 O
nl

in
e 

pu
bl

ic
at

io
n 

of
 In

te
rn

et
 s

er
vi

ce
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 p

as
t 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 a

nd
 c

om
m

itm
en

ts
 o

n 
se

rv
ic

e 
av

ai
la

bi
lit

y.
 

G
re

en
 

G
re

en
 

G
re

en
 

G
re

en
 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 

R
26

 M
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
f c

or
po

ra
te

 w
eb

si
te

, o
r r

eg
io

na
l w

eb
 

po
rta

l, 
be

tw
ee

n 
20

03
/0

4 
an

d 
20

05
/0

6 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 ri
si

ng
 

an
d 

su
st

ai
ne

d 
us

e,
 a

s 
m

ea
su

re
d 

by
 in

du
st

ry
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
pa

ge
 im

pr
es

si
on

s 
an

d 
un

iq
ue

 u
se

rs
. 

G
re

en
 

G
re

en
 

G
re

en
 

G
re

en
 

It 
is

 w
or

th
 n

ot
in

g 
th

at
 o

ur
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

fo
re

ca
st

 
fo

r 0
4/

05
 w

as
 4

19
,0

00
 T

he
 a

ct
ua

l w
as

 
41

9,
47

1.
 

G
22

 E
st

ab
lis

hm
en

t o
f i

nt
er

na
l t

ar
ge

ts
 a

nd
 m

ea
su

re
s 

fo
r c

us
to

m
er

 
ta

ke
-u

p 
of

 e
-e

na
bl

ed
 a

cc
es

s 
ch

an
ne

ls
. 

A
m

be
r 

A
m

be
r 

A
m

be
r 

G
re

en
 

W
ill 

be
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 b
y 

C
us

to
m

er
 F

irs
t 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill 
ru

n 
un

til
 2

00
6/

7.
  

In
iti

al
 s

ta
ge

s 
co

m
pl

et
ed

.  
G

re
en

 s
ta

tu
s 

ba
se

d 
on

 “p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
w

ith
 p

la
ns

 fo
r e

xt
en

de
d 

ro
llo

ut
 o

n 
an

 
en

te
rp

ris
e 

ba
si

s”
. 

G
23

 A
do

pt
io

n 
of

 re
co

gn
is

ed
 g

ui
de

lin
es

 fo
r u

sa
bi

lit
y 

of
 w

eb
si

te
 d

es
ig

n 
(s

ee
 w

w
w

.la
w

s-
pr

oj
ec

t.o
rg

.u
k)

. 
G

re
en

 
G

re
en

 
G

re
en

 
G

re
en

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 

E1
8 

If 
al

re
ad

y 
‘g

re
en

’ o
n 

R
25

, R
26

, G
22

 &
 G

23
 a

bo
ve

, p
le

as
e 

co
m

m
en

t o
n 

ag
re

ed
 b

as
el

in
e 

an
d 

ta
ke

-u
p 

ta
rg

et
s 

fo
r m

ig
ra

tio
n 

of
 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
bu

si
ne

ss
 to

 e
-a

cc
es

s 
ch

an
ne

ls
 (e

.g
. w

eb
, t

el
ep

ho
ne

 
co

nt
ac

t c
en

tre
s,

 In
te

ra
ct

iv
e 

D
ig

ita
l T

V,
 m

ob
ile

 te
le

ph
on

e)
 b

y 
20

05
/0

6,
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

sa
vi

ng
s 

in
 th

e 
co

lu
m

n 
op

po
si

te
.  

O
th

er
w

is
e,

 le
av

e 
th

is
 ro

w
 b

la
nk

. 

 
 

 
 

 

R
27

 S
ys

te
m

s 
in

 p
la

ce
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
an

d 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 c
us

to
m

er
 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
p 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

cr
os

s 
ac

ce
ss

 c
ha

nn
el

s 
an

d 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 

‘fi
rs

t t
im

e 
fix

’ f
or

 c
iti

ze
n 

an
d 

bu
si

ne
ss

 e
nq

ui
rie

s,
 i.

e.
 u

si
ng

 a
 c

om
m

on
 

da
ta

ba
se

, w
hi

ch
 h

ol
ds

 c
us

to
m

er
’s

 re
co

rd
s,

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

ac
ro

ss
 

di
ffe

re
nt

 c
ha

nn
el

s,
 a

nd
 e

na
bl

in
g 

jo
in

ed
-u

p 
an

d 
au

to
m

at
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

 
de

liv
er

y.
 

A
m

be
r 

A
m

be
r 

A
m

be
r 

G
re

en
  

W
ill 

be
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 b
y 

C
us

to
m

er
 F

irs
t 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill 
ru

n 
un

til
 2

00
6/

7.
  

In
iti

al
 s

ta
ge

s 
co

m
pl

et
ed

.  
G

re
en

 s
ta

tu
s 

ba
se

d 
on

 “p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
w

ith
 p

la
ns

 fo
r e

xt
en

de
d 

ro
llo

ut
 o

n 
an

 
en

te
rp

ris
e 

ba
si

s”
.  

Th
is

 u
nd

er
pi

ns
 th

e 
LB

BD
 

“D
on

e-
in

-O
ne

” c
am

pa
ig

n.
 

R
28

 A
ll 

em
ai

l a
nd

 w
eb

 fo
rm

 a
ck

no
w

le
dg

em
en

ts
 to

 in
cl

ud
e 

un
iq

ue
 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
nu

m
be

r a
llo

ca
te

d 
to

 a
llo

w
 tr

ac
ki

ng
 o

f e
nq

ui
ry

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

 
re

sp
on

se
. 

A
m

be
r 

A
m

be
r 

A
m

be
r 

G
re

en
  

W
ill 

be
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 b
y 

C
us

to
m

er
 F

irs
t 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill 
ru

n 
un

til
 2

00
6/

7.
  

G
re

en
 s

ta
tu

s 
ba

se
d 

on
 “p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 
st

an
da

rd
s 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 w
ith

 p
la

ns
 fo

r e
xt

en
de

d 
ro

llo
ut

 o
n 

an
 e

nt
er

pr
is

e 
ba

si
s”

.  
Th

is
 

un
de

rp
in

s 
th

e 
LB

BD
 “D

on
e-

in
-O

ne
” 

ca
m

pa
ig

n.
 

Page 21



 

IE
G

4.
5 

Fi
na

l V
er

si
on

 
 

18

R
29

 1
00

%
 o

f e
m

ai
l e

nq
ui

rie
s 

fro
m

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 re

sp
on

de
d 

to
 w

ith
in

 o
ne

 
w

or
ki

ng
 d

ay
, w

ith
 d

oc
um

en
te

d 
co

rp
or

at
e 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 fo
r 

bo
th

 e
m

ai
l a

ck
no

w
le

dg
em

en
ts

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

 re
pl

ie
s 

R
ed

 
A

m
be

r 
A

m
be

r 
G

re
en

 

W
ill 

be
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 b
y 

C
us

to
m

er
 F

irs
t 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill 
ru

n 
un

til
 2

00
6/

7.
  

In
iti

al
 s

ta
ge

s 
co

m
pl

et
ed

.  
G

re
en

 s
ta

tu
s 

ba
se

d 
on

 “p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
w

ith
 p

la
ns

 fo
r e

xt
en

de
d 

ro
llo

ut
 o

n 
an

 
en

te
rp

ris
e 

ba
si

s”
.  

Th
is

 u
nd

er
pi

ns
 th

e 
LB

BD
 

“D
on

e-
in

-O
ne

” c
am

pa
ig

n.
 

G
24

 In
te

gr
at

io
n 

of
 c

us
to

m
er

 re
la

tio
ns

hi
p 

m
an

ag
em

en
t s

ys
te

m
s 

w
ith

 
ba

ck
 o

ffi
ce

 a
ct

iv
ity

 th
ro

ug
h 

us
e 

of
 e

na
bl

in
g 

te
ch

no
lo

gy
 s

uc
h 

as
 

W
or

kf
lo

w
 to

 c
re

at
e 

co
m

pl
et

e 
au

to
m

at
io

n 
of

 b
us

in
es

s 
pr

oc
es

s 
m

an
ag

em
en

t. 
A

m
be

r 
A

m
be

r 
A

m
be

r 
G

re
en

  

W
ill 

be
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 b
y 

C
us

to
m

er
 F

irs
t 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill 
ru

n 
un

til
 2

00
6/

7.
  

In
iti

al
 s

ta
ge

s 
co

m
pl

et
ed

.  
G

re
en

 s
ta

tu
s 

ba
se

d 
on

 “p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
w

ith
 p

la
ns

 fo
r e

xt
en

de
d 

ro
llo

ut
 o

n 
an

 
en

te
rp

ris
e 

ba
si

s”
.  

Th
is

 u
nd

er
pi

ns
 th

e 
LB

BD
 

“D
on

e-
in

-O
ne

” c
am

pa
ig

n.
 

G
25

 F
ac

ilit
ie

s 
to

 s
up

po
rt 

th
e 

si
ng

le
 n

ot
ifi

ca
tio

n 
of

 a
 c

ha
ng

e 
of

 
ad

dr
es

s,
 i.

e.
 a

 c
iti

ze
n 

sh
ou

ld
 o

nl
y 

ha
ve

 to
 te

ll 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l t
he

y 
ha

ve
 

m
ov

ed
 o

n 
on

e 
oc

ca
si

on
 a

nd
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l s
ho

ul
d 

th
en

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 

up
da

te
 a

ll 
re

co
rd

s 
re

la
tin

g 
to

 th
at

 p
er

so
n 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
ne

w
 a

dd
re

ss
. 

A
m

be
r 

A
m

be
r 

A
m

be
r 

G
re

en
  

W
ill 

be
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 b
y 

C
us

to
m

er
 F

irs
t 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill 
ru

n 
un

til
 2

00
6/

7.
  

In
iti

al
 s

ta
ge

s 
co

m
pl

et
ed

.  
G

re
en

 s
ta

tu
s 

ba
se

d 
on

 “p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
w

ith
 p

la
ns

 fo
r e

xt
en

de
d 

ro
llo

ut
 o

n 
an

 
en

te
rp

ris
e 

ba
si

s”
.  

Th
is

 u
nd

er
pi

ns
 th

e 
LB

BD
 

“D
on

e-
in

-O
ne

” c
am

pa
ig

n.
 

E1
9 

If 
al

re
ad

y 
‘g

re
en

’ o
n 

R
27

, R
28

, R
29

, G
24

 &
 G

25
 a

bo
ve

, p
le

as
e 

co
m

m
en

t o
n 

ag
re

ed
 b

as
el

in
e 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t t

ar
ge

ts
 fo

r t
he

 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f p

ub
lic

 e
nq

ui
rie

s 
ab

ou
t c

ou
nc

il 
se

rv
ic

es
 re

so
lv

ed
 a

t f
irs

t 
po

in
t o

f c
on

ta
ct

 a
nd

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 s

av
in

gs
 re

su
lti

ng
 fr

om
 in

ve
st

m
en

t i
n 

cu
st

om
er

 re
la

tio
ns

hi
p 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 w

or
kf

lo
w

 te
ch

no
lo

gy
 in

 th
e 

co
lu

m
n 

op
po

si
te

.  
O

th
er

w
is

e,
 le

av
e 

th
is

 ro
w

 b
la

nk
. 

 
 

 
 

 

 Se
ct

io
n 

2 
– 

C
ha

ng
e 

M
an

ag
em

en
t (

se
lf-

as
se

ss
m

en
t) 

Au
th

or
iti

es
 a

re
 a

sk
ed

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 a
dv

is
or

y 
go

od
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

ou
tc

om
es

 re
la

tin
g 

to
 th

e 
in

te
rn

al
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
n 

an
d 

m
an

ag
em

en
t p

ra
ct

ic
es

 o
f t

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
th

at
 a

re
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 h
el

p 
de

liv
er

 th
e 

pe
op

le
, s

ys
te

m
s 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t c

ha
ng

es
 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
fo

r e
-g

ov
er

nm
en

t. 
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
su

pp
lie

d 
he

re
 w

ill 
be

 u
se

d 
to

 in
fo

rm
 n

at
io

na
l p

ol
ic

y,
 b

ut
 d

oe
s 

no
t f

al
l w

ith
in

 th
e 

re
m

it 
of

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

5 
ta

rg
et

. 

Page 22



 

IE
G

4.
5 

Fi
na

l V
er

si
on

 
 

19

• 
Ap

po
in

tm
en

t o
f p

eo
pl

e 
to

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ke

y 
lo

ca
l e

-g
ov

er
nm

en
t 

fu
nc

tio
ns

 in
 y

ou
r C

ou
nc

il 
(s

ee
 h

ttp
://

w
w

w
.id

ea
-

kn
ow

le
dg

e.
go

v.
uk

/id
k/

ai
o/

20
67

57
: 

  
i) 

M
em

be
r &

 o
ffi

ce
r e

-c
ha

m
pi

on
s 

   
 ii)

 
e-

go
ve

rn
m

en
t p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
m

an
ag

er
 

 
iii)

 
cu

st
om

er
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

  • 
In

cl
us

io
n 

of
 c

om
pe

te
nc

y 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f t

he
 a

bo
ve

 k
ey

 fu
nc

tio
ns

 
an

d 
tra

in
in

g 
fo

r s
ta

ff 
af

fe
ct

ed
 b

y 
e-

G
ov

er
nm

en
t p

ro
je

ct
s,

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il's

 w
or

kf
or

ce
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

la
nn

in
g 

• 
Es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
t o

f a
n 

e-
de

liv
er

y 
bo

ar
d8  

 • 
U

se
 o

f f
or

m
al

is
ed

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

& 
pr

oj
ec

t m
an

ag
em

en
t 

m
et

ho
do

lo
gi

es
 (e

.g
. P

R
IN

C
E2

)  
to

 s
up

po
rt 

e-
de

liv
er

y 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 

• 
D

oc
um

en
ta

tio
n/

ag
re

em
en

t o
f c

or
po

ra
te

 ri
sk

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

st
ra

te
gy

 fo
r r

ol
l-o

ut
 o

f l
oc

al
 e

-g
ov

er
nm

en
t, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
re

gu
la

r 
re

vi
ew

 o
f r

is
k 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

 • 
U

se
 o

f c
us

to
m

er
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n/
re

se
ar

ch
 to

 in
fo

rm
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f 
co

rp
or

at
e 

e-
go

ve
rn

m
en

t s
tra

te
gy

 

• 
Es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
t o

f p
ol

ic
y 

fo
r a

dd
re

ss
in

g 
so

ci
al

 in
cl

us
io

n 
w

ith
in

 
co

rp
or

at
e 

e-
go

ve
rn

m
en

t s
tra

te
gy

 

  • 
Ap

po
in

tm
en

t o
f o

ffi
ce

r(s
) t

o 
le

ad
 o

n 
co

rp
or

at
e 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
as

se
ts

 a
nd

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

le
gi

sl
at

io
n 

(e
.g

. F
re

ed
om

 o
f 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

Ac
t) 

  • 
Es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
t o

f P
ub

lic
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Tr
us

t C
ha

rte
r r

e 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 
pe

rs
on

al
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
co

lle
ct

ed
 to

 d
el

iv
er

 im
pr

ov
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

s,
 

i
l

di
d

t
h

i
t

lf
k

(

   G
re

en
 

  G
re

en
 

G
re

en
 

 G
re

en
 

 G
re

en
 

 G
re

en
 

  G
re

en
 

  
G

re
en

 
 

G
re

en
 

  G
re

en
 

 R
ed

 

   G
re

en
 

  G
re

en
 

G
re

en
 

 G
re

en
 

 G
re

en
 

 G
re

en
 

  G
re

en
 

  G
re

en
  

G
re

en
 

  

G
re

en
 

 R
ed

 

   G
re

en
 

  G
re

en
 

G
re

en
 

 G
re

en
 

 G
re

en
 

 G
re

en
 

  G
re

en
 

  G
re

en
  

G
re

en
 

  

G
re

en
 

 R
ed

 

   G
re

en
 

  G
re

en
 

G
re

en
 

 G
re

en
 

 G
re

en
 

 G
re

en
 

  G
re

en
 

  G
re

en
  

G
re

en
 

  

G
re

en
 

 R
ed

 

   M
em

be
r: 

Ac
ce

ss
 &

 In
cl

us
io

n 
po

rtf
ol

io
 

ho
ld

er
. O

ffi
ce

: D
ire

ct
or

 o
f F

in
an

ce
 

 e-
G

ov
er

nm
en

t &
 IC

T 
St

ra
te

gy
 M

an
ag

er
  

C
us

to
m

er
 F

irs
t M

an
ag

er
 

   C
hi

ef
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 a

nd
 C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
(T

he
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t T

ea
m

)  

M
SP

 &
 P

R
IN

C
E2

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
m

et
ho

do
lo

gy
, 

tra
in

in
g 

an
d 

ce
rti

fic
at

io
n 

of
 e

-G
ov

er
nm

en
t 

te
am

 

Ba
la

nc
ed

 s
co

re
ca

rd
 is

 u
se

d 
as

 th
e 

co
rp

or
at

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 to

ol
 w

hi
ch

 
in

cl
ud

es
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l r

is
k 

re
gi

st
er

s.
 

R
eg

ul
ar

 M
O

R
I p

ol
l s

ur
ve

ys
 c

on
du

ct
ed

. A
ls

o 
cu

st
om

er
 s

ur
ve

ys
, c

iti
ze

ns
 p

an
el

 &
 

co
m

m
un

ity
 fo

ru
m

s 
 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 V
illa

ge
s 

in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e,
 G

as
co

ig
ne

 
W

ire
d 

U
p 

C
om

m
un

ity
. F

ur
th

er
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 a
s 

re
su

lt 
of

 C
us

to
m

er
 F

irs
t 

Pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

& 
Su

re
st

ar
t p

ro
gr

am
m

e.
 

H
ea

d 
of

 D
em

oc
ra

tic
 S

up
po

rt 
 

 Th
e 

po
lic

y 
on

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

is
 b

ei
ng

 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
so

 th
is

 p
ro

je
ct

 is
 re

ga
rd

ed
 a

s 
at

 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
8  i

.e
. t

he
 b

oa
rd

 th
at

 h
as

 o
ve

ra
ll 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
fo

r a
ll 

th
e 

e-
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 in

 a
n 

au
th

or
ity

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

ot
he

r g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

is
su

es
 s

uc
h 

as
 o

ve
rs

ee
in

g 
th

e 
ge

ne
ra

l m
an

ag
em

en
t 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
an

d 
th

e 
IC

T 
ar

ch
ite

ct
ur

e 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 e
-g

ov
er

nm
en

t. 
9  A

re
as

 w
he

re
 b

en
ef

its
 m

ay
 b

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
cl

ud
e 

po
lic

y 
or

 le
ga

l r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t (
re

qu
ire

d)
, q

ua
lit

y 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

, i
nt

er
na

l m
an

ag
em

en
t, 

pr
oc

es
s 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t (

pr
od

uc
tiv

ity
 o

r 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y)

, P
er

so
nn

el
 o

r H
R

 m
an

ag
em

en
t, 

ris
k 

re
du

ct
io

n,
 fl

ex
ib

ilit
y,

 e
co

no
m

y,
 re

ve
nu

e 
en

ha
nc

em
en

t o
r a

cc
el

er
at

io
n,

 s
tra

te
gi

c 
fit

.  

Page 23



 

IE
G

4.
5 

Fi
na

l V
er

si
on

 
 

20

in
cl

ud
in

g 
da

ta
 s

ha
rin

g 
pr

ot
oc

ol
 fr

am
ew

or
k 

(s
ee

 
ht

tp
://

w
w

w
.d

ca
.g

ov
.u

k/
fo

i/s
ha

rin
g/

to
ol

ki
t/l

aw
gu

id
e.

pd
f  

& 
ht

tp
://

w
w

w
.g

ov
ta

lk
.g

ov
.u

k/
do

cu
m

en
ts

/e
Tr

us
tg

ui
de

go
vt

al
k.

rtf
) a

nd
 

de
si

gn
at

io
n 

of
 a

n 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Sh

ar
in

g 
O

ffi
ce

r 
 • 

Es
ta

bl
is

hm
en

t o
f p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

fo
r t

he
 jo

in
t (

ag
gr

eg
at

ed
) 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t o

f b
ro

ad
ba

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

 • 
En

ga
ge

m
en

t w
ith

 in
te

rm
ed

ia
rie

s 
re

 a
dd

re
ss

in
g 

is
su

es
 o

f t
ak

e 
up

 
an

d 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

in
 th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 e
-g

ov
er

nm
en

t s
er

vi
ce

s 
(e

.g
. 

C
iti

ze
ns

 A
dv

ic
e 

Bu
re

au
x)

 a
nd

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
in

te
rm

ed
ia

rie
s 

co
m

po
ne

nt
 o

f G
ov

er
nm

en
t C

on
ne

ct
 (s

ee
 

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.g
ov

ta
lk

.g
ov

.u
k/

do
cu

m
en

ts
/in

te
rm

ed
ia

rie
s_

po
lic

y_
do

c
um

en
t.p

df
 &

 h
ttp

://
w

w
w

.g
ov

co
nn

ec
t.g

ov
.u

k/
cc

m
/p

or
ta

l/)
 

• 
C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 B

S 
77

99
 o

n 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
se

cu
rit

y 
m

an
ag

em
en

t  

  � 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 B

en
ef

its
 R

ea
lis

at
io

n 
Pl

an
9  fo

r d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 lo
ca

l 
e-

go
ve

rn
m

en
t p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 

 � 
C

om
pl

et
io

n 
of

 m
ap

pi
ng

 o
f L

oc
al

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s 

Li
st

 
tra

ns
ac

tio
ns

 a
ga

in
st

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
se

cu
rit

y 
le

ve
ls

 (0
-3

) (
se

e 
ht

tp
://

w
w

w
.e

sd
.o

rg
.u

k/
st

an
da

rd
s/

lg
sl

/lg
sl

.d
oc

 &
  

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.a
ut

he
nt

ic
at

io
n.

or
g.

uk
/le

ve
ls

.a
sp

 &
 h

ttp
://

e-
go

ve
rn

m
en

t.c
ab

in
et

of
fic

e.
go

v.
uk

/a
ss

et
R

oo
t/0

4/
00

/2
2/

40
/0

40
02

2
40

.d
oc

) 

� 
Pl

an
ne

d 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
to

 H
M

G
 S

ec
ur

ity
 a

nd
 a

ut
he

nt
ic

at
io

n 
fra

m
ew

or
ks

 th
ro

ug
h 

co
m

m
itm

en
t t

o 
ci

tiz
en

, e
m

pl
oy

ee
 a

nd
 

vo
lu

nt
ee

r a
cc

ou
nt

 re
gi

st
ra

tio
n 

in
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t C
on

ne
ct

  (
se

e 
ht

tp
://

w
w

w
.g

ov
co

nn
ec

t.g
ov

.u
k/

cc
m

/p
or

ta
l/ 

& 
ht

tp
://

e-
go

ve
rn

m
en

t.c
ab

in
et

of
fic

e.
go

v.
uk

/a
ss

et
R

oo
t/0

4/
00

/2
2/

45
/0

40
02

2
45

.d
oc

 &
 h

ttp
://

e-
go

ve
rn

m
en

t.c
ab

in
et

of
fic

e.
go

v.
uk

/a
ss

et
R

oo
t/0

4/
00

/2
2/

43
/0

40
02

2
43

.d
oc

 &
 h

ttp
://

e-
go

ve
rn

m
en

t.c
ab

in
et

of
fic

e.
go

v.
uk

/a
ss

et
R

oo
t/0

4/
00

/2
2/

40
/0

40
02

2
40

.d
oc

 &
 h

ttp
://

e-
go

ve
rn

m
en

t.c
ab

in
et

of
fic

e.
go

v.
uk

/a
ss

et
R

oo
t/0

4/
00

/2
0/

53
/0

40
02

0
53

.d
oc

 &
 h

ttp
://

e-
go

ve
rn

m
en

t.c
ab

in
et

of
fic

e.
go

v.
uk

/a
ss

et
R

oo
t/0

4/
00

/3
9/

39
/0

40
03

9
39

.d
oc

) 

� 
C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 a

n 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t t
ru

st
 s

ch
em

e 
ap

pr
ov

al
 p

ro
ce

ss
 

de
si

gn
ed

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 fo
r i

nd
iv

id
ua

ls
 a

nd
 c

om
pa

ni
es

 
us

in
g 

or
 re

ly
in

g 
up

on
 e

-b
us

in
es

s 
tra

ns
ac

tio
ns

 (s
ee

 
w

w
w

.ts
ch

em
e.

or
g)

 a
nd

 w
hi

ch
 w

ill 
w

or
k 

w
ith

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t 

C
on

ne
ct

 (s
ee

 h
ttp

://
w

w
w

.g
ov

co
nn

ec
t.g

ov
.u

k/
cc

m
/p

or
ta

l/)
 

   G
re

en
 

  R
ed

 

  R
ed

 
   R

ed
 

  R
ed

 
  R

ed
 

       R
ed

 
  

   G
re

en
 

  R
ed

 

  R
ed

 
   R

ed
 

  R
ed

 
  R

ed
 

         R
ed

 

   

   G
re

en
 

  R
ed

 

  R
ed

 
   R

ed
 

  G
re

en
 

  R
ed

 
       R

ed
 

  

   G
re

en
 

  R
ed

 

  R
ed

 
   R

ed
 

  G
re

en
 

  R
ed

 
       R

ed
 

  

th
e 

re
se

ar
ch

 s
ta

ge
 

 LB
BD

 h
av

e 
pa

rti
ci

pa
te

d 
in

 th
e 

Lo
nd

on
 G

rid
 

fo
r L

ea
rn

in
g 

 Th
is

 p
ro

je
ct

 is
 a

t t
he

 re
se

ar
ch

 s
ta

ge
.  

W
he

n 
w

e 
ha

ve
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 th
e 

re
se

ar
ch

, L
BB

D
 w

ill 
th

en
 e

va
lu

at
e 

th
e 

re
se

ar
ch

 &
 ta

ke
 a

 v
ie

w
 

 Th
e 

po
lic

y 
on

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

is
 b

ei
ng

 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
so

 th
is

 p
ro

je
ct

 is
 re

ga
rd

ed
 a

s 
at

 
th

e 
re

se
ar

ch
 s

ta
ge

 

 W
ill 

be
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

eG
ov

er
nm

en
t 

Pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

te
am

. 

 LB
BD

 h
as

 s
ig

ne
d 

up
 fo

r E
SD

-T
oo

lk
it 

R
is

k 
As

se
ss

m
en

t P
ro

je
ct

 a
nd

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 it

’s
 

in
iti

al
 re

tu
rn

s.
  W

e 
w

er
e 

th
e 

fir
st

 B
or

ou
gh

 in
 

th
e 

co
un

try
 to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
th

e 
re

tu
rn

s 

 Th
is

 p
ro

je
ct

 is
 a

t t
he

 re
se

ar
ch

 s
ta

ge
.  

W
he

n 
w

e 
ha

ve
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 th
e 

re
se

ar
ch

, L
BB

D
 w

ill 
th

en
 e

va
lu

at
e 

th
e 

re
se

ar
ch

 &
 ta

ke
 a

 v
ie

w
 

     Th
is

 p
ro

je
ct

 is
 a

t t
he

 re
se

ar
ch

 s
ta

ge
.  

W
he

n 
w

e 
ha

ve
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 th
e 

re
se

ar
ch

, L
BB

D
 w

ill 
th

en
 e

va
lu

at
e 

th
e 

re
se

ar
ch

 &
 ta

ke
 a

 v
ie

w
 

  

Page 24



 

IE
G

4.
5 

Fi
na

l V
er

si
on

 
 

21

 � 
U

se
 o

f G
ov

er
nm

en
t C

on
ne

ct
 (s

ee
 

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.g
ov

co
nn

ec
t.g

ov
.u

k/
cc

m
/p

or
ta

l/)
 to

 s
up

po
rt:

 

i) 
pe

rs
on

al
is

at
io

n 
& 

re
gi

st
ra

tio
n 

fo
r s

er
vi

ce
s 

ca
te

go
ris

ed
 a

t 
se

cu
rit

y 
le

ve
ls

 ‘0
’ a

nd
 '1

' t
hr

ou
gh

 th
e 

ci
tiz

en
 a

cc
ou

nt
 

ii)
 

ad
op

tio
n 

of
 U

ni
qu

e 
ID

en
tif

ie
rs

 (U
ID

s)
 a

nd
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
st

an
da

rd
s,

 a
s 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 in

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t C

on
ne

ct
 

iii)
 

th
e 

be
re

av
em

en
t j

ou
rn

ey
 &

 c
lo

si
ng

 o
f a

cc
ou

nt
s 

(s
ee

 
ht

tp
://

w
w

w
.c

ab
in

et
of

fic
e.

go
v.

uk
/re

gu
la

tio
n/

ps
t/p

ro
je

ct
s/

m
ad

/b
er

ea
ve

.a
sp

  

iv
) 

ci
tiz

en
 &

 b
us

in
es

s 
au

th
en

tic
at

io
n 

fo
r s

er
vi

ce
s 

fo
r 

se
rv

ic
es

 c
at

eg
or

is
ed

 a
t s

ec
ur

ity
 le

ve
ls

 0
-3

 

v)
 

re
gi

st
ra

tio
n 

& 
au

th
en

tic
at

io
n 

of
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
fo

r i
nt

er
na

l 
an

d 
cr

os
s-

ag
en

cy
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

vi
) 

co
rp

or
at

e 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n 

of
 e

-p
ay

m
en

ts
 

vi
i) 

cr
os

s 
ag

en
cy

 s
ec

ur
e 

tra
ns

ac
tio

ns
 (G

ov
er

nm
en

t t
o 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t) 

vi
ii)

 
ac

co
un

t s
tru

ct
ur

es
 fo

r c
iti

ze
ns

, b
us

in
es

se
s,

 p
ro

pe
rty

, 
vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

& 
co

m
m

un
ity

 b
od

ie
s,

 s
ch

oo
ls

 a
nd

 p
ar

is
he

s 

ix
) 

co
m

m
on

 X
M

L 
sc

he
m

a 
an

d 
fra

m
ew

or
ks

 fo
r p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t, 

Lo
ca

l S
tra

te
gi

c 
Pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

s 
an

d 
Lo

ca
l 

Ar
ea

 A
gr

ee
m

en
ts

 (w
he

re
 in

 p
la

ce
) 

x)
 

G
C

 R
eg

is
te

r (
se

e 
ht

tp
://

w
w

w
.g

ov
co

nn
ec

t.g
ov

.u
k/

cc
m

/w
os

s-
de

m
o/

th
e-

pr
og

ra
m

m
e.

en
) 

xi
) 

G
C

 E
xc

ha
ng

e 
(s

ee
 

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.g
ov

co
nn

ec
t.g

ov
.u

k/
cc

m
/w

os
s-

de
m

o/
th

e-
pr

og
ra

m
m

e.
en

) 

• 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t C
on

ne
ct

 (s
ee

 
ht

tp
://

w
w

w
.g

ov
co

nn
ec

t.g
ov

.u
k/

cc
m

/p
or

ta
l/)

 b
ac

k-
of

fic
e 

co
nn

ec
tio

n 
in

 p
la

ce
 (D

ep
ar

tm
en

t I
nt

er
fa

ce
 S

er
ve

r)  

  • 
co

nn
ec

tio
n 

to
 D

ire
ct

go
v 

(s
ee

 h
ttp

://
w

w
w

.d
ire

ct
.g

ov
.u

k)
  f

ro
m

 
co

rp
or

at
e 

w
eb

si
te

 a
nd

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 p
or

ta
l(s

) 
 • 

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 F
re

ed
om

 o
f I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

Ac
t 2

00
0,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
re

sp
on

di
ng

 to
 re

qu
es

ts
 fo

r i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
fro

m
 in

di
vi

du
al

s 
w

ith
in

 a
 

re
as

on
ab

le
 ti

m
e 

pe
rio

d 
(s

ee
 

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.lc
d.

go
v.

uk
/fo

i/f
oi

dp
un

it.
ht

m
 &

 
ht

tp
://

w
w

w
.p

ro
.g

ov
.u

k/
re

co
rd

sm
an

ag
em

en
t/a

cc
es

s/
de

fa
ul

t.h
tm

) 
 

 R
ed

 
                   R

ed
 

   G
re

en
 

 G
re

en
 

  

 R
ed

 

                        R
ed

 

    G
re

en
 

 G
re

en
 

   

 R
ed

 
                   R

ed
 

   G
re

en
 

 G
re

en
 

  

 R
ed

 
                   R

ed
 

   G
re

en
 

 G
re

en
 

  

Th
is

 p
ro

je
ct

 is
 a

t t
he

 re
se

ar
ch

 s
ta

ge
.  

W
he

n 
w

e 
ha

ve
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 th
e 

re
se

ar
ch

, L
BB

D
 w

ill 
th

en
 e

va
lu

at
e 

th
e 

re
se

ar
ch

 &
 ta

ke
 a

 v
ie

w
.  

Th
e 

co
st

/b
en

ef
it 

an
al

ys
is

 n
ee

ds
 to

 b
e 

do
ne

 
& 

th
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

 c
as

e 
ju

st
ifi

ed
 

                 Th
is

 p
ro

je
ct

 is
 a

t t
he

 re
se

ar
ch

 s
ta

ge
.  

W
he

n 
w

e 
ha

ve
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 th
e 

re
se

ar
ch

, L
BB

D
 w

ill 
th

en
 e

va
lu

at
e 

th
e 

re
se

ar
ch

 &
 ta

ke
 a

 v
ie

w
.  

Th
e 

co
st

/b
en

ef
it 

an
al

ys
is

 n
ee

ds
 to

 b
e 

do
ne

 
& 

th
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

 c
as

e 
ju

st
ifi

ed
 

 Av
ai

la
bl

e 
on

 th
e 

LB
BD

 w
eb

si
te

 

 

Th
is

 is
 in

 p
la

ce
 

  

Page 25



 

IE
G

4.
5 

Fi
na

l V
er

si
on

 
 

22

• 
R

eg
ul

ar
ly

-m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

lin
k 

fro
m

 L
oc

al
 L

an
d 

& 
Pr

op
er

ty
 G

az
et

te
er

 
(L

LP
G

) t
o 

N
at

io
na

l L
an

d 
& 

Pr
op

er
ty

 G
az

et
te

er
 (N

LP
G

)  
(s

ee
 

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.n
lp

g.
or

g.
uk

) 
 • 

C
on

ne
ct

io
n 

to
 N

at
io

na
l L

an
d 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
e 

(N
LI

S)
 a

t L
ev

el
 

3 
(s

ee
 h

ttp
://

w
w

w
.n

lis
.o

rg
.u

k)
 

 • 
In

tro
du

ct
io

n 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f a
n 

on
lin

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
di

re
ct

or
y 

fo
r 

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
ls

 w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
& 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

, a
nd

 a
llo

w
in

g 
pu

bl
ic

 a
cc

es
s 

w
he

re
 p

os
si

bl
e 

(fo
r 

fu
rth

er
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
se

e 
ht

tp
://

w
w

w
.d

fe
s.

go
v.

uk
/is

a )
 

   

 G
re

en
 

 G
re

en
 

 G
re

en
 

 

 G
re

en
 

 G
re

en
 

  G
re

en
 

 

 G
re

en
 

 G
re

en
 

 G
re

en
 

 

 G
re

en
 

 G
re

en
 

 G
re

en
 

 

 

Th
is

 is
 in

 p
la

ce
 

 

Th
is

 is
 in

 p
la

ce
 

 

C
ar

ew
eb

 in
 p

la
ce

 

   

  

 

Page 26



 

IE
G

4.
5 

Fi
na

l V
er

si
on

 
 

23

 
 

A
ct

ua
l 

Fo
re

ca
st

 
B

VP
I 1

57
 In

te
ra

ct
io

n 
Ty

pe
 

Fo
re

ca
st

 a
ve

ra
ge

 IE
G

3 
 

%
 e

-e
na

bl
ed

 p
os

iti
on

 in
 

20
04

/0
5 

  
(i.

e.
 a

t 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
5)

 

20
01

/2
 

20
02

/3
 

20
03

/4
 

20
04

/5
 

20
05

/6
10

 

Pr
ov

id
in

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n:
 

• 
To

ta
l t

yp
es

 o
f i

nt
er

ac
tio

n 
e-

en
ab

le
d 

• 
%

 e
-e

na
bl

ed
 

 
94

%
 

30
6 

73
.5

6%
 

32
5 

78
.1

3%
 

36
6 

81
.1

5%
 

37
5 

80
%

 
46

6 
10

0%
 (2

0%
) 

 
C

ol
le

ct
in

g 
re

ve
nu

e:
 

• 
to

ta
l t

yp
es

 o
f i

nt
er

ac
tio

n 
e-

en
ab

le
d 

• 
%

 e
-e

na
bl

ed
 

 
87

%
 

40
 

39
.6

0%
 

40
 

39
.6

0%
 

50
 

50
%

 
74

 
96

.1
0%

 
77

 
10

0%
 (4

%
) 

Pr
ov

id
in

g 
be

ne
fit

s 
&

 g
ra

nt
s:

 
• 

to
ta

l t
yp

es
 o

f i
nt

er
ac

tio
n 

e-
en

ab
le

d 
• 

%
 e

-e
na

bl
ed

 

 
78

%
 

4 44
.4

4%
 

4 44
.4

4%
 

5 62
.5

0%
 

1 11
.1

1%
 

9 10
0%

 (9
3%

) 
C

on
su

lta
tio

n:
 

• 
to

ta
l t

yp
es

 o
f i

nt
er

ac
tio

n 
e-

en
ab

le
d 

• 
%

 e
-e

na
bl

ed
 

 
86

%
 

38
 

10
.9

2%
 

42
 

12
.0

7%
 

14
0 

40
.9

4%
 

34
5 

88
.2

4%
 

39
1 

10
0%

 (1
2%

) 
R

eg
ul

at
io

n 
(s

uc
h 

as
 is

su
in

g 
lic

en
ce

s)
: 

• 
to

ta
l t

yp
es

 o
f i

nt
er

ac
tio

n 
e-

en
ab

le
d 

• 
%

 e
-e

na
bl

ed
 

 
76

%
 

2 25
%

 
3 37

.5
0%

 
2 20

%
 

14
 

28
%

 
50

 
(1

00
%

) (
72

%
) 

Ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 fo
r s

er
vi

ce
s:

 
• 

to
ta

l t
yp

es
 o

f i
nt

er
ac

tio
n 

e-
en

ab
le

d 
• 

%
 e

-e
na

bl
ed

 

 
83

%
 

88
 

40
%

 
13

0 
59

.9
9%

 
15

6 
75

.7
3%

 
16

4 
68

.0
5%

 
24

1 
10

0%
 (3

2%
) 

B
oo

ki
ng

 v
en

ue
s,

 re
so

ur
ce

s 
&

 c
ou

rs
es

: 
• 

to
ta

l t
yp

es
 o

f i
nt

er
ac

tio
n 

e-
en

ab
le

d 
• 

%
 e

-e
na

bl
ed

 

 
78

%
 

20
 

41
.6

7%
 

23
 

47
.9

2%
 

17
 

40
.4

8%
 

17
 

44
.7

4%
 

38
 

10
0%

 (5
5%

) 
Pa

yi
ng

 fo
r g

oo
ds

 &
 s

er
vi

ce
s:

 
• 

to
ta

l t
yp

es
 o

f i
nt

er
ac

tio
n 

e-
en

ab
le

d 
• 

%
 e

-e
na

bl
ed

 

 
80

%
 

3 5.
77

%
 

3 5.
77

%
 

5 6.
76

%
 

51
 

53
.1

3%
 

96
 

10
0%

 (4
7%

) 
 

Pr
ov

id
in

g 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 c

om
m

un
ity

, p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l o
r b

us
in

es
s 

ne
tw

or
ks

: 
• 

to
ta

l t
yp

es
 o

f i
nt

er
ac

tio
n 

e-
en

ab
le

d 
• 

%
 e

-e
na

bl
ed

 

 
82

%
 

57
 

50
.8

9%
 

62
 

55
.3

6%
 

58
 

33
.5

3%
 

12
3 

52
.1

2%
 

23
6 

10
0%

 (4
8%

) 
Pr

oc
ur

em
en

t: 
• 

to
ta

l t
yp

es
 o

f i
nt

er
ac

tio
n 

e-
en

ab
le

d 
• 

%
 e

-e
na

bl
ed

 

 
73

%
 

1 1.
06

%
 

1 1.
06

%
 

3 3.
09

%
 

66
 

70
.9

7%
 

93
 

10
0%

 (2
9%

) 
• 

TO
TA

L:
TY

PE
S 

O
F 

IN
TE

R
AC

TI
O

N
 E

-E
N

AB
LE

D
 

• 
%

 E
-E

N
AB

LE
D

 
R

EV
IS

ED
 F

IG
U

R
ES

 
EX

PE
C

TE
D

 
10

0%
 

55
9 

39
.7

0%
 

63
3 

44
.9

6%
 

80
2 

53
.3

6 
12

30
 

72
%

 
16

97
 

10
0%

 
  

 
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

 It
 is

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 th
at

 a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

w
ill 

ba
se

 th
ei

r a
nn

ua
l B

VP
I 1

57
 a

ct
ua

ls
/e

st
im

at
es

 o
n 

th
e 

po
si

tio
n 

at
 th

e 
31

st
 M

ar
ch

 in
 e

ac
h 

fin
an

ci
al

 y
ea

r (
i.e

. y
ea

r e
nd

), 
w

ith
 th

e 
ex

ce
pt

io
n 

of
 2

00
5/

6 
w

he
n 

th
e 

po
si

tio
n 

at
 1

st
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

00
6 

is
 re

qu
ire

d.
 

 

Page 27



 

IE
G

4.
5 

Fi
na

l V
er

si
on

 
 

24

Se
ct

io
n 

4 
– 

A
cc

es
s 

C
ha

nn
el

 T
ak

e-
U

p 
 

In
 o

rd
er

 to
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
 p

ub
lic

 ta
ke

-u
p 

of
 th

e 
m

ai
n 

e-
ac

ce
ss

 c
ha

nn
el

s 
th

at
 y

ou
 a

re
 in

ve
st

in
g 

in
, y

ou
 a

re
 a

sk
ed

 to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

th
e 

ta
bl

e 
be

lo
w

 d
et

ai
lin

g 
ac

tu
al

 a
nd

 fo
re

ca
st

 fi
gu

re
s 

fo
r n

um
be

rs
 o

f e
-e

na
bl

ed
 p

ay
m

en
t t

ra
ns

ac
tio

ns
 a

nd
 c

ha
ng

e 
of

 a
dd

re
ss

 n
ot

ifi
ca

tio
ns

.  
It 

is
 im

po
rta

nt
 th

at
 e

-a
cc

es
s 

ch
an

ne
l 

in
ve

st
m

en
t a

nd
 ro

llo
ut

 a
ls

o 
fa

ci
lit

at
es

 a
cc

om
pa

ny
in

g 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 th
e 

co
rp

or
at

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t c
ap

ab
ilit

y 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 m
on

ito
r a

nd
 c

ol
le

ct
 s

uc
h 

st
at

is
tic

s.
  I

nd
us

try
 d

ef
in

iti
on

s 
of

 p
ag

e 
im

pr
es

si
on

s11
 a

nd
 u

ni
qu

e 
us

er
s12

 a
re

 g
iv

en
 in

 th
e 

fo
ot

no
te

s 
be

lo
w

. 
 

 
A

ct
ua

l 
Fo

re
ca

st
 

C
om

m
en

t 
E-

en
ab

le
m

en
t &

 M
ai

n 
E-

A
cc

es
s 

C
ha

nn
el

 T
ak

e-
U

p 
03

/0
4 

04
/0

5 
05

/0
6 

06
/0

7 
07

/0
8 

 
Lo

ca
l S

er
vi

ce
 W

eb
si

te
s 

• 
Pa

ge
 im

pr
es

si
on

s 
(a

nn
ua

l) 
• 

U
ni

qu
e 

us
er

s,
 i.

e.
 s

ep
ar

at
e 

in
di

vi
du

al
s 

vi
si

tin
g 

w
eb

si
te

 (a
nn

ua
l) 

• 
N

um
be

r o
f e

-e
na

bl
ed

 p
ay

m
en

t t
ra

ns
ac

tio
ns

 a
cc

ep
te

d 
vi

a 
w

eb
si

te
 

• 
N

um
be

r o
f c

ha
ng

e 
of

 a
dd

re
ss

 n
ot

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 a
cc

ep
te

d 
vi

a 
w

eb
si

te
 

 

 6,
18

8,
22

9 
38

1,
46

8 
0.

93
4 

n/
a  

 
10

,3
03

,2
69

41
9,

47
9 

10
,5

81
 

  46
1,

00
0 

15
,0

00
 

  50
8,

00
0 

22
,5

00
 

  56
0,

00
0 

30
,0

00
 

It 
is

 w
or

th
 n

ot
in

g 
th

at
 

ou
r p

re
vi

ou
s 

fo
re

ca
st

 
fo

r 0
4/

05
 w

as
 4

19
k 

W
e 

ha
ve

 a
pp

lie
d 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
cr

ite
ria

 in
 c

al
cu

la
tin

g 
fu

tu
re

 h
its

 
Te

le
ph

on
e 

(i.
e.

 te
le

ph
on

e 
in

te
ra

ct
io

ns
 w

he
re

 o
ffi

ce
rs

 c
an

 a
cc

es
s 

el
ec

tro
ni

c 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d/
or

 u
pd

at
e 

re
co

rd
s 

on
-li

ne
 th

er
e 

an
d 

th
en

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 in

te
ra

ct
io

ns
 in

 c
on

ta
ct

 c
en

tre
s)

: 
• 

N
um

be
r o

f e
-e

na
bl

ed
 p

ay
m

en
t t

ra
ns

ac
tio

ns
 a

cc
ep

te
d 

by
 te

le
ph

on
e 

• 
N

um
be

r o
f c

ha
ng

e 
of

 a
dd

re
ss

 n
ot

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 a
cc

ep
te

d 
vi

a 
te

le
ph

on
e 

 

   23
.4

 
n/

a 

  10
,6

46
 

   67
,5

00
 

   92
,5

00
 

   12
0,

00
0 

 

Fa
ce

 T
o 

Fa
ce

 
(i.

e.
 fr

on
t-l

in
e 

op
er

at
io

ns
 w

he
re

 o
ffi

ce
rs

 c
an

 a
cc

es
s 

el
ec

tro
ni

c 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d/
or

 u
pd

at
e 

re
co

rd
s 

on
-li

ne
 th

er
e 

an
d 

th
en

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 in

te
ra

ct
io

ns
 a

t r
ec

ep
tio

n 
de

sk
s,

 O
ne

 S
to

p 
Sh

op
s 

& 
ho

m
e 

vi
si

ts
): 

• 
N

um
be

r o
f e

-e
na

bl
ed

 p
ay

m
en

t t
ra

ns
ac

tio
ns

 a
cc

ep
te

d 
vi

a 
pe

rs
on

al
 c

on
ta

ct
 

• 
N

um
be

r o
f c

ha
ng

e 
of

 a
dd

re
ss

 n
ot

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 a
cc

ep
te

d 
vi

a 
pe

rs
on

al
 c

on
ta

ct
 

 

    0.
78

2 
n/

a 

    20
0,

42
2 

    17
,0

00
 

    22
,5

00
 

    29
,0

00
 

 

O
th

er
 E

le
ct

ro
ni

c 
M

ed
ia

 (e
.g

. B
A

C
S,

 te
xt

 m
es

sa
gi

ng
): 

• 
N

um
be

r o
f e

-e
na

bl
ed

 p
ay

m
en

t t
ra

ns
ac

tio
ns

 a
cc

ep
te

d 
vi

a 
BA

C
S 

• 
N

um
be

r o
f e

-e
na

bl
ed

 p
ay

m
en

t t
ra

ns
ac

tio
ns

 a
cc

ep
te

d 
vi

a 
te

xt
 m

es
sa

ge
 o

r o
th

er
 e

le
ct

ro
ni

c 
fo

rm
 

• 
N

um
be

r o
f c

ha
ng

e 
of

 a
dd

re
ss

 n
ot

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 a
cc

ep
te

d 
vi

a 
ot

he
r e

le
ct

ro
ni

c 
m

ed
ia

 
 

 23
5 

n/
a 

 n/
a 

 25
6 

n/
a 

 n/
a 

 

 26
4 

n/
a 

 n/
a 

 27
2 

n/
a 

 n/
a 

 28
0 

n/
a 

 n/
a 

 Ba
se

d 
on

 3
%

 g
ro

w
th

 p
a 

N
on

 E
le

ct
ro

ni
c 

(e
.g

. c
as

h 
of

fic
e,

 p
os

t) 
• 

N
um

be
r o

f p
ay

m
en

ts
 a

cc
ep

te
d 

by
 c

he
qu

e 
or

 o
th

er
 n

on
-e

le
ct

ro
ni

c 
fo

rm
 

• 
N

um
be

r o
f c

ha
ng

e 
of

 a
dd

re
ss

 n
ot

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 a
cc

ep
te

d 
vi

a 
no

n-
el

ec
tro

ni
c 

fo
rm

 
 

 31
6 

n/
a 

 27
0 

 24
2 

 21
8 

 19
6 

G
ra

du
al

 re
du

ct
io

n 
as

 th
er

e 
is

 
an

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
us

e 
of

 o
th

er
 

pa
ym

en
t m

et
ho

ds
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
11

 U
ni

qu
e 

U
se

r 
(in

du
st

ry
 a

ud
it 

de
fin

iti
on

): 
Ac

co
rd

in
g 

to
 IF

AB
C

 G
lo

ba
l W

eb
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 (w
w

w
.if

ab
c.

or
g)

 a
 U

ni
qu

e 
U

se
r i

s 
an

 "
IP

 a
dd

re
ss

 p
lu

s 
a 

fu
rth

er
 id

en
tif

ie
r. 

Si
te

s 
m

ay
 

us
e 

U
se

r 
Ag

en
t, 

C
oo

ki
e 

an
d/

or
 R

eg
is

tra
tio

n 
ID

." 
N

ot
e 

th
at

 w
he

re
 u

se
rs

 a
re

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
IP

 a
dd

re
ss

es
 d

yn
am

ic
al

ly
 (

fo
r 

ex
am

pl
e 

by
 d

ia
l-u

p 
In

te
rn

et
 S

er
vi

ce
 P

ro
vi

de
rs

), 
th

is
 

de
fin

iti
on

 m
ay

 o
ve

rs
ta

te
 o

r u
nd

er
st

at
e 

th
e 

re
al

 n
um

be
r o

f i
nd

iv
id

ua
l U

se
rs

 c
on

ce
rn

ed
. A

 U
ni

qu
e 

U
se

r i
s 

at
 a

 m
in

im
um

 a
n 

IP
 a

dd
re

ss
 +

 th
e 

Br
ow

se
r I

D
 w

ith
 a

 u
ni

qu
e 

ad
dr

es
s 

en
te

rin
g 

a 
w

eb
si

te
 b

y 
an

y 
pa

ge
 a

nd
 is

 c
ou

nt
ed

 o
nc

e 
fo

r t
he

 g
iv

en
 p

er
io

d 
(th

e 
m

in
im

um
 a

ud
it 

pe
rio

d 
is

 o
ne

 c
al

en
da

r m
on

th
). 

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f U
ni

qu
e 

U
se

rs
 is

 a
n 

in
di

ca
to

r o
f a

 
w

eb
si

te
’s

 a
ud

ie
nc

e 
or

 re
ac

h.
 

12
 P

ag
e 

Im
pr

es
si

on
 (

in
du

st
ry

 a
ud

it 
de

fin
iti

on
): 

Ac
co

rd
in

g 
to

 IF
AB

C
 G

lo
ba

l W
eb

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 (

w
w

w
.if

ab
c.

or
g)

 a
 P

ag
e 

Im
pr

es
si

on
 is

 a
 "

fil
e 

or
 a

 c
om

bi
na

tio
n 

of
 fi

le
s 

se
nt

 to
 a

 
us

er
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 th
at

 u
se

r's
 re

qu
es

t b
ei

ng
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

by
 th

e 
se

rv
er

." 
 In

 e
ffe

ct
, o

ne
 re

qu
es

t b
y 

a 
va

lid
 U

se
r s

ho
ul

d 
re

su
lt 

in
 o

ne
 P

ag
e 

Im
pr

es
si

on
 b

ei
ng

 c
ou

nt
ed

.  
In

 m
os

t 
ca

se
s,

 a
 s

in
gl

e 
re

qu
es

t 
fro

m
 a

 U
se

r 
ca

us
es

 t
he

 s
er

ve
r 

to
 s

en
d 

se
ve

ra
l f

ile
s 

to
 s

at
is

fy
 t

he
 r

eq
ue

st
. 

 F
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e,
 t

he
 s

er
ve

r 
m

ay
 s

en
d 

a 
.h

tm
l f

ile
 f

ol
lo

w
ed

 b
y 

se
ve

ra
l 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 g

ra
ph

ic
 im

ag
es

 a
nd

 a
ud

io
 fi

le
s.

  A
 s

in
gl

e 
re

qu
es

t f
ro

m
 a

 u
se

r m
ay

 a
ls

o 
ca

us
e 

th
e 

se
rv

er
 to

 s
en

d 
ad

di
tio

na
l .

ht
m

l f
ile

s 
to

 b
ui

ld
 a

 fr
am

es
et

.  
Th

e 
si

te
 m

us
t e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 a

ll 
ad

di
tio

na
l, 

no
n-

re
qu

es
te

d 
fil

es
 a

re
 fi

lte
re

d 
ou

t a
nd

 e
xc

lu
de

d 
w

he
n 

co
un

tin
g 

th
e 

cl
ai

m
ed

 n
um

be
r o

f P
ag

e 
Im

pr
es

si
on

s.
 

 

Page 28



 

IE
G

4.
5 

Fi
na

l V
er

si
on

 
 

25

Se
ct

io
n 

5 
– 

Lo
ca

l e
-G

ov
er

nm
en

t I
m

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 

C
ou

nc
ils

 a
re

 a
sk

ed
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 s

um
m

ar
y 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
 a

nd
 fo

re
ca

st
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 o

n 
im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
el

ec
tro

ni
c 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t u

p 
to

 2
00

7/
08

. T
hi

s 
sh

ou
ld

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

st
an

da
rd

 e
le

m
en

ts
 in

 th
e 

ta
bl

e 
be

lo
w

 a
nd

 b
rie

f c
om

m
en

ta
ry

 o
n 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 IE

G
 m

on
ey

.  
Fo

r 2
00

5/
6 

on
w

ar
ds

, p
le

as
e 

in
cl

ud
e 

be
st

 e
st

im
at

es
 o

f r
ev

en
ue

 a
nd

 
ca

pi
ta

l e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 e
ve

n 
th

ou
gh

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l m

ay
 n

ot
 y

et
 h

av
e 

of
fic

ia
lly

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
th

e 
bu

dg
et

s.
 (P

le
as

e 
no

te
 th

at
 im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
e-

go
ve

rn
m

en
t e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

re
fe

rs
 to

 in
ve

st
m

en
t d

es
ig

ne
d 

to
 e

-e
na

bl
e 

lo
ca

l s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
to

 tr
an

sf
or

m
 th

ei
r a

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y,

 q
ua

lit
y 

an
d 

co
st

-e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 th
e 

20
05

 ta
rg

et
.  

C
yc

lic
al

 s
pe

nd
 re

la
te

d 
to

 th
e 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 e

xi
st

in
g 

IC
T 

in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
sh

ou
ld

 n
ot

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

): 

 
B

ac
kw

ar
d 

Lo
ok

 (£
)K

 
 

Fo
rw

ar
d 

Lo
ok

 (£
)K

 
C

om
m

en
t 

 Pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

01
/0

2 
to

 
03

/0
4 

 

04
/0

5 
05

/0
6 

06
/0

7 
07

/0
8 

 
  

 • 
IE

G
 c

ap
ita

l g
ra

nt
 

 40
0 

 35
0 

 15
0 

 
  

  

 • 
O

D
PM

 L
oc

al
 e

-G
ov

er
nm

en
t S

up
po

rt 
& 

C
ap

ac
ity

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

ca
pi

ta
l 

gr
an

t 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 • 
yo

ur
 c

ou
nc

il’
s 

no
m

in
al

 p
ro

 ra
ta

 s
ha

re
 o

f O
D

PM
 L

oc
al

 e
-

G
ov

er
nm

en
t P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
ca

pi
ta

l g
ra

nt
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

in
 y

ou
r 

ar
ea

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 • 
fin

an
ci

al
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
fro

m
 p

ub
lic

-p
riv

at
e 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
s 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 • 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

be
in

g 
ap

pl
ie

d 
fro

m
 in

te
rn

al
 re

ve
nu

e 
an

d 
ca

pi
ta

l b
ud

ge
ts

13
 

to
 im

pl
em

en
t e

-g
ov

er
nm

en
t 

 

1,
59

5 
2,

06
3 

2,
45

4 
3,

85
0 

36
0 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 fo

r C
us

to
m

er
 F

irs
t, 

ES
C

R
, I

C
S,

 
M

ob
ile

 W
or

ki
ng

, S
W

IF
T,

 R
ev

s 
& 

Be
ns

   
 

 • 
ot

he
r r

es
ou

rc
es

 (e
.g

. t
ra

in
in

g)
 (p

le
as

e 
sp

ec
ify

) 
 

38
 

99
 

85
 

80
 

75
 

 

 • 
O

D
PM

 e
-In

no
va

tio
ns

 F
un

d 
ca

pi
ta

l g
ra

nt
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 • 
fin

an
ci

al
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 fr

om
 o

th
er

 s
ou

rc
es

 o
f G

ov
er

nm
en

t f
un

di
ng

, 
su

ch
 a

s 
th

e 
In

ve
st

 to
 S

av
e 

Bu
dg

et
 (I

SB
), 

EU
 fu

nd
in

g 
 

 

25
0 

21
0 

21
0 

21
0 

21
0 

Bu
dg

et
 a

llo
ca

tio
n 

fo
r i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

su
pp

or
t i

n 
So

ci
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

, I
SA

 G
ra

nt
 

et
c.

 
 

TO
TA

L  

22
83

 
27

22
 

28
99

 
41

40
 

64
5 

 

    
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
13

 P
le

as
e 

sh
ow

 th
e 

ac
tu

al
 c

ap
ita

l e
xp

en
de

d 
in

 e
ac

h 
ye

ar
, n

ot
 th

e 
an

nu
al

 c
os

t o
f s

er
vi

ci
ng

 th
e 

lo
an

. 
 

Page 29



 

IE
G

4.
5 

Fi
na

l V
er

si
on

 
 

26

Se
ct

io
n 

6 
– 

Lo
ca

l e
-G

ov
er

nm
en

t P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

Ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
G

ai
ns

14
 

Th
e 

ca
lc

ul
at

io
n 

of
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 g
ai

ns
 fr

om
 lo

ca
l e

-g
ov

er
nm

en
t h

as
 b

ee
n 

de
si

gn
ed

 to
 a

lig
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 m

ea
su

rin
g 

ac
hi

ev
em

en
t a

ga
in

st
 th

e 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

ga
in

s 
ta

rg
et

 
se

t o
ut

 in
 th

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

05
 E

ffi
ci

en
cy

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 N

ot
e 

(E
TN

) f
or

 L
oc

al
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t15
.  

Li
nk

s 
to

 li
st

ed
 w

eb
si

te
s 

in
 th

e 
ta

bl
e 

N
ot

es
 a

ls
o 

of
fe

r a
 k

ey
 s

ou
rc

e 
of

 s
up

po
rt 

in
 

ca
lc

ul
at

in
g 

fig
ur

es
. 

 
B

ac
kw

ar
d 

Lo
ok

 
(£

) 
Fo

rw
ar

d 
Lo

ok
 

(£
) 

N
ot

es
 

 
 04

/0
5 

 05
/0

6 
 06

/0
7 

 07
/0

8 
 

Ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
ga

in
s 

An
nu

al
 

ga
in

 
…

 o
f 

w
hi

ch
 

ca
sh

ab
le

 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 
an

nu
al

 
ga

in
 

…
 o

f 
w

hi
ch

 
ca

sh
ab

le
 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 
an

nu
al

 
ga

in
 

…
 o

f 
w

hi
ch

 
ca

sh
ab

le
 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 
an

nu
al

 
ga

in
 

…
 o

f 
w

hi
ch

 
ca

sh
ab

le
 

 

C
or

po
ra

te
 s

er
vi

ce
s,

 o
f 

w
hi

ch
: 

G
en

er
al

 
A

du
lt 

so
ci

al
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

se
rv

ic
es

 
C

ul
tu

re
 a

nd
 s

po
rt

 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l s

er
vi

ce
s 

LA
 s

oc
ia

l h
ou

si
ng

 
N

on
-s

ch
oo

l e
du

ca
tio

na
l 

se
rv

ic
es

 
H

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

 
 

  76
4 

20
0 

30
0 

57
 

36
3 

11
0 

50
0 

 15
0 

  76
4 

20
0 

30
0 

57
 

36
3 

11
0 

50
0 

 15
0 

 
 

 
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

in
cl

ud
es

, b
ut

 is
 n

ot
 li

m
ite

d 
to

, F
in

an
ce

, H
R

 (i
n 

re
sp

ec
t o

f t
ra

in
in

g;
 o

nl
y 

th
e 

fu
nc

tio
n,

 n
ot

 th
e 

sp
en

d)
, I

C
T,

 P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t 
(th

e 
fu

nc
tio

n,
 n

ot
 th

e 
sp

en
d)

, L
eg

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s,

 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

Tr
av

el
 S

er
vi

ce
s,

 
Se

cu
rit

y 
Se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 M

ar
ke

tin
g 

& 
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
). 

• 
e-

re
cr

ui
tm

en
t 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

In
cl

ud
es

 a
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
sa

vi
ng

s 
on

 s
ta

ff 
tim

e 
(w

he
re

 
st

af
f a

re
 re

al
lo

ca
te

d)
, p

rin
tin

g,
 p

os
ta

ge
 a

nd
 o

n 
ad

ve
rti

si
ng

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

. 
• 

e-
pa

ym
en

ts
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Se
e 

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.e
pa

ym
en

ts
.o

rg
.u

k/
pr

ep
ar

at
io

n/
bu

si
ne

ss
_

ca
se

/#
do

c3
02

6.
 

 
• 

co
rp

or
at

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 

ef
fic

ie
nc

ie
s 

no
t c

ov
er

ed
 

ab
ov

e 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
14

 i.e
. I

nc
re

as
es

 in
 o

ut
pu

t q
ua

lit
y 

an
d 

qu
an

tit
y 

fo
r t

he
 s

am
e 

co
st

, o
r s

us
ta

in
ed

 o
ut

pu
ts

 fo
r r

ed
uc

ed
 c

os
t, 

ar
is

in
g 

fro
m

 th
e 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

of
 lo

ca
l e

-g
ov

er
nm

en
t t

o 
au

to
m

at
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 a

nd
 im

pr
ov

e 
m

an
ag

er
ia

l e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s.
 O

nl
y 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
ga

in
s 

ar
is

in
g 

fro
m

 in
ve

st
m

en
t t

o 
e-

en
ab

le
 lo

ca
l s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

to
 tr

an
sf

or
m

 th
ei

r a
cc

es
si

bi
lit

y,
 q

ua
lit

y 
an

d 
co

st
-e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 th

e 
20

05
 ta

rg
et

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 in

cl
ud

ed
.  

Sa
vi

ng
s 

ar
is

in
g 

fro
m

 c
yc

lic
al

 s
pe

nd
 re

la
te

d 
to

 th
e 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 e

xi
st

in
g 

IC
T 

in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
sh

ou
ld

 
no

t b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

. 
 15

 S
ee

 h
ttp

://
w

w
w

.o
dp

m
.g

ov
.u

k/
st

el
le

nt
/g

ro
up

s/
od

pm
_l

oc
al

go
v/

do
cu

m
en

ts
/p

ag
e/

od
pm

_l
oc

go
v_

03
28

05
.p

df
. 

Page 30



 

IE
G

4.
5 

Fi
na

l V
er

si
on

 
 

27

e-
Pr

oc
ur

em
en

t, 
of

 w
hi

ch
: 

 
 

37
3 

37
3 

 
 

 
 

Pr
oc

ur
ed

 g
oo

ds
 a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

in
cl

ud
e 

co
m

m
od

ity
 

go
od

s 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
pr

of
es

si
on

al
 s

er
vi

ce
s,

 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 la
bo

ur
 a

nd
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n.

  I
t a

ls
o 

in
cl

ud
es

 
se

ct
or

 s
pe

ci
fic

 m
ar

ke
ts

 fo
r a

re
as

 s
uc

h 
as

 ro
ad

s,
 

so
ci

al
 h

ou
si

ng
, s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e,
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

po
lic

e.
  S

ee
 w

w
w

.n
ep

p.
or

g.
uk

/ &
 w

w
w

.id
ea

-
kn

ow
le

dg
e.

go
v.

uk
/id

k/
ai

o/
70

78
0.

 
• 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Sp
ec

ifi
c 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

i.e
. i

nc
lu

di
ng

 A
du

lt 
So

ci
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s,
 C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
se

rv
ic

es
, C

ul
tu

re
 a

nd
 s

po
rt,

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l s
er

vi
ce

s,
 

Lo
ca

l t
ra

ns
po

rt,
 L

A 
so

ci
al

 h
ou

si
ng

, N
on

-s
ch

oo
l 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
se

rv
ic

es
, s

up
po

rti
ng

 p
eo

pl
e.

 
• 

C
ro

ss
-c

ut
tin

g 
e-

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t e

ffi
ci

en
ci

es
 

no
t c

ov
er

ed
 a

bo
ve

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Pr
od

uc
tiv

e 
tim

e,
 o

f w
hi

ch
: 

 
 

75
0 

75
0 

 
 

 
 

Th
e 

fo
cu

s 
fo

r t
hi

s 
w

or
k 

st
re

am
 is

 o
n 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 th

e 
pr

od
uc

tiv
ity

 o
f f

ro
nt

 li
ne

 s
ta

ff 
an

d 
th

os
e 

w
ho

 s
up

po
rt 

th
em

.  
C

ou
nc

ils
 a

re
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 d

riv
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

be
ne

fit
s 

of
 e

-G
ov

er
nm

en
t i

nv
es

tm
en

t i
n 

te
rm

s 
of

 
ch

an
gi

ng
 w

or
ki

ng
 a

nd
 m

an
ag

em
en

t p
ra

ct
ic

es
 to

 
m

ax
im

is
e 

th
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

f t
im

e 
th

at
 e

xi
st

in
g 

m
em

be
rs

 
of

 s
ta

ff 
ar

e 
en

ga
ge

d 
in

 p
ro

du
ct

iv
e 

w
or

k 
(w

ith
 c

os
ts

 
re

al
lo

ca
te

d 
ac

co
rd

in
gl

y)
, e

.g
. b

y 
re

du
ci

ng
 th

e 
tim

e 
sp

en
t b

y 
pr

of
es

si
on

al
s 

in
 a

cc
es

si
ng

 a
nd

 h
an

dl
in

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n,
 re

du
ci

ng
 ti

m
e 

lo
st

 th
ro

ug
h 

hi
gh

 s
ta

ff 
tu

rn
ov

er
 b

y 
in

tro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 re
m

ot
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 / 
ho

m
e 

w
or

ki
ng

. 
• 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Sp
ec

ifi
c 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

i.e
. i

nc
lu

di
ng

 A
du

lt 
So

ci
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s,
 C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
se

rv
ic

es
, C

ul
tu

re
 a

nd
 s

po
rt,

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l s
er

vi
ce

s,
 

Lo
ca

l t
ra

ns
po

rt,
 L

A 
so

ci
al

 h
ou

si
ng

, N
on

-s
ch

oo
l 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
se

rv
ic

es
, s

up
po

rti
ng

 p
eo

pl
e.

 
• 

C
ro

ss
-c

ut
tin

g 
pr

od
uc

tiv
e 

tim
e 

ef
fic

ie
nc

ie
s 

no
t 

co
ve

re
d 

ab
ov

e 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

 
 

 
12

5 
12

5 
 

 
 

 
Th

e 
tra

ns
ac

tio
ns

 w
or

k 
st

re
am

 a
pp

lie
s 

to
 th

os
e 

ef
fic

ie
nc

ie
s 

th
at

 c
an

 b
e 

ga
in

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
su

ch
 m

ea
ns

 
as

 c
om

bi
ni

ng
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 to
 p

ro
du

ce
 m

or
e 

ef
fic

ie
nt

 
w

ay
s 

of
 d

ea
lin

g 
w

ith
 c

us
to

m
er

s 
or

 s
tre

am
lin

in
g 

pr
oc

es
se

s,
 o

r m
ak

in
g 

a 
m

aj
or

 s
hi

ft 
fro

m
 m

an
ua

l t
o 

el
ec

tro
ni

c 
pr

oc
es

si
ng

.  
Tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
 in

cl
ud

es
 a

re
as

 
su

ch
 a

s 
co

un
ci

l t
ax

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n,

 h
ou

si
ng

 b
en

ef
it 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tio

n 
an

d 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

of
 n

on
-d

om
es

tic
 ra

te
s,

 
i.e

. d
el

iv
er

in
g 

ef
fic

ie
nc

ie
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

m
ig

ra
tio

n 
of

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 c
us

to
m

er
 g

ro
up

s 
to

w
ar

ds
 m

or
e 

co
st

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

ch
an

ne
ls

 s
uc

h 
as

 w
eb

-b
as

ed
 in

te
rfa

ce
s 

an
d 

te
le

ph
on

e 
co

nt
ac

t c
en

tre
s,

 w
ith

 s
ta

ff 
re

al
lo

ca
te

d 
ac

co
rd

in
gl

y.
 

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s 
ef

fic
ie

nc
ie

s 
no

t 
co

ve
re

d 
ab

ov
e 

 
 

1,
00

8 
1,

00
8 

 
 

 
 

 
   

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
TO

TA
L 

EF
FI

C
IE

N
C

Y 
G

AI
N

S 
- 

G
R

O
SS

 
 

 
4,

70
0 

4,
70

0 
54

05
 

54
05

 
62

15
 

62
15

 
 

Page 31



 

IE
G

4.
5 

Fi
na

l V
er

si
on

 
 

28

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

LE
SS

 e
-g

ov
er

nm
en

t 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 

22
83

 
27

22
 

28
99

 
28

99
 

41
40

 
41

40
 

64
5 

64
5 

i.e
. a

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

ab
ov

e 
in

 S
ec

tio
n 

5 
- L

oc
al

 e
-

G
ov

er
nm

en
t I

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
TO

TA
L 

EF
FI

C
IE

N
C

Y 
G

AI
N

S 
- 

N
ET

 
-2

28
3 

-2
72

2 
18

01
 

18
01

 
12

65
 

12
65

 
55

70
 

55
70

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 32



 

IEG4.5 Final Version0 9 
    
    
   

 

SUBMISSION 
Please make sure that all IEG4 mid term entries are completed on the esd-toolkit 
(www.esd-toolkit.org) by midday on Monday 18 July 2005.   
All general comments and enquiries regarding the IEG4 mid term process should be 
addressed to:  
 
Local e-Government 
Office of the Deputy Prime Minister 
Zone 3/C5 
Bressenden Place 
London SW1E 5DU 
E-mail: localegov@odpm.gsi.gov.uk  
Tel: 020 7944 4258 
 

FURTHER INFORMATION 
Details of the National Strategy for local e-government and Priority Outcomes can be 
found at www.localegov.gov.uk 
Details of National Projects can be found at http://www.localegovnp.org 
Details of Government Connect can be found at http://www.govconnect.gov.uk 
The Directgov website can be found at www.direct.gov.uk 
Details of national infrastructure projects can be found at http://e-
government.cabinetoffice.gov.uk/Home/Homepage/fs/en & http://www.idea.gov.uk/lgih/   
 
Your regional IEG4 mid term contacts at the ODPM are: 
East – Julian Bowrey – julian.bowrey@odpm.gsi.gov.uk  
West Midlands, East Midlands – Colin Whitehouse – colin.whitehouse@odpm.gsi.gov.uk  
South West – Peter Blair – peter.blair@odpm.gsi.gov.uk 
London, South East, North East, National Parks - Janice Morphet – 
janice.morphet@odpm.gsi.gov.uk 
North West, West Midlands, Yorkshire & Humberside - Chris Haynes – 
chris.haynes@odpm.gsi.gov.uk 

 

PUBLICATION OF IEG RETURNS 
The ODPM may wish to publish information in connection with IEG4 mid term returns in 
due course or deposit them in its own library or that of the Houses of Parliament.  
Information may also be published as part of a national database to allow other local 
authorities to use IEG4 mid term data for benchmarking purposes.  Should you wish any 
element of your proforma to be treated in confidence please clearly indicate this in your 
response. Nevertheless, all responses will be included in statistical summaries.  

Page 33



Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



THE EXECUTIVE 
 

28 JUNE 2005 
 

REPORT FROM THE DIRECTOR OF REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT 
 

FEEDBACK ON ANGLO GERMAN MEDICAL SOCIETY 
MEDICAL CONFERENCE, 30 JULY – 1 AUGUST 2004 
AND CONSENT FOR INVOLVEMENT IN THE 
CONFERENCE FROM 15 – 17 JULY 2005 
 

FOR DECISION 

This report is submitted in accordance with paragraph 11, Conferences, Visits and 
Hospitality Rules of the Council’s Constitution and gives details of the Anglo German 
Medical Society Conference for German doctors held in the Borough last year and seeks 
approval for the involvement of the Council in this year’s conference.  
 
Summary 
 
This report gives a brief summary of the Anglo German Medical Society (AGMS) Medical 
Conference that took place between 30 July and 1 August 2004 and outlines the benefits 
from our involvement as required in the Constitution.  Likewise, the Constitution also 
requires that approval be given for participation in the conference which is due to take 
place this July 2005.  Because of the timescale involved certain preparations have already 
been undertaken with regards to our involvement with the conference in anticipation of the 
approval from the Executive.     
 
The Borough has a shortage of doctors, especially General Practitioners (GPs).  Since 
2001, the Borough has worked together with the Anglo German Medical Society and other 
key partners to host a three – day induction course for German doctors taking up a post in 
the National Health Service (NHS) or considering working in the UK. 
 
In 2004, the course was fully booked with 60 participants, who divided almost equally 
between GPs, consultants and junior doctors.  Approximately 30 others were turned away 
due to lack of space and tutors. 
 
By our on-going involvement it is the intention to gain a higher profile so that doctors and 
General Practitioners decide to practise within this Borough.  
 
Wards Affected - All Wards 
 
Recommendation 
 
The Executive is asked to: 
 
1. Approve appropriate Council Officers to attend and to be involved in the 2005 

conference, which takes place between 15 - 17 July 2005; and 
 
2. Note the feedback from the Anglo German Medical Society Medical conference that 

took place between 30 July to 1 August 2004. 
 

AGENDA ITEM 4

Page 35



 
Reason 
 
This report is submitted in accordance with paragraph 11, Conferences, Visits and 
Hospitality Rules of the Council’s Constitution, which states that where events require the 
authorisation of the Executive, a further report providing feedback should be made to the 
Executive. 
 
The conference helps the Council to meet the Corporate Priorities of ‘Raising General 
Pride in the Borough’ and ‘Improving Health, Housing and Social Care’. 
 
Contact 
Michelle May 
 

 
Group Manager 

 
Tel. 020 8227 5329 
Fax. 020 8227 5326 
Minicom: 020 8227 3034 
E-mail: michelle.may@lbbd.gov.uk 
 

 
1. Background 
 
1.1 In accordance with the Council’s Constitution (Conferences, Visits and Hospitality 

Rules - paragraph 11) this report gives a brief summary of the Anglo German 
Medical Society (AGMS) Medical Conference that took place between 30 July and 1 
August 2004, outlines the anticipated and actual costs that were involved and states 
the value of being involved with the conference in the future.  Also as outlined in the 
Constitution (paragraph 2.2) the report seeks the approval of the Executive for its 
involvement in the conference due to take place on July, 2005.  In anticipation of 
the Executive’s approval and because of the timescale certain involvement 
regarding this year’s conference has already taken place. 

 
1.2 During a visit to the Borough’s twin town of Witten (North Rhine-Westphalia, 

Germany) it was established that Germany has a surplus of doctors and in 
particular, General Practitioners (GPs).  This is in contrast to the United Kingdom 
and especially in the London Borough of Barking and Dagenham which has a 
shortage of doctors.  It was decided to co-operate with the medical faculty at the 
University of Witten / Herdecke.  Initially, this contact took the form of medical 
students shadowing GPs in the Borough and this is ongoing.  One of the Borough’s 
GP trainers, Dr. Ghosh, has been made an honorary professor at Witten / Herdecke 
University. 

 
1.3 Through our contact with the University, we were put in touch with the Anglo-

German Medical Society (AGMS), a non profit-making organisation established in 
the 1950s, which encourages professional contact between doctors in the UK and 
Germany.  One of its roles is to prepare German doctors who are proposing to work 
within the NHS.  The AGMS was seeking a London venue and sponsor for its 
annual induction course.   

 
1.4 The main partners in association with the London Borough of Barking and 

Dagenham are supporting the conference with an aim to recruit General 
Practitioners to work in the Borough. The organisers are the Anglo German Medical 
Society whilst the main partners/ sponsors are listed below. 

 

Page 36



Barking and Dagenham Primary Care Trust (PCT) 
NHS – Workforce Development Confederation  
Marburger Bund (German Doctors’ Trade Union) and  
Sanofi-Aventis, who provided the hospitality and premises.  
 

1.5 The London Borough of Barking and Dagenham (LBBD) committed £2,500 out of 
the Town Twinning Budget, to provide premises, hospitality and local transport.  
Delegates each paid a course fee ranging from €160 to €300, dependent on the 
level of their qualification and status of their employment.  This is not an annual 
commitment however, every year since 2001 the Borough’s involvement has been 
approved. 

 
2. Summary of the Conference 
 
2.1 Many of the 60 delegates were either unemployed or seeking to work in the UK to 

further their careers and benefit from the excellent training opportunities offered by 
the NHS. 

 
2.2 The three day conference gave delegates the opportunity to prepare themselves for 

working within the National Health Service. 
 
2.3 Delegates and tutors were accommodated at the University of East London, 

Docklands Campus, whilst speakers and other guests stayed at Butler Court, the 
Borough’s hospitality suite in Gosfield Road, Dagenham.  This was paid for by the 
AGMS. 

 
2.4 On day one, GP delegates were registered within Barking Town Hall before being 

taken on a tour of GP practices in the Borough.  They were given an introduction to 
working as a GP by a German GP working in the UK and a presentation on the 
health profile of the Borough by the PCT.  A language assessor spoke on the 
linguistic assessment process for overseas doctors wishing to practise in the NHS. 
 

2.5 Hospital doctors registered in Barking Town Hall in the afternoon and together with 
the GPs were given an introduction to the NHS, followed by a reception by the 
Deputy Mayor in the evening. 
 

2.6 On days two and three, the group met at Sanofi-Aventis, which is a major 
pharmaceutical company located in Dagenham.  The group divided into workshops 
and delegates worked on specific case studies relating to their area of expertise. 
 

2.7 On day three, there was a panel discussion with experts from the NHS and the 
German equivalent to the General Medical Council.  There was also a 2-hour career 
fair which was attended by national locum agencies (agencies for recruiting 
temporary staff) and the PCT. 

 
3.  Benefit and Value of sponsoring the conference 

 
3.1 The Borough’s co-operation with the Anglo German Medical Society provided the 

opportunity to give delegates information on working as a doctor in the Borough, 
especially as a GP, whilst an on going relationship with the AGMS helps to build 
and maintain contacts. 
 

Page 37



3.2 Many doctors are interested in relocating to the UK and many delegates now work 
in this country.  Since 2001 no one has chosen to work in this Borough, which may 
be due to the fact that we do not sell ourselves effectively enough as an attractive 
place to work and live.  The Council now hopes to capitalise on the doctors’ interest 
by encouraging some of them to work in the Borough.  We have always recognised 
that this was a long term ambition and for the first time the Chief Executive is going 
to address the delegates with the ambition of achieving the higher profile needed to 
attract Doctors to the Borough. 
 

3.3 The course feedback forms received from the delegates were all extremely positive 
about the course content, tutors, venues, hospitality and the organisation of the 
conference.  Hosting a conference which has now gained an international 
reputation for excellence raises the profile of the Borough. 

 
4. Costs 
 
4.1 The expenditure for the 2004 conference was met from the Town Twinning Budget 

and is as follows with the provision of hospitality and local transport divided 
accordingly.  There is a similar budget for the conference due to take place in July 
2005. 

 
 Estimated Cost 

£ 
Actual Cost 

£ 
Provision of tea, coffee and biscuits: 150.00 212.55 
Provision of buffet for 110 people 1,668.00 1,920.00 
Provision of coach and minibus 682.00 682.00 
TOTAL: 2,500.00 £2,814.55 

 
4.2 The slight overspend was due to the increase in the number of people who 

attended, originally 95 were invited however, this number increased by a further 10 
delegates and five tutors, therefore there was an increase of 15 people. 

 
4.3 Income was generated by the doctors’ stay as they paid for the use of the 

hospitality suite at Butler Court and for in-house printing costs, totalling £871.37.  
This payment was channelled through AGMS and any short-fall in expense was 
covered by them. 

 
5. The 2005 Conference; 15 - 17 July 
 
5.1 The 2005 conference is already fully booked with 60 delegates, 20 of which are 

GPs.  There is also a lengthy waiting list in case of cancellations.  However, there is 
no intention to allow more than 60 delegates therefore, the need to have a 
contingency fund does not apply. 

 
5.2 A new partner, the German Embassy, will host a reception for delegates on Friday 

15 July, therefore unlike last year this cost will not be borne by the Borough. 
 
5.3 This year, the Borough will present opportunities for living and working in the 

London Borough of Barking and Dagenham to the delegates, as well as wider 
regeneration issues and the Borough’s vision for the future.  Contact will be made 
with some doctors in advance of the conference to ascertain information relevant for 
registration purposes.  It is also anticipated that contact will be made with GP 

Page 38



applicants who have failed to gain a place on the course and ascertain whether they 
would be interested in working in the Borough. 

 
6. Consultations and implications: 
 
 Lead Member 

Councillor Fairbrass; Leader’s Portfolio (Town Twinning),  
 

Regeneration and Environment 
Alex Anderson, Interim Head of Finance, 

 
Corporate Strategy 
Muhammad Saleem 
Robin Hanton 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Background Papers - None 

Page 39



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank



 

THE EXECUTIVE 
 

28 JUNE 2005 
 

REPORT FROM THE DIRECTOR OF REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT 
 

PLANNING DELIVERY GRANT 2005 / 2006 
 

FOR DECISION 

Summary: 
 
Planning Delivery Grant (PDG) was introduced by the Government in 2004/04 as a means 
of providing incentives to local Planning Authorities to improve performance in their 
Planning Departments.  Initially, the Grant was intended to run for three years.  The 2004 
Spending Review has extended this for a further three years.  Achievement of the Grant is 
based on a number of factors but it is primarily targeted at improvement in Development 
Control performance. 
 
So far the Council has received Planning Development Grant of £151,000 for 2003/04 
£451,000 for 2004/05 and the grant provisionally approved by the Office of the Deputy 
Prime Minister (ODPM) for 2005/06 has risen to approximately £695,000, including core 
funding of £151,000.  Apart from the core funding this latest grant funding is not in the 
Council’s current budget and the decision on its inclusion is reserved to the Executive.  
ODPM requires the 25% of 2005/06 Grant to be spent on Capital projects, there is some 
discretion in how the remaining funding is split and it is proposed that most of the 
remainder will be on Revenue related.   
 
This report therefore summarises the proposals on how this funding will be spent and 
seeks approval to spend the total allocation of Planning Delivery Grant of approximately 
£785,000, including a roll forward of £90,000 from last year’s allocation. 
 
Ward Affected - None specifically. 
 
Implications: 
Financial:  
 
As mentioned in the summary the 2005/06 grant has risen to approximately £695,000, 25% 
of which must be spent on Capital projects.   
 
Legal:  
 
There are no legal implications. 
 
Risk Management: 
 
The only claw back provisions on this Grant relate to the District Auditor discovering that 
local planning authorities have submitted false data in support of Best Value Performance 
Indicator (BVPI) 109.   
 

AGENDA ITEM 5

Page 41



 

There is also a risk that if funding ceases or reduces the Council will continue to bear the 
cost of the activity.  However, the Council has minimised its exposure to this risk by using 
PDG to fund mainly one-off activities.  Where the risk remains the annual budget process 
will address the implications. 
 
It is proposed that some of the grant is used to support Development Control in delivering 
improved results against OPDM Performance Indicator BVPI109 and to also assist 
strengthen the Council’s position on strategic transport initiatives as this could have a 
direct impact on the Council’s future CPA assessment under the Sustainable Communities 
heading. (see paragraphs 5.4, 5.7 and 5.11) 
 
Social Inclusion and Diversity:  
 
As this report does not concern a new or revised policy there are no specific adverse 
impacts insofar as this report is concerned. 
 
Crime and Disorder:  
 
Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 places a responsibility on local authorities 
to consider the crime and disorder implications of any proposals.  In relation to this report 
one of the proposals is specifically targeted at designing out crime in development projects 
and therefore this funding will assist the Council in achieving improved performance in this 
area. 
 
Recommendation 
 
The Executive is recommended to agree the spend of the Planning Delivery Grant for 2005 
/ 2006 on the following: 
 
 04/05  

Roll 
Forward 

2005/06 Roll 
forward to 
2006/7 

TOTAL 

Interim Funding to Planning and 
Regeneration Reorganisation- 

£0 £151,000 £0 £151,00
0

Heritage and Conservation Officer 
(recurring cost) 

£20,000 £15,000 £0 £35,000

Conservation Projects £0 £37,500 £12,500 £50,000
Strategic Transport  £0 £25,000 £0 £25,000
Additional Temp DC Post £0 £30,000 £10,000 £40,000
E-Planning (20% recurring) £0 £100,000 £0 £100,00

0
Systems Audit (phase 2) £0 £10,000 £0 £10,000
Urban Design Programme £30,000 £7,500 £12,500 £50,000
Sponsorship Of Crime Prevention Design 
Adviser 

£0 £37,500 £12,500 £50,000

Training and Development £15,000 £15,000 £0 £30,000
RTPI accredited post entry training £0 £10,000 £0 £10,000
Corporate Environmental Stewardship 
Programme 

£25,000 £12,500 £12,500 £50,000

Held in Reserve for UDC Work £0 £50,000 £0 £50,000
Corporate Strategic Environmental 
Assessment and Sustainability Appraisal 

£0 £75,000 £25,000 £100,00
0

Page 42



 

PATH Trainee £0 £30,000 £0 £30,000
Office Move £0 £4,000 £0     

£4,000 
TOTAL £90,000 £610,000 £85,000 £785,00

0
 
Reason 
 
To assist in achieving the Community Priorities of “Making Barking and Dagenham 
Cleaner, Greener and Safer”, “Raising General Pride in the Borough”, and “Regenerating 
the Local Economy”. 
 
Contact 
Peter Wright 
 
 

 
Head of Planning and 
Transportation 

 
Tel: 020 8227 3901 
Fax: 020 8227 3896 
Minicom: 020 8227 3034 
E-mail: peter.wright@lbbd.gov.uk 
 

 
1. Background 
  
1.1 Planning Delivery Grant (PDG) was introduced by the Government in 2003/04 as a 

means of providing incentives to local Planning Authorities to improve performance 
in their Planning Departments.  Initially, the grant was intended to run for three 
years.  The 2004 Spending Review has extended this for a further three years.  
Achievement of the Grant is based on a number of factors but it is primarily targeted 
at improvement in Development Control performance.   
 

1.2 In 2004/04, the Council received £151,000.  All of this allocation went in to 
supporting the Planning and Regeneration Best Value review.  2004/05 saw a 
substantial increase in the allocation of PDG to £451,000.  The 2005/06 allocation 
has risen to approximately £695,000.  The final figure is still awaited.  The award 
this year is broken down as follows: 
 

   
 Housing – High Demand £  98,639.20

Enterprise Areas £  70,000.00
Development Control £466,149.48

 

Local Development Scheme* £  50,000.00
 Total £694,642.75
 *(to be confirmed) 

 
1.3 The Office of the Deputy Prime Minister (ODPM) has confirmed that it will be 

possible to carry unspent PDG over into future years and will be issuing further 
guidance in the future.  However, ODPM have also stipulated that 25% of the 
2005/06 award must be spent on Capital projects.  This amounts to £173,660. 

 

Page 43



 

 
2. Performance Improvements to Date 

 
2.1 The first round of PDG was used to fund, on an interim basis, service expansion in 

the Planning and Transportation Division as part of the Department’s medium-term 
financial strategy.  The immediate benefits saw the filling of 10 of the Division’s 
vacancies, including a new Group Manager for Urban Design and a Transportation 
Group Manager.   
 

2.2 Investment in the Development Control Service and the implementation of the 
Development Control Improvement Plan has seen a dramatic improvement in 
performance under Best Value Performance Indicators (BVPI), particularly the 
Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA) critical BV109.  Performance has 
improved between 2003 and 2005 by the following: 
 

BV 02/03 03/04 04/05 Improvement 
109a 45.0% 55.0% 60.0% 15.0%
109b 43.0% 54.0% 84.9% 41.9%

 

109c 69.0% 74.5% 96.3% 27.3%
 
2.3 The Division has also achieved the BV 200a Target of having the Council’s Local 

Development Scheme approved by March 2005. 
  
3. Roll Forward from 2004/05  to 2006/7 

 
3.1 £90,000 of PDG was identified in 2004/05 to be rolled forward into this financial 

year. The table shows those areas of spend identified for roll forward. 
 

 Allocation of Planning Delivery Grant 2004/05 and Roll Forward to 2005/06 
 2004/05 2005/06 TOTAL 
Interim Funding to Planning and 
Regeneration Reorganisation 

£151,000 £0 £151,000

Heritage and Conservation Officer 
(recurring cost) 

£ 15,000 £ 20,000 £35,000

Transport Strategy £ 50,000 £ 0 £50,000
E-Planning (50% recurring) £ 40,000 £ 0 £40,000
Systems Audit £ 30,000 £ 0 £30,000
Urban Design Programme £ 10,000 £ 30,000 £40,000
Training and Development £ 15,000 £ 15,000 £30,000
RTPI accredited post entry training £ 10,000 £ 0 £10,000
Corporate Environmental Stewardship 
Programme 

£ 40,000 £ 25,000 £65,000

 

TOTAL £ 361,000 £ 90,000 £451,000
 
3.2 

 
Over the last three years, it has become evident that delays in the notification of 
PDG awards make it extremely difficult to commence spend much before the end 
of the first financial quarter in June. Indeed, at the time of writing of this report, the 
final settlement for 2005/06 is still not known, with the final allocation under the 
Local Development Framework category is still awaited.  This report therefore 
proposes to roll forward 25% of certain allocations into year 2006/7 to enable 
spend to take place over a full calendar year. 
 

Page 44



 

4. Analysis of 2004/05 Spend 
 

4.1 All of the 2004/05 allocation of £451,000 Planning Delivery Grant was spent within 
the Planning Service, except for the agreed roll forward of £90,000.  Some 
changes were made within specific allocations of grant in order to provide extra 
resources to support services following delays in the formation of the UDC. 
 

5. Proposed Allocation of Planning Delivery Grant 2005/06 
 

 The table below gives the proposed allocation of PDG for 2005/06, including the 
use of roll forward identified in 2004/05 and proposals to roll forward certain spend 
into 2006/7.  A description of the proposed spend is given later in this section. 
 
 2004/05 

Roll 
Forward 

2005/06 Rolled 
Forward 

to 2006/07 

TOTAL 

Interim Funding to Planning and 
Regeneration Reorganisation 

£0 £151,000 £0 £151,000

Heritage and Conservation 
Officer (recurring cost) 

£ 20,000 £15,000 £0 £35,000

Conservation Projects £0 £37,500 £12,500 £50,000
Strategic Transport  £ 0 £25,000 £0 £25,000
Additional Temp DC Post £0 £30,000 £10,000 £40,000
E-Planning (20% recurring) £ 0 £100,000 £0 £100,000
Systems Audit (phase 2) £ 0 £10,000 £0 £10,000
Urban Design Programme £ 30,000 £7,500 £12,500 £50,000
Sponsorship Of Crime 
Prevention Design Adviser 

£0 £37,500 £12,500 £50,000

Training and Development £ 15,000 £15,000 £0 £30,000
RTPI accredited post entry 
training 

£ 0 £10,000 £0 £10,000

Corporate Environmental 
Stewardship Programme 

£ 25,000 £12,500 £12,500 £50,000

Held in Reserve for UDC Work £0 £50,000 £0 £50,000
Corporate Strategic 
Environmental Assessment and 
Sustainability Appraisal 

£0 £75,000 £25,000 £100,000

Path Trainee £0 £30,000 £0 £30,000
Office Move £0 £4,000 £0 £4,000
TOTAL £ 90,000 £610,000 £85,000 £785,000

 

     
5.1 Interim Funding to Planning and Regeneration reorganisation - £151,000 

 
This was the figure included in reports previously submitted to the Executive 
covering the costs of the restructure. 

  
5.2 Heritage Conservation Officer - £35,000 

 
Heritage is seen as an increasingly important component of Urban Design and the 
delivery of Sustainable Communities.  In London, English Heritage used to fund a 
number of posts within local planning departments.  However, they have now 
abandoned this funding.  CABE have no permanent consultancy to offer.   

Page 45



 

 
A post of Heritage Officer was identified in the new Planning and Transportation 
Division as part of the Regeneration Best Value review.  It was agreed at that time 
that this post would not be filled until external funding opportunities had been 
explored.  However, the the Executive held on 14 September 2004, agreed to fund 
this post through PDG while alternative resources were sought. 
 

5.3 Conservation Projects - £50,000 
 
A number of conservation projects have been identified within the Division’s 
Balanced Scorecard.  These include the compilation of a database of historic 
assets, the production of Action Plans and programmes for the production of 
Management Plans and the roll out of physical improvements to historic buildings 
and conservation areas.  PDG will be used to commence these programmes.  
Most of this work will require the appointment of specialist consultants. 
 

5.4 Transport Strategy - £25,000 
 
This reflects one of the key outcomes of the Regeneration Best Value Review.  To 
be effective in promoting regeneration in the Thames Gateway, the Council must 
improve its capacity in lobbying for key strategic transportation initiatives.  A new 
group of officers has been established within the Division and a group manager 
appointed.  The PDG will be used to strengthen the Council’s position on strategic 
transport initiatives.  This could have a direct impact on the Council’s future CPA 
assessment under the Sustainable Communities heading. 
 

5.5 Additional Temporary Development Control post -  £40,000 
 
This post is being sought specifically to support the Council’s Regeneration 
programme.  During the next year, a large number of major applications are 
expected to be submitted, particularly in Barking Town Centre.  Because of the 
current crisis in Planning recruitment, it will not be possible to make appointments 
on temporary contracts.  It is proposed to make an appointment on an Agency 
contract. 
 

5.6 E-Planning (Data Administration) - £100,000 
 
This PDG has been identified to secure improved computer hardware and software 
to support the Division’s E-Planning service.  Funds will also be used to continue 
the scanning of current and old planning and Building Control documents and the 
employment of a full time scanning officer (hence the 20% recurring). 
 

5.7 Systems Audit (Phase 2) £10,000 
 
Phase 1 spend identified actions to be taken to gain ISO 9001 Accreditation within 
the Division.  This PDG will be used to fund the implementation of recommended 
changes, as necessary, to Development Control processes, including 
administration.  This is designed to improve the speed of decision making in 
Development Control and, hence, produce tangible improvements in BVPI 109 (a-
c). 

 

Page 46



 

 
5.8 Urban Design Programme - £50,000 

 
This reflects one of the key outcomes of the Regeneration Best Value Review.  To 
be effective in promoting regeneration in the Borough and in the Thames Gateway, 
the Council must improve its capacity in Urban Design.  A new group of officers 
has been established within the Division and a group manager appointed.  The 
PDG will be used to support major Regeneration projects in Barking Town Centre 
and London Riverside and to produce, publish and publicise an Urban Design 
Strategy for the Borough, for training and capacity building for Officers and 
Councillors.  This is also reflected in the new planning BVPI “Quality of Service 
Checklist” and could have a direct impact on the Council’s future CPA assessment 
under the Sustainable Communities heading 
 

5.9 Sponsorship of a Crime Prevention Design Adviser - £50,000 
 
Following from the, highly successful, Designing Out Crime conference, held at 
Eastbury Manor House on 20 April 2005, initial discussions have been held with 
the Metropolitan Police with a view to the Council sponsoring a permanent Crime 
Prevention Design Adviser. The post would be employed by the police but located 
within the Planning and Transportation Division. Sponsorship would be on an 
annual basis and costs quoted include on-costs. The person appointed would 
assist the Borough in designing out crime from the outset, both in terms of 
individual development proposals and in the context of major master plans, etc. 
The post could also provide an advisory service to the public and other Council 
Departments. 
 

5.10 Training and Development (including RTPI Accredited training) - £40,000 
 
Town Planning is currently going through the biggest shake-up since the 1947 
Town and Country Planning Act.  The introduction of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004 and the Sustainable Communities Plan reflects a major shift in 
thinking for national and local Government.  This, coupled with a recruitment crisis 
within the planning profession, leads to the need for greatly enhanced training 
requirements for both Officers and Councillors. 
 

5.11 Corporate Environmental Stewardship Programme - £50,000 
 
These programmes and outputs all reflect the work of the Sustainable 
Development Group and, in particular, the promotion of environmental 
sustainability within the Sustainable Communities and Regeneration agendas.  
These programmes are designed to raise awareness of the sustainability agenda 
within the Council, the region and, most importantly, within the community.  There 
are strong ties here to the Community Priority of Making Barking and Dagenham 
Cleaner, Greener, Safer, with links to both education and environmental 
management.  This could also have a positive impact on the Council’s future CPA 
under the Sustainable Communities heading. 
 

Page 47



 

 
5.12 Held in Reserve for UDC Work - £50,000 

 
At the meeting of the Executive held on 8 March 2005, consideration was given to 
the planning powers of the new Thames Gateway UDC and the proposed Service 
Level Agreement to be entered into between the Council and the UDC.  The report 
recommended that Officers negotiate with the UDC to seek the recovery of costs 
but noted that if this were not possible, costs should be met from PDG.  
Discussions have not yet been held with the UDC so this block of PDG is held in 
reserve pending the outcome of future discussions. 
 

5.13 Corporate Strategic Environmental Assessment and Sustainability Appraisal - 
£100,000 
 
In June 2004 the European Directive 2001/42/EC came into force, which requires 
all plans and documents which have a significant impact on the environment, or 
have land use implications to undertake a Strategic Environmental Assessment 
(SEA).  In the UK the Sustainability Appraisal (SA), which incorporates the SEA 
process, was developed as part of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
(2004), which requires that all planning documents must undertake an SA to 
ensure that the environmental, economic and social aspects of all planning policies 
are taken into account.  The ODPM estimated that the average costs for a SA of 
the Local Development Documents will be approximately £100,000.  This costing 
included data gathering and monitoring, public consultation, prediction modelling, 
and implementation of the findings. 
 
The Council produces many documents which have either town planning 
implications, land use issues and, or an environmental impact, such as the 
Housing Strategy and key regeneration documents.  Thus the Council will be 
required to undertake either SA’s or SEA’s of several key documents, to ensure 
that they can implemented.  It is envisaged that the Sustainable Development 
Group of the Planning and Transportation Division, should become a centre of 
excellence for the Council and would project manage all the SA’s or SEA’s that the 
Council is required to do. 
 
This allocation of PDG will be used to establish a corporate data base, to provide 
training and capacity building and to initiate SEA’s in the Planning Division. 
 

5.14 PATH Trainee - £30,000 
 
The Division currently employs a trainee planner under the PATH programme to 
encourage more graduates from black and minority ethnic backgrounds into the 
planning profession.  This post is currently located in the policy team of the 
Sustainable Development Group.  The location of the post presents a dilemma. 
Ideally, the post should be rotated throughout the Division in order to give the 
trainee maximum experience of all aspects of the service.  However, the policy 
group are under increasing pressure to deliver the new Local Development 
Framework (LDF) and the loss of the post to other groups would cause workload 
pressures.  It is therefore proposed to create an additional post, of a similar grade, 
in the policy group, to enable the PATH trainees to move more freely around the 
Division. 
 

Page 48



 

5.15 Office Move - £4,000 
 
A small residual balance of £4,000 will be used to assist the Division’s relocation 
back to the Town Hall in the Autumn of 2005. 

  
6. Use of Capital 

 
6.1 The Planning and Transportation Division is primarily a Revenue based service, 

with the majority of the Division’s resources being spent on salaries.  The rules for 
this year’s PDG allocation require 25% to be spent on Capital works.  This 25% 
amounts to £173,660. 
 

6.2 In order to accommodate this Capital spend, it is proposed to capitalise two of the 
proposed projects, the additional DC post and additional support in Urban Design. 
These areas of spend relate directly to Regeneration projects being undertaken in 
the Town Centre (spread across all of the Town Centre projects).  In total, this 
amounts to £90,000.  The balance, of £83,660 will consist of £80,000 of IT 
hardware, which it is also proposed to capitalise and £4,000 of works to the 
Divisions new office accommodation.  This will require reference to the CPMO. 

 
7. Consultation 

 
The following Lead Members have been consulted and are either happy with the 
proposals or have raised no objections.  

 
Officers 
 
Finance 
Alexander Anderson, Head of Finance (DRE) 
 
Lead Members 
 
Community Development and Safety Portfolio, Councillor Geddes   
Environment and Sustainability, Councillor McKenzie,  
Regeneration, Councillor Kallar. 
Adult Social Services and Lifelong Learning Portfolio includes (Financial Planning), 
Councillor Bramley. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Background Papers 
• Executive Minute 46, 8 July 2003. Re: Planning Delivery Grant 2003/04. 
• Executive Report and Minute 121, 14 September 2004. 
• Executive Report and Minute 288, 17 February 2004.  Re: Regenerating the Local 

Economy - Cross Cutting Best Value Review. 
• European Directive 2001/42/EC. 
• Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act (2004). 
• Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA) BV109 (www.ODPM.gov.uk). 

Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



THE EXECUTIVE 
 

28 JUNE 2005 
 

REPORT FROM THE DIRECTOR OF REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT 
 

LONDON ROAD / NORTH STREET AND THE LINTONS / STATION 
QUARTER MASTER PLANS UPDATE – BARKING TOWN CENTRE 
 

FOR DECISION 

This reports seeks consent to undertake public consultation on major regeneration options and 
the decision is reserved to the Executive by the Scheme of Delegation. 
  
Summary 
 
This report outlines the work undertaken as the first phase development of master plans for 
the London Road / North Street area and The Lintons / Station Quarter area.  Each Master 
Plan team has produced a number of options, which are outlined in this report, some of which 
extend beyond the initial regeneration areas as agreed by the Executive previously.   
 
The limited consultation carried out by Council officers with key stakeholders has highlighted 
general support in developing proposals encompassing these wider areas.  This report 
therefore recommends further work and consultation is undertaken to develop proposals for 
the wider site areas. 
 
Ward Affected: Abbey Ward 
 
Recommendations 
 
The Executive is recommended to agree: 
 
To the Master Plan team undertaking further work to develop the schemes on land outside the 

Council’s current ownership; 
 

2. Officers undertaking further public consultation with stakeholders, businesses and 
residents; and 

 
3. Note that developing proposals for the wider London Road site would encompass the 

Council owned asset of 9 to 29 London Road. 
 
Reason 
 
To assist the Council in achieving its Community Priorities of “Regenerating the Local 
Economy”, to assist in the good planning of the area and to promote the social, economic and 
environmental well - being of the area. 
Contact: 
Jeremy Grint 

 
Head of Regeneration and 
Implementation 

 
Tel: 020 8227 2443 
Fax: 020 8227 5326 
Minicom: 020 8227 3034 
E-mail: jeremy.grint@lbbd.gov.uk

AGENDA ITEM 7

Page 51



 

Page 52



1. Background and Introduction 
 
1.1 By Minute 133, 28 September 2004 the Executive agreed to the decanting and 

redevelopment of 14 - 42 North Street, 35 - 55 London Road and the North Street 
Car Park.  On 3 August the Executive also agreed to the decanting and 
redevelopment of The Lintons Estate (Executive Minute 81 refers).   

 
1.2 The Executive may recall that the proposals for these sites would be developed from 

the Master Plans that are being compiled in partnership with English Partnerships 
and the Greater London Authority (GLA).  Whilst these Master Plans are focusing on 
the core redevelopment sites, to ensure a comprehensive approach, consultants 
were asked to examine linkages with the wider area.  This included identifying other 
opportunities that the Council and/or its partners may wish to bring forward either in 
the short, medium or long-term. 

 
1.3 To ensure the Master Plans are brought forward in accordance with the latest 

planning legislation, (Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004), a consultant has 
also been appointed by the Council to undertake a Sustainability Assessment(s) (SA) 
alongside the development of the Master Plans.  The purpose of the SAs are to test 
the sustainability of the Master Plans at each stage of their development, taking into 
account environmental, social and economic considerations.  

 
2. First Stage Work Completed by the Master Plan Teams 
 
2.1 In November, the master planning teams completed a baseline review of the existing 

situation within The Lintons / Station Quarter and London Road areas.  This involved 
meetings with Officers and external stakeholders, such as Charfleets (the operators 
of Barking Market) and Barking Methodist Church.  Following this both teams 
prepared an issues and options paper, outlining the opportunities and constraints that 
they had identified and their initial proposals for each area.  Following this two 
workshops were held where both teams presented their initial ideas to stakeholders.  

 
2.2 On 8 February 2005 the workshop was targeted at key external organisations (such 

as Transport for London) and Council Officers.  Another workshop was held on 8 

March and this was targeted at community groups and tenants from the London 
Road / North Street site and The Lintons Estate who had volunteered to be part of a 
focus group to influence the redevelopment proposals for these sites.  A list of 
organisations invited is included as Appendix A.  A full consultation strategy is 
available from the author if required. 

 
3 Initial Proposals  
 
3.1 The London Road / North Street Team has prepared two options, which are outlined 

in more detail in Appendix B.  The proposed enlarged Master Plan area is illustrated 
in Appendix C.  

 
• Option 1 is a minimum development option and can be brought forward using 

Council owned land. 
 

Page 53



• Option 2 is a wider redevelopment option and seeks regeneration across a larger 
site than that previously agreed by the Executive on 28 September 2004.  This 
would need to be brought forward in a phased approach with the Council owned 
site forming the first phase. 

 
3.2 The Lintons / Station Quarter Team has prepared three options, but these are not 

mutually exclusive scenarios, as elements from each proposal could be brought 
forward at the next stage in developing the preferred option.  These options are 
outlined in more detail in Appendix D.  The proposed enlarged Master Plan area is 
illustrated in Appendix E.  

 
• Option 1 sees the creation of a new residential quarter on The Lintons site.  
 
• Option 2 sees wider regeneration proposals including the refurbishment of the 

Station and Station Parade.  
 

• Option 3 is a maximum intervention option which includes the realignment of the 
road network, redevelopment of the station and widening the bridge over the 
railway to expand the development potential immediately around the station. 

 
3.3 In all options The Lintons site would be brought forward as part of the first phase of 

redevelopment.  The consultants also recommend that improvement works around 
Barking Station should be carried out as part of the initial phase of redevelopment.  
This is because the improvement around the Station would make a noticeable 
statement of regeneration at a key entry point into the Town Centre.  It will also 
ensure that the public transport infrastructure within the Town Centre is able to meet 
the increased demand from a growing population within the Town Centre and 
neighbouring areas. Linked with this the consultants propose that some improvement 
of the shops linking the Station to the Ripple Road, East Street, Station Parade 
junction should be prioritised as an area of action.  

 
3.4 Owing to the much larger area covered by option 3 for The Lintons/ Station Quarter 

Master Plan area, much further work is required in order to confirm phasing and 
viability for such intervention outside The Lintons Estate.  This would be undertaken 
as part of the next stage. 

 
4. Design Workshops 
 
4.1 At the two workshops held with key local stakeholders and residents of The Lintons 

Estate and London Road / North Street, a number of issues were raised.  People 
were keen to see the choice and availability of different housing types be expanded 
in the town centre e.g. size, tenure, type.  They were also keen to see the size of 
shop unit varied so that more recognised high street operators are encouraged to 
locate in Barking.  

 

Page 54



4.2 There was a lot of support for the proposal of the new public square on the London 
Road North Street site and that this could be a good location to relocate the market 
once East London Transit becomes operational.  Improvements to the Station were 
seen as critical if the Town Centre is to see a significant increase in population over 
the next 10 to 15 years.   In conclusion, there was widespread support for the Council 
to carry out further work to develop the more ambitious options proposed by each 
Master Plan team, covering areas extending beyond the sites owned by the Council. 
This view was also supported by Ward Councillors and Portfolio Holders. 

 
4.3 Following this the Barking Town Centre Strategy Group (LBBD, English Partnerships, 

Transport for London, London Development Agency, Housing Corporation and GLA 
AUU) agreed that the maximum intervention options for these areas should be 
recommended.  This is in order to achieve the regeneration vision as set out in the 
Barking Framework Plan and the Barking Town Centre Interim Planning Guidance. 

 
5. Next Steps 
 
5.1 The next step for the consultants is to develop their initial concepts into a broad 

based preferred option for each study area.  Currently the Council is only committed 
to bringing forward regeneration frameworks for The Lintons Housing Estate and for 
the area incorporating 35 - 55 London Road, 14 - 42 North Street and the Council 
Car Park at North Street.  Due to the comments received, the Executive are asked to 
agree to each Master Plan team undertaking further work on the wider site areas.  

 
5.2 In the case of London Road this will involve developing a framework for the area 

enclosed within London Road, North Street and East Street.  The Executive should 
note that in developing proposals for the enlarged area, the Council owned assets of 
9 to 29 London Road (which is currently a mixture of small offices, shops and 
residential units) would become part of the regeneration area.  .  Therefore, should 
the Master Plan teams develop a proposal that the Executive wishes to adopt as 
Council policy, further acquisitions of interests and decanting of Council tenants 
would be required.  However, until the London Road Master Plan team has 
undertaken further work, the exact costs and benefits of the enlarged scheme cannot 
be identified.  If it is deemed desirable for the Council to promote the regeneration of 
this wider site, the exact financial implications of pursuing such a scheme would be 
reported to the Executive alongside such as recommendation at a later date.  

 
5.3 For The Lintons / Station Quarter area this will involve developing a regeneration 

framework for the area bounded by the Northern Relief Road, the Fanshaw Road 
Roundabout, Station Parade and North Street.  This work will involve further viability 
testing including identifying market demand, financial costs, and transport 
implications and phasing over the next 10 to 15 years.  It will also involve developing 
more detailed designs for these proposals so that a greater understanding is gained 
on the number, size and type of residential units that could be brought forward, and 
the level of office, retail and community space that could be accommodated.  

 
5.4 It should be noted that by the Executive agreeing to allow work to be undertaken to 

produce a regeneration framework for an area extending beyond the Lintons Housing 
Estate, it is not committing the Council to actively bringing about the redevelopment 

Page 55



of these further sites.  Rather the document would act as a guide for private 
developers and the Council’s Regeneration partners, highlighting the opportunities 
for redevelopment within these areas and the sort of development that would be 
encouraged. 

 
6.  Public Consultation 

 
6.1 Due to the proposed enlargement of both the Master Plan areas, there will be a 

greater number of people that are likely to be affected or have an interest in the 
proposals being developed.  The Executive are therefore requested to agree to 
Council Officers undertaking any such consultation, including consultation on SA 
documents produced as part of this process.  This would culminate in another series 
of workshops targeted at key stakeholders, who have a known interest in the areas.   

 
6.2  Once this next round of consultation and viability testing has been undertaken a 

presentation will be made to Lead Members and Ward Councillors detailing the 
findings and comments from this work.  Following this, final amendments will be made 
to the Master Plans.  A further period of full public consultation lasting six weeks on 
both of the Master Plan proposals will then follow.  This will include public exhibitions, 
workshops, a display model, advertisements and information on the Council’s web 
page.  The comments received during this period will be used to make final 
amendments to the master plans, which will then be submitted to the Executive for 
approval. 

 
7. Financial Implications 
 
7.1 At this stage there are no financial implications to the Council by agreeing to carry out 

further work and consultation to develop the maximum intervention.  The viability 
testing will give a better understanding the cost implications and will be reported back 
to the Executive at a later stage.   

 
7.2 Funding for the Master Plans and our contribution to the cost of EP employing the 

consultants can be met from existing resources. 
 
8. Consultation 
 
8.1 The following Councillors have been advised of the proposals for the Master Plan 

investigations: 
 
Lead Members 
Civic Buildings, Accommodation and Property Services, Cllr H Collins. 
Regeneration, Councillor Kallar. 
Housing and Public Health (Landlord Services), Cllr L Smith 
 
Abbey Ward Members 
Councillors Alexander, Bramley and Farni. 

 

Page 56



8.2 The following officers have been consulted during the preparation of this report. 
 
Corporate Strategy 
Muhammad Saleem, Solicitor to the Council and Monitoring Officer 
Robin Hanton, Corporate Legal Services Manager 
 
Finance 
Alex Anderson, Head of Finance (DRE) 
 
Regeneration and Environment 
Peter Wright, Head of Planning and Transportation 
 
Housing and Health 
Jennie Coombs, Regeneration Manager (Housing) 
Ken Jones, Head of Housing Strategy 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Background Papers 
• Minute 262, 27 January 2004 London Road North Street redevelopment 
• Minute 133, 28 September 2004 – London Road / North Street Redevelopment 
• Minute 82, 3 August 2004 Station Quarter Lintons Regeneration Proposals  
• Barking Town Centre Framework Plan 2002 
• Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act (2004) 

Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A:  
EXTERNAL INVITEES 
 
C2C Station Operator Metropolitan Housing 
Network Rail Presentation Housing 
Housing Corporation East Thames Housing 
Environment Agency Hapag Lloyd 
English Nature Chamber of Commerce 
Countryside Agency London School of Economics (Thames 

Gateway Housing Strategy) 
English Heritage Charfleets, Market Operator 
TfL Borough Partnerships Office of Deputy Prime Minister (OPDM) 
London Cycle Network ODPM 
Police and Magistrates Architecture & Urbanism Unit 
Mouchel Parkman  Greater London Authority 
DTZ London Development Agency 
ATP Group Gateway to London 
Lichfield Planning Transport for London (TfL) 
Lovell Sims Ltd TfL Interchanges 
Barking Methodist Church ELT 
Owners of Maritime House London Buses 
Vicarage Field TfL Bus Priority 
English Partnerships London Underground 
Adviser to the London Development 
Agency 

Primary Care Trust 

Chamber of Commerce Regeneration Sub-group LSP 
BADAWA Kemsleys 
 
Community groups and faith groups 
 
Barking Baptist Tabernacle Church African Welfare Association 
Barking Methodist Church Afro Caribbean Association 
St Thomas More RC Church Bangladeshi Welfare Association 
St Mary and St Ethelburga RC Church B and D Race Equality Council  
Sikh Temple Ethnic Minority Partnership Agency 
Age Concern Translating and Interpreting Services 
Barking Anglican Team Parish Barking Muslims Association 
Barking Muslim Social & Cultural Society Indian Welfare and Cultural Association 

(Barking) 
 
Residents Groups 
 
All residents from the London Road / North Street 
Focus Group from The Lintons (approx 21) 
Residents’ and Tenants’ Association (Lintons) 

 

Page 59



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B  
Options for London Road North Street 
The London Road North Street team prepared two broad options one looking at only the 
Council owned site and the other looking at the wider area. In both scenarios the master 
planners are proposing a development that engages with the existing street patterns of 
London Road, North Street and East Street.  
 
Particular importance is given to creating a development that improves the front to Abbey 
Green to try and enhance this important asset in the town centre.  The proposals seek to 
introduce a north/south public route through the site, which will connect the London Road 
Car Park with the town centre in a more convenient way.  
  
At the ground floor both options ensure that there is maximum flexibility in potential uses, so 
that they could accommodate shops, small businesses, homes or car parking, but with a 
preference for a shop type use on ground floor.  Housing will be situated on the upper 
floors, but servicing will be separated from access to the housing. 
 
Open space for residents could be provided in the form of roof terraces and gardens, 
balconies and a communal courtyard. In both options East Street buildings will remain 
largely untouched, with refurbishment taking place, but with some demolition needed to 
open up the site.  The redevelopment along North Street and London Road is proposed to 
be 6 to 8 storeys with the creation of a landmark feature at the apex of London Road and 
North Street.  
 
Council owned sites proposals  
The minimum intervention option can be largely brought forward using the land in Council 
ownership 14-42 North Street, 35-55 London Road, and the North Street car park.  This is 
the regeneration site agreed by the Executive on 28th September.  However, some of the 
servicing area to properties fronting onto East Street may have to be acquired in order to 
help improve the general servicing and access in this area.  It is also proposed to include 
the Council owned Alice Martin site within this proposal, but a new Old Peoples Centre 
would be reprovided as part of the scheme if this were to happen. 
 
The proposal includes housing development behind the existing properties fronting onto 
East Street, not exceeding 5 storeys.  A new public, green open space will be created 
adjacent to the Methodist Church on London Road, with another new, small public square 
to the east of the church.  This could be used for the Barking Market once East London 
Transit is operational in the Town Centre. 
 
Wider area proposals  
These proposals are for wider redevelopment of the area enclosed within London Road, 
North Street and East Street focusing on the creation of a new public square fronting onto 
East Street with stronger links between the Town Square development and London Road.  
A new frontage would be created on the East Street side of the Methodist Church, which 
could house community facilities, facing onto the public square.  The west of the site would 
be capable of housing a large food store.  This would require underground parking to be 
provided with approximately 150 spaces.  A raised communal courtyard for the residential 
accommodation on the upper floors would be provided above the food store.  This option 
would also see the redevelopment of the eastern end of the site with the creation of a 
landmark building at the junction of London Road and East Street.  
 
This option would be delivered in phases, with the western end of the site in Council 
ownership being delivered first. 

Page 61



Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX C 
Wider Area London Road North Street 

 
 

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX D  
 
Proposals for Lintons Station Quarter Area 
 
The Lintons / Station Quarter Master Plan team has presented three broad options. These 
options are not mutually exclusive as elements from any of the options may be 
incorporated into the ‘preferred’ option. All options propose a housing area, which could 
incorporate a new Police Station, on The Lintons as well as creating a new entrance to 
Barking Station from Cambridge Road to help increase the Barking Station’s capacity. 
 
Option 1:  
This option proposes redevelopment of The Lintons into a new housing area.  Private, 
communal open space for residents would be provided within the perimeter blocks of 
housing. A new urban green/square would be the focus around which the new housing 
would be located. Further housing development is proposed along the northern end of 
Cambridge Road to better link the new development with the town centre core.  
 
Option 2:  
This option includes the development of The Lintons but also proposes the refurbishment 
of the Station as a priority.  A new high quality transport interchange would be provided to 
increase capacity for pedestrians, buses, taxis, ELT.  In order to accommodate the large 
number of activities that need to take place in this area it is also proposed to extend the 
interchange south along Station Parade as far as the junction with Cambridge Road.  New 
office and retail development is proposed either side of the station to help improve 
people’s first images of Barking when entering from the Station.  Option 2 also sees further 
redevelopment along Station Parade as critical.  
 
Development is also proposed along London Road including the redevelopment of the 
existing bus stand.  This would be a mixture of shops on the ground floor and housing 
above, this is dependent upon finding an alternative layover site for the buses.  A new 
courtyard development of small business units is proposed for the northern end of Linton 
Road and Cambridge Road.  

 
Option 3 
The third option proposes a higher level of intervention and in addition to above would 
create a new focus by providing a new urban square. The square would be situated at the 
very heart of the town centre at the junction of London Road, East Street, Station Parade 
and Ripple Road.  This option also allows for the rationalisation of the road network by 
providing a shorter bus route and more convenient bus stops for buses travelling from 
London Road to Station Parade. 
 
A complete refurbishment of the station is proposed with a new concourse, improved 
access to platforms, new shops with office development above. In the long-term it is 
proposed to extend the deck over the railway to create a new square and public transport 
interchange. 

Page 65



Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX E 
Lintons Station Quarter 

Page 67



Page 68

This page is intentionally left blank



 

THE EXECUTIVE 
 

28 JUNE 2005 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF HOUSING AND HEALTH 
 

BARKING AND HAVERING LOCAL IMPROVEMENT 
FINANCE TRUST (NHS LIFT) - LEVEL OF 
INVOLVEMENT 
 

FOR DECISION 

The Executive, at its meeting on 16 December 2003 (Minute 226 refers) agreed that the 
Council review its level of involvement in LIFTco.  This report is submitted to the Executive 
to determine the Council’s involvement following the review. 
 
Summary 
 
The Local Improvement Finance Trust (LIFT) partnership was set up to deliver the facilities 
needed to meet the health needs of the population over the next 20 years.  Currently 
Barking and Dagenham are involved in LIFTCo at Level 2.  This report proposes that the 
Council moves to Level 3 involvement in order to have voting rights and direct influence on 
the health and wellbeing of residents in this Borough. 
 
Recommendation 
 
The Executive is asked to agree that the Council moves to Level 3 involvement in the 
LIFTCo Board but does not become a shareholder. 
 
Reason 
 
Level 3 involvement will give voting rights and therefore more influence on the issues 
affecting the health and wellbeing of our residents.  Involvement at Level 3 will also reduce 
the risks around procurement, should we wish to commission work through the LIFT Co in 
the future. 
 
Contact: 
David Woods 
 

 
Director of Housing and 
Health 
 

 
Tel: 020 8227 5700 
Fax: 020 8227 5595 
Minicom: 020 8227 5755 
E-mail: david.woods@lbbd.gov.uk 
 

 
1. Background 
 
1.1 The Barking and Havering Strategic Partnering Board (SPB) was established to 

manage and deliver the process of securing a LIFT partner and to monitor the 
development of LIFT locally.  This Board draws its membership from across the 
entire local health authority and social care community.  

 

AGENDA ITEM 8

Page 69



 

1.2 On 15 April 2003 (Minute 409 refers) the Executive agreed in principle that 
participation in LIFTCo be raised from Level 2 to Level 3.  However legal advice 
was then sought and a further report was submitted to the Executive on 16 
December 2003 (Minute 226 refers) which decided that the Council should remain 
at Level 2 pending a further review after approximately 6 months. 

 
1.3 Essentially there are two aspects to the Council’s involvement with the LIFT Co.  

First the Council was named in the OJEC notice through which the LIFT Co’s 
development partner was procured.  This means that the Council could seek to 
procure capital schemes through the LIFT Co without going to tender.  However 
since the Council has not signed the Strategic Partnering Agreement our reliance 
on the original OJEC procedure becomes more tenuous over time.  Signing the 
Strategic Partnering Agreement and increasing our membership to level 3 will help 
to reduce this risk.   

 
1.4 It is this aspect of our involvement with the LIFT Co which has been the subject of 

previous reports to the Executive.  
 
1.5 A second aspect is the exercise by the Council of its general responsibilities for 

promoting the health and well-being of its residents.  Membership of the LIFT Co. at 
level 3 brings voting rights and a place at the Strategic Partnering Board.  This 
would enable the council to have greater influence over the activities of the LIFT Co 
as well as demonstrate a stronger commitment to partnership working with the 
Primary Care Trust (PCT), LIFT Co and other agencies.  

 
1.6 Signing the agreement at Level 3 gives the Council the right to include future 

requirements for social care premises within LIFT without an obligation to do so.  If 
the Council sign the Strategic Partnering Agreement at Level 3 we have the option 
of taking up lease plus agreements, just as we do at Level 2. 

 
1.7 However, if we do not take up this option within the first few years, under Level 2 we 

would be vulnerable to the claim that the original procurement time has expired. 
Signing the agreement at Level 3 significantly reduces the procurement risk by 
committing to participation in the Strategic Partnering Board and reserves the right 
to require LIFTCo to enter into lease plus arrangements without a commitment.  

 
1.8 It is stressed however that the Council would seek legal advice on any individual 

proposal for a joint venture scheme as it arose. 
 
1.9 Another aspect to be considered is that at Level 2 members do not have voting 

rights or direct influence.  Given our responsibility for the health and wellbeing of our 
residents and the importance of the provision of future health services in the 
Borough the Council would benefit from the position of influence that Level 3 would 
provide. 

 
1.10 The Executive is asked to note that moving to Level 3 does not mean the Council 

has to grant exclusivity and therefore the Council would not be obliged to put new 
schemes to LIFT.  Exclusivity does not become part of the agreement unless sign 
up is taken to Level 4.   

 
1.11 Appendix 1 explains the levels of involvement in more detail. 
 

Page 70



 

2. Conclusion  
 
2.1 The prime difference between Level 2 and Level 3 relates to signing the Strategic 

Partnering Agreement (SPA).  Signing the SPA reduces procurement risk for the 
Local Authority.  The duties associated with signing the SPA relate to participation 
in the Strategic Partnering Board, which allows the exercise of a level of control 
over the activities of LIFTCo.  The obligations are primarily attendance of a duly 
authorised representative at monthly meetings and support and sign off to the 
SSDP.  The rights far exceed the obligations in an environment of partnership 
working. 

 
3. Consultation 
 

Julie Parker – Director of Finance  
Colin Rigby – Head of Finance H & H 
Paul Feild – Legal Services 
Rebecca Scott – Barking and Dagenham PCT 

 
 
 
 
 
Background Papers Used in Preparation of this Report 
• Report to the Executive 23 July 2002 – NHS LIFT 
• Report to the Executive 15 April 2003 – Barking and Havering NHS Local 

Improvement Finance Trust (LIFT) 
• Report to the Executive 16 December 2003 – LIFT Programme 
• Options for Involvement of LBBD – attached as Appendix 1 
• Strategic Partnering Agreement 
 
 

Page 71



Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1 
 

Options for Involvement of London Borough of Barking and Dagenham 
in Barking and Havering LIFT 

 
1. Introduction 
 

The London Borough of Barking and Dagenham is represented on the Project 
Board of the Barking and Havering LIFT for the procurement of a private sector 
partner to improve health and social care services and facilities in the locality.  The 
aim of the LIFT procurement process is to appoint a private sector partner which will 
provide investment, ensure the delivery of specified projects, and work in 
partnership with named public sector organisations through the medium of a 
separate legal company (LIFTCo) established for that purpose. 

 
This paper sets out the options for involvement in LIFT by the London Borough of 
Barking and Dagenham.  It has been prepared to assist the Council in coming to its 
own conclusions. 

 
2. The Options 

 
Level 0 

 
‘No involvement’ 

 
Commentary: 

 
The Local Authority may lose the opportunity for future provision of integrated 
health and social care in the locality. 

 
Level 1 

 
‘Local Authorities are not named as contracting authorities in the OJEC 
advertisement (although they may be referred to as organisations with a potential 
interest)’. 

 
Commentary: 

 
If the local authority is not named as a contracting authority in the OJEC notice 
setting up the project, then it would be difficult for it to demonstrate that it has 
satisfied its obligations as a contracting authority to comply with the EU 
procurement rules as to tendering.  As it will at no point have been identified as a 
contracting authority participating in the project then any contract works or service 
using the local LIFTCo is likely to be in breach of EU procurement rules. 

 
It is still possible that the Local Authority would be entitled to enter into leases of 
specific properties but this would be dependent upon: 

 
• Establishing the transaction as a property arrangement.  This may be difficult 

where the Authority have any real input into the specification of the premises 
they are leasing and certainly the expectation of the lease plus documentation 
(that forms part of LIFT) is that they would.  The more the Local Authority control 

Page 73



the nature of the premises the greater the risk that the transaction will be 
regarded as the procurement of services caught by the EU Regulations. 

 
• Satisfying Local Authority probity and best value requirement.  Of course, it is 

quite possible that these could be met by valuation advice on the rent and other 
terms of the lease.  However, they would be far easier to be satisfied if the Local 
Authority were part of the procurement process, thereby establishing best value 
by means of evaluation and selection under a competitive procurement process. 

 
Level 2 

 
‘Local Authorities are named as contracting authorities but do not sign up to the 
SPA’ 

 
Commentary 

 
Whilst a greater level of local authority involvement would be preferred this may 
not be realistic given the time-scale outlined.  This option would allow the Local 
Authority to be part of the procurement process, reserving their position on 
whether they became a member of the SPA pending further more detailed 
evaluation.  It will give the authority the right to be a member of the SPA at a 
future date but no obligation to do so. 

 
The commitment that would be asked of the Local Authority is to be named as 
contracting authority in the OJEC and participate in the procurement process in 
evaluating and selecting the private sector partner that will invest in LIFTCo so 
that it has satisfied both EU procurement and its own probity requirements if it 
wishes to be included as a full participant of the SPA at a future date. 

 
This option gives the authority the right to take up lease plus agreements in 
respect of individual premises without signing up to the SPA.  In particular, this 
may be appropriate when the lease pluses are in the early years of the project.  
In these circumstances the Council should be able to argue that the 
arrangement falls within the original procurement in which the Council is a 
contracting party. 

 
However, as the Council has not signed the SPA, the Council will not be 
committed to giving the LIFTCo “first refusal” on new builds or refurbishments of 
new premises.  Thus as time elapses the Council may become more vulnerable 
to a claim that the original procurement and the audit trail is time expired.  This 
is particularly the case if the Council does not take up any lease pluses in the 
early years and therefore has in effect retained a long-term option to take up the 
lease pluses with no proactive involvement in the interim. 

 
The counter argument to this is that the original process envisages long term 
arrangements and therefore later schemes are contemplated by the original 
procurement.  However this argument is weakened by the fact that the Council 
has not committed to this by signing the SPA. 

 
In summary, the procurement risks associated with this option increase over 
time.  In order to minimise procurement risks, the decision on whether or not to 
become a member of the SPA should, preferably, be taken by the time the 

Page 74



contract is awarded.  The local authority will have at least a year until award of 
contract to consider its position.  Once the contract is awarded and the LIFT 
Project starts to become operational it will become more difficult to justify the 
joining in of additional contracting authorities.  The longer the time lag, the 
higher the risk of criticism and challenge.  If the Local Authority have only a 
speculative and long-term intention of being a member of the SPA it may not be 
a viable option to consider as it may be regarded as too high risk. 

 
Please note that it is still possible that the Local Authority would be entitled to 
enter into traditional forms of leases of specific properties at a later stage since 
traditional property transactions are not caught by the EU procurement rules.  
However this would be dependent upon: 

 
• Establishing the transaction as a property arrangement.  This may be difficult 

where the Authority have any real input into the specification of the premises 
they are leasing and certainly the expectation of the lease plus document 
(that forms part of LIFT) is that they should.  The more the Local authority 
control the nature of the premises the greater the risk that the transaction will 
be regarded as the procurement of works caught by the EU Regulations.  
Furthermore, the nature of the lease plus agreement means that the 
arrangements may also be regarded as a procurement of services rather 
than a transitional property arrangement. 

 
• Satisfying local authority probity and best value requirement.  It is of course 

quite possible that these  could be met by valuation advice on the rent and 
other terms of the lease. 

 
Level 3 

 
‘Local Authorities are named as contracting authorities, they sign up to the 
SPA, but do not grant the exclusivity provided for in the SPA.’ 

 
Commentary 

 
Again, under this option the local authority are largely reserving their position 
giving themselves the right to include future requirements for social care 
premises within LIFT without an obligation to do so.  If the local authority 
were willing to investigate this as an option it would probably require a more 
detailed review of the SPA to assess whether other more general 
commitments contained in the SPA may need to either be accepted by the 
Local Authority or possibly diluted in respect of their participation. 

 
Since the local authority would not be obliged to offer schemes to LIFTCo in 
later years the time elapse argument referred to under Level 2 may apply, 
making later schemes vulnerable to the claim that the original procurement is 
time expired.  However, the Council may have a stronger counter argument 
since by signing the SPA it has set out a framework for a longer-term 
relationship with LIFTCo.  This relationship includes committing to 
participating in the Strategic Partnering Board and reserving a right to require 
LIFTCo to enter into lease plus arrangements without a commitment. 

 

Page 75



Level 4 
 

‘Local Authorities sign up fully to the SPA, including the grant of exclusivity.’ 
 

Commentary: 
 

This would commit the Council to the terms of the SPA, including 
involvement on the Strategic Partnering Board. 

 
There would be issues that would need to be resolved in discussions the 
Local Authorities over the extent of any exclusivity obligations.  Whilst in a 
general sense it is expected that these would be limited to social service 
premises there is little doubt that this would require greater clarity.  The 
exclusivity obligations in the SPA, as currently drafted, covers new build and 
capital projects for the enhancement of facilities required for primary and 
community based health and social care in the area.  The Council would 
need to clarify the exact extent of exclusivity in relation to its social services 
premises. 

 
The exclusivity provisions means that the Council will be obliged to put new 
schemes to LIFT through the life of the SPA.  Therefore, it should not be 
subject to arguments that the original procurement is time elapsed when 
entering into schemes in later years (compare with Levels 2 and 3). 

 
This would offer the greatest commitment to LIFT in terms of establishing a 
long-term partnership with LIFTCo in the delivery of more integrated health 
and social care provision.  It will also attract a greater commitment from 
potential LIFTCo partners both in terms of bidding interest and commitments 
towards the partnering services to develop the Participants future 
requirements.  It is desirable but not essential in terms of delivering the 
overall aims of LIFT. 

 
3. Becoming a Shareholder in LIFTCo 
 

The Shareholders Agreement envisages local health and social care stakeholders 
being able to be shareholders in the company, whether or not they are participants 
to the SPA.  Any shareholding that the Council or other local health economy 
stakeholder took in the company is envisaged to be part of a minority shareholding 
that has influence over the companies operations and planning of future 
requirements, but is within the context of a private sector controlled company. 

 
Shareholding may be acquired, for example, in return for assets transferred into the 
LIFTCo (obviously, at a best consideration value).  To the extent that the value of 
assets transferred exceeded the shareholding, the excess value could be taken in 
cash or other forms of investment in the company. 

Page 76



THE EXECUTIVE 
 

28 JUNE 2005 
 

REPORT FROM THE DIRECTOR OF SOCIAL SERVICES AND 
THE DIRECTOR OF HOUSING AND HEALTH 

 
SUPPORTING PEOPLE 
 

FOR DECISION 

This report concerns a long term strategy for delivering the Supporting People programme 
required by government, and approval is required from the Executive. 
 
Summary 
 
This report: 
 
•  Describes the Supporting People 5-year Strategy which recommends a shift in funding 

allocation to meet the needs of underserved groups and a range of new developments 
to be implemented by 2010, and  

 
•  Notes progress in the delivery of the Supporting People programme since the Audit 

Commission inspection in November 2004. 
 
Recommendations 
 
The Executive is asked to: 
 
1. Endorse the Supporting People 5-year Strategy, and to require an annual report to the 

Executive on implementation; and 
 
2. Notes progress made in delivery of the Supporting People Programme. 
 
Reasons 
 
The Council is an Administering Authority for the Supporting People grant and is required 
to publish a 5-year strategy describing how resources will be re-allocated to meet the 
identified housing related support needs of vulnerable people. 
 
Contact Officer: 
Bruce Morris 
 
 
 
 
Nicola McBride 
 

 
Head of Adult Services 
Social Services 
 
 
 
Interim Supporting 
People Programme 
Manager 
 

 
Tel:  020 8227 2749 
Fax: 020 8227 2241 
Minicom: 020 8227 2462 
E-mail: bruce.morris@lbbd.gov.uk 
 
Tel;   020 8227 2885 
Fax: 020 8227 2241 
Minicom: 020 8227 2462 
E-mail: nicola.mcbride@lbbd.gov.uk 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM 9

Page 77



  

1. Background 
 
1.1 The Supporting People Programme commissions housing related support for 

vulnerable groups.  Support is provided through a mix of schemes provided by the 
Council and external providers.  Schemes can be accommodation based or provide 
“floating support” in people’s own homes.  The programme went live in April 2003 
and is overseen by the Office of the Deputy Prime Minister (ODPM).  The Council 
took a cautious approach to the inclusion of marginal services in submissions 
during the lead in period and receives a comparatively low grant as a result.   

 
1.2 Decisions about funding allocations are made in partnership with health and 

probation through a Supporting People Commissioning Body which is now chaired 
by the Director of Housing and Health.  Contracts are awarded by the Council as 
the Administering Authority. 

 
1.3 An inspection by the Audit Commission in November 2004 rated Barking and 

Dagenham as providing a poor service with uncertain prospects for improvement.  
All existing schemes receiving Supporting People funding are to be reviewed by 
March 2006 and issued with “steady state” or longer term contracts for between 3-5 
years, and a published 5-year local strategy was due to be with the ODPM by the 
end of March 2005. 

 
1.4 The 5 year strategy needed to deal with a number of issues inherent in the current 

programme, and provide an agreed way of addressing them. 
 

• There were a number of client groups where there was no Supporting People 
service provision particularly in less popular areas, and others where there 
appeared to be over supply. 

• There are a number of schemes due to come on stream which would potentially 
make the programme over committed in future years 

• There were a number of schemes the Council and it’s partners wished to commit 
to but there was uncertainty about how the availability of Supporting People 
funding as part of the overall package 

 
1.5 The remainder of the report details progress since the inspection, and then 

highlights the main messages of the 5-year strategy. 
 
2. Delivering an Improved Supporting People Programme 
 
2.1 The Audit Commission inspection report was reported to Members on the 15 March 

together with a comprehensive improvement plan.  Progress against milestones 
and targets in the plan have been monitored on a monthly basis by Social Services 
Departmental Management Team and reported to the Commissioning Body at each 
meeting.  Monitoring takes the form of a detailed monitoring form recording 
progress to date against all of the recommendations arising from the inspection 
report.  The most recent report is attached at Appendix 1. 

 
2.2 In addition there is a commitment to provide a quarterly written report to the 

Corporate Management team and the Corporate Monitoring Group.  This forms the 
basis of the first of these reports. 

 

Page 78



  

2.3 The capacity of the Supporting People team has been increased significantly.  A 
new staffing structure has been established with new posts created including a 
regraded manager / lead officer post.  Permanent staff are currently being recruited 
to in the team.  The new structure is attached at Appendix 2. 

 
2.4 The ODPM have provided support to the team in the form of additional training on 

specific areas, guidance on policies and procedures, and mentoring / consultancy to 
the temporary manager.  The consultant (who reports to the ODPM) recently 
produced a written report noting progress in the team and identifying further work.  
The report is attached at Appendix 3.  It is consistent with the action plan and notes 
progress in key areas.  The recommendations noted have either been completed or 
are in the process of implementation. 

 
2.5 A reconstituted Commissioning Body has met regularly under the leadership of the 

Director of Housing and Health.  There are revised terms of reference and a 
Memorandum of Understanding agreed between the Council and key partners 
represented on the body from Probation and Health.  The Commissioning Body has 
agreed new procedures to govern the work of the programme and the rationale for 
decision making, the review timetable, and the 5-year strategy. 

 
2.6 The Core Strategy Group has been established and meets bi-monthly.  This has 

representatives from all the main client groups covered by Supporting People.  The 
role of the Core Strategy Group is to act as a stakeholder body to inform and 
consult on all key decisions regarding the programme. 

 
2.7 The Audit Commission are intending to inspect the Supporting People Programme 

again in 12-18 months time.  The Head of Service responsible (in the role of 
Accountable Officer) and the Director of Housing and Health (in the role of Chair of 
the Commissioning Body) are meeting with the Audit Commission and the ODPM to 
clarify the timescale.  Following this a plan will be developed to prepare for the re-
inspection and agreed by the Corporate Management Team. 

 
3. The 5-Year Strategy 
 
3.1 The authority is required to produce a 5-year strategy for the Supporting People 

programme which details how the authority plans to re-allocate resources to meet 
identified need.  This needs to take into account information about existing supply, 
needs assessments of the key client groups, and essentially sets the benchmark 
against which existing services are reviewed and new services developed.   

 
3.2 The strategy is a working document, reviewed on an annual basis in the light of 

information about funding and changes in circumstances on the ground.  The 
annual review is a formal requirement of the authority’s grant conditions and will be 
reported to Members. 

 
3.3 The ODPM agreed a further 3 months to develop the strategy following the Audit 

Commission inspection, before submission at the end of June.  The highlights of the 
strategy are planned changes in funding allocations for most of the groups currently 
receiving Supporting People funding, improved efficiency from schemes where we 
enter into longer term contracts, and the development of new schemes to address 
unmet need funded through the re-allocation of resources.  The full strategy and an 
Executive Summary are attached at Appendix 4. 

Page 79



  

 
3.4 Where recommendations are made for a decrease in funding for any service, this 

will be accompanied by a full risk assessment covering the impacts for service 
users and the provider.  Reductions in funding will be negotiated with providers and 
where possible a consensus achieved.  The Commissioning Body will make the 
final decision based on the strategic relevance of the service (as evidenced by the 
5-year strategy) and a published methodology for assessing cost and quality. 

 
3.5 New developments which meet the needs of currently under represented client 

groups will be funded from resources released during the review and contracting 
process.  A major planned new development which will receive funding from the 
Supporting People programme in later years is a Foyer scheme.  This development 
is being led by Housing and Health and will provide a service for young people with 
support needs currently housed in unsupported lodgings and bed and breakfast 
accommodation.  The aim will be to provide education, training and support for a 
number of client groups who currently receive little or no Supporting People funded 
support. 

 
4. Conclusions 
 
4.1 Steady progress has been made in improving the delivery of the Supporting People 

programme since the inspection.  The focus has been on establishing the building 
blocks, improving capacity in the team, establishing robust governance processes 
for decision making, and agreeing procedures to provide a framework for 
implementation of change.  There remains a challenging programme of work to be 
undertaken which will require careful monitoring to ensure the 2005 / 2006 
programme is completed. 

 
4.2 The Supporting People 5-year strategy is a milestone for the programme and sets 

out, in some detail in earlier years, the authority’s commissioning intentions.  There 
has been extensive consultation on the earlier draft, with comments taken into 
account in the final version.  Implementation of the strategy will be the task of the 
Commissioning Body and the Supporting People team. 

 
5. Equalities 
 
5.1 The current Supporting People programme allocates resources according to 

historical funding patterns rather than need.  A number of disadvantaged client 
groups currently receive little or no Supporting People funded support services, 
including hard to reach groups and Black and Ethnic Minority groups with particular 
needs in the borough.  The 5-year strategy will re-allocate resources according to 
need over a 5-year period, and provide a more balanced and equitable distribution 
of scarce resources. 

 
6. Financial Considerations 
 
6.1 The Supporting People programme is fully funded by the ODPM grant (£4.8 million 

in 2005 / 2006). 
 
6.2 All the resource re-allocations referred to above will be combined within the 

Supporting People budgets. 
 

Page 80



  

6.3 The restructure of the Supporting People Support Team (circa £300k) will be 
contained within the Supporting People Administration Grant and Social Services 
resources. 

 
7. Consultation 
 
7.1 The draft strategy was consulted though: 

•  Statutory partners on the Supporting People Commissioning Body; Housing and 
Health, the Primary Care Trust and Probation. 

•  Representatives from the client groups through the Core Strategy Groups 
•  With providers and current users of Supporting People funded services through 

the Supporting People Providers forum. 
 

7.2 The draft strategy was amended as a result of comments received during the 
consultation process, and the final document endorsed by the Supporting People 
Commissioning Body on the 23rd May 2005. 

 
 
 
Background Papers 
Report to Executive dated 15th March 2005, Supporting People 
  

Page 81



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



A
PP

EN
D

IX
 1

Su
pp

or
tin

g 
Pe

op
le

 D
el

iv
er

y 
an

d 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
20

05
/0

6
A

ct
io

n
R

es
po

ns
ib

le
D

at
e 

D
ue

St
at

us
A

ct
io

ns
/E

vi
de

nc
e

R
is

ks
R

is
k 

C
on

tr
ol

s
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
B

od
y

Q
ua

rte
rly

 re
vi

ew
 o

f p
la

n
C

B
Ja

n-
05

Pl
an

 s
et

 u
p 

fo
r C

B 
re

vi
ew

N
on

e
N

/A
R

eg
ul

ar
 s

ub
m

is
si

on
 o

f a
ll 

re
po

rts
, p

la
ns

 a
nd

 ti
m

et
ab

le
s 

to
 C

B 
fo

r a
gr

ee
m

en
t. 

SP
 M

gr
Ja

n-
05

Ag
re

ed
 re

po
rti

ng
R

ep
or

ts
 s

lip
Ti

m
el

in
e 

fo
r a

ll 
re

po
rts

M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

& 
Te

rm
s 

of
 re

fe
re

nc
e 

to
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 a

nd
 

ag
re

ed
.

C
B

Fe
b-

05
To

R
 c

irc
ul

at
ed

N
on

e
N

/A
Aw

ar
en

es
s 

an
d 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t f
or

 C
B 

m
em

be
rs

 to
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
C

ha
ir 

of
 C

B
M

ar
-0

5
M

em
be

rs
 b

rie
fe

d
In

su
ffi

ci
en

t c
om

m
itm

en
t 

by
 m

em
be

rs
C

ha
ir 

to
 d

is
cu

ss
 w

ith
 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

Ke
y 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
to

 b
e 

de
fin

ed
 in

 o
rd

er
 to

 m
ee

t t
he

 n
ee

ds
 o

f 
th

e 
un

-m
et

.
C

B 
M

ar
-0

5
Pa

rt 
of

 s
tra

te
gy

In
su

ffi
ci

en
t b

as
e 

da
ta

D
at

a 
an

d 
ch

al
le

ng
es

 in
 5

 y
ea

r 
St

ra
te

gy
. 

C
or

e 
St

ra
te

gy
 G

ro
up

 

C
or

e 
St

ra
te

gy
 G

ro
up

 re
-fo

rm
ed

C
B 

Fe
b-

05
M

ee
tin

g 
he

ld
 7

 F
eb

N
on

e
N

/A

Bi
-M

on
th

ly
 m

ee
tin

gs
 to

 b
e 

bo
ok

ed
SP

 M
gr

Fe
b-

05
Bo

ok
ed

N
on

e
N

/A

Aw
ar

en
es

s 
& 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

rra
ng

ed
C

SG
 C

ha
ir

Fe
b-

05
M

em
be

rs
 b

ei
ng

 b
rie

fe
d

In
su

ffi
ci

en
t c

om
m

itm
en

t 
by

 m
em

be
rs

C
ha

ir 
to

 d
is

cu
ss

 w
ith

 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs

Te
rm

s 
of

 re
fe

re
nc

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d

C
SG

 C
ha

ir
Fe

b-
05

To
R

 c
irc

ul
at

ed
N

on
e

N
/A

C
or

po
ra

te
 O

w
ne

rs
hi

p
D

ep
ut

y 
Le

ad
er

 w
ho

 is
 c

ha
ir 

of
 C

M
G

 is
 to

 b
ec

om
e 

th
e 

po
rtf

ol
io

 h
ol

de
r.

C
B

Fe
b-

05
Ag

re
ed

N
on

e 
N

/A

Ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

ils
 B

al
an

ce
d 

Sc
or

ec
ar

d
Bu

si
ne

ss
 M

gr
Fe

b-
05

Sc
or

ec
ar

d 
de

ve
lo

pe
d

N
ot

 a
pp

lie
d

R
is

ks
 in

 B
SC

 a
nd

 m
on

ito
re

d

En
su

re
 M

em
be

r a
w

ar
en

es
s

H
ea

d 
of

 A
du

lt 
Se

rv
ic

e
Fe

b-
05

M
em

be
r b

rie
fin

g 
he

ld
M

em
be

rs
 u

na
w

ar
e

C
llr

 G
ed

de
s 

SP
 C

ha
m

pi
on

 - 
Br

ie
fin

g 
9 

Fe
b

R
ai

se
 S

P 
pr

of
ile

 b
y 

en
su

rin
g 

th
at

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

in
 a

ll 
m

aj
or

 
fo

ru
m

s 
on

 a
 re

gu
la

r b
as

is
.

D
ir.

 o
f S

oc
ia

l 
Se

rv
ic

e
Ap

r-0
5

H
os

te
d 

SP
 w

or
ks

ho
p 

@
 H

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
 C

on
fe

re
nc

e 
2 

Ju
ne

 w
ith

 S
IT

R
A

Pr
of

ile
 n

ot
 ra

is
ed

En
su

re
 re

gu
la

r i
te

m
 o

n 
TM

T 
an

d 
C

M
G

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n

M
in

ut
ed

 te
am

 m
ee

tin
gs

 h
el

d 
on

 a
 m

on
th

ly
 b

as
is

SP
 M

gr
Fe

b-
05

Te
am

 m
ee

tin
gs

 h
el

d
M

ee
tin

gs
 n

ot
 h

el
d

M
on

ito
re

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
1:

1s

C
le

ar
 w

or
kp

la
n 

fo
r t

ea
m

 to
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

w
ith

 P
Is

 
SP

 M
gr

Fe
b-

05
D

ra
ft 

w
or

kp
la

n 
pr

od
uc

ed
 1

5t
h 

M
ar

ch
W

or
kp

la
n 

no
t d

ev
el

op
ed

 
an

d 
PI

s 
no

t S
M

AR
T

M
on

ito
re

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
1:

1s

Al
l v

ac
an

t p
os

ts
 to

 b
e 

fil
le

d
SP

 M
gr

Fe
b-

05
Te

m
p 

M
gr

 s
ta

rte
d 

22
nd

 F
eb

, T
em

p 
SR

O
 s

ta
rte

d 
7t

h 
Ap

ril
N

o 
su

ita
bl

e 
ca

nd
id

at
es

U
se

 o
f A

ge
nc

y 
st

af
f p

ro
 te

m

C
irc

ul
at

e 
ap

pe
al

s 
po

lic
y 

to
 s

er
vi

ce
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

SP
 M

gr
Fe

b-
05

C
irc

ul
at

ed
 w

ith
 s

er
vi

ce
 re

vi
ew

 m
an

ua
l a

t P
F 

8t
h 

Ap
ril

Sl
ip

pa
ge

M
on

ito
re

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
1:

1s
In

te
rn

al
 u

se
 o

f s
td

 fo
rm

 fo
r c

ol
le

ct
in

g 
PI

s 
in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 
O

D
PM

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

SP
 M

gr
 

M
ar

-0
5

Bu
si

ne
ss

 S
up

po
rt 

O
ffi

ce
r p

ro
vi

di
ng

 c
oa

ch
in

g 
an

d 
tra

in
in

g 
to

 H
&H

 a
nd

 S
S 

on
 c

om
pl

et
io

n 
of

 P
I w

or
kb

oo
ks

. 1
sr

 w
/b

oo
ks

 d
ue

 J
un

e 
20

05
D

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
 n

ot
 s

ig
ne

d 
up

, a
nd

 in
co

rre
ct

 fo
rm

at
 

H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 to
 e

nf
or

ce
 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 n
ee

ds
 a

na
ly

si
s 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
w

ith
 a

ll 
st

af
f

H
ea

d 
of

 A
du

lt 
Se

rv
ic

e
M

ar
-0

5
D

on
e.

 O
D

PM
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 m
en

to
rin

g 
to

 te
m

p 
st

af
f a

s 
re

qu
ire

d.
Sl

ip
pa

ge
 if

 s
ta

ff 
no

t i
n 

po
st

 
M

on
ito

re
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

1:
1s

Te
am

 in
du

ct
io

n,
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
& 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t i

m
pl

em
en

te
d

SP
 M

gr
M

ar
-0

5
Te

am
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

 u
nd

er
 re

vi
ew

Sl
ip

pa
ge

 if
 s

ta
ff 

no
t i

n 
po

st
M

on
ito

re
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

1:
1s

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 c
ha

rg
in

g 
po

lic
y 

fo
r s

he
lte

re
d 

ho
us

in
g 

te
na

nt
s

H
ea

d 
of

 L
LS

Ap
r-0

5
Th

om
as

 O
ye

tu
nd

e 
le

ad
in

g 
as

 p
ar

t o
f S

he
lte

re
d 

H
ou

si
ng

 R
ev

ie
w

C
ha

rg
in

g 
no

t i
n 

pl
ac

e 
as

 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
sl

ip
pe

d
N

ot
ifi

ca
tio

n 
is

su
ed

 w
ith

 re
nt

 
no

tif
ic

at
io

n 
in

 F
eb

 0
5

So
ci

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

IiP
 a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t

D
 o

f S
S

N
ov

-0
5

N
ot

 a
ch

ie
ve

d
W

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 c

on
su

lta
nt

 
ap

po
in

te
d 

fo
r I

iP
Sy

st
em

s 
an

d 
pr

oc
es

se
s

R
ec

ru
itm

en
t o

f B
us

in
es

s 
M

an
ag

er
SP

 M
gr

Fe
b-

05
Te

m
po

ra
ry

 c
ov

er
 fr

om
 2

4 
Ja

n
N

o 
su

ita
bl

e 
ca

nd
id

at
e

U
se

 o
f a

ge
nc

y 
st

af
f p

ro
 te

m
D

ev
el

op
 c

ro
ss

 b
or

ou
gh

 w
or

ki
ng

 ta
ki

ng
 a

cc
ou

nt
 o

f g
oo

d 
pr

ac
tic

e 
(e

sp
. l

ow
 ri

sk
 b

or
ou

gh
s)

SP
 M

gr
Fe

b-
05

R
eg

ul
ar

ily
 a

tte
nd

in
g 

Ea
st

 L
on

do
n 

Fo
ru

m
. B

ud
dy

in
g 

sy
st

em
 s

et
 u

p 
w

ith
 

ot
he

r A
A'

s.
 M

en
to

r's
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 O

D
PM

 o
n 

PI
's

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

 re
vi

ew
s

N
o 

in
te

re
st

 in
 s

uc
h 

w
or

ki
ng

Pr
oa

ct
iv

e 
w

or
k 

by
 te

am

El
ig

ib
ilit

y 
cr

ite
ria

 re
vi

si
te

d 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
ed

Bu
si

ne
ss

 
M

an
ag

er
M

ar
-0

5
C

rit
ie

ria
 a

gr
ee

d 
by

 C
B 

an
d 

ci
rc

ul
at

ed
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

rs
 8

th
 A

pr
il

N
ot

 c
om

pl
et

ed
O

n 
ag

en
da

 fo
r C

B 
in

 M
ar

ch
Fi

na
nc

ia
l m

gt
 to

 b
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
an

d 
in

te
rn

al
ly

 a
ud

ite
d 

to
 

en
su

re
 m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 s
cr

ut
in

y.
SP

 M
gr

M
ar

-0
5

SP
m

gr
 re

ce
iv

ed
 fi

rs
t m

on
th

ly
 A

dm
in

 g
ra

nt
 re

po
rt 

M
ar

ch
In

su
ffi

ci
en

t m
gt

 a
nd

 
sc

ru
tin

y
R

eg
ul

ar
 it

em
 in

 C
B

Pr
ov

id
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 in
fo

. o
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

& 
ad

m
in

 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 fo
r C

B 
sc

ru
tin

y 
on

 q
ua

rte
rly

 b
as

is
Fi

na
nc

e
M

ar
-0

5
C

B 
to

 re
ce

iv
in

g 
re

po
rts

 e
ac

h 
m

ee
tin

g.
Fi

na
nc

ia
l i

nf
o 

no
t 

fo
rth

co
m

in
g

R
eg

ul
ar

 it
em

 o
n 

C
B

In
tro

du
ce

 s
ta

nd
ar

di
se

d 
fo

rm
at

 fo
r c

ol
le

ct
in

g 
O

D
PM

 
re

po
rti

ng
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
.

SP
 M

gr
M

ar
-0

5
Bu

si
ne

ss
 S

up
po

rt 
O

ffi
ce

r p
ro

vi
di

ng
 c

oa
ch

in
g 

an
d 

tra
in

in
g 

to
 H

&H
 a

nd
 S

S 
on

 c
om

pl
et

io
n 

of
 P

I w
or

kb
oo

ks
. 1

sr
 w

/b
oo

ks
 d

ue
 J

un
e 

20
05

Sl
ip

pa
ge

 d
ue

 to
 w

or
k 

pr
es

su
re

s
M

on
ito

rin
g 

th
ro

ug
h 

1:
1s

17
/0

6/
05

D
SS

An
na

W
at

ki
ns

Su
pp

or
tin

gP
eo

pl
eA

pp
en

di
x1

Su
pp

or
tin

gP
eo

pl
eD

el
iv

er
ya

nd
Im

pr
ov

em
en

tP
la

nM
on

ito
rin

gF
or

m
0.

xl
s

Page 83



Su
pp

or
tin

g 
Pe

op
le

 D
el

iv
er

y 
an

d 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
20

05
/0

6
A

ct
io

n
R

es
po

ns
ib

le
D

at
e 

D
ue

St
at

us
A

ct
io

ns
/E

vi
de

nc
e

R
is

ks
R

is
k 

C
on

tr
ol

s
Ex

pl
or

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
re

-d
ev

el
op

m
en

t r
e 

C
B 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
to

 m
ee

t 
ne

ed
s 

of
 h

ar
d 

to
 re

ac
h 

an
d 

un
-m

et
.

SP
 M

gr
M

ar
-0

5
W

ith
in

 th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

.  
Pr

op
os

al
s 

fo
r u

nd
er

sp
en

d 
re

ce
iv

ed
 fr

om
 Y

O
T 

O
ut

lo
ok

 
C

ar
e/

 P
&S

/ Y
M

C
A/

Ea
ve

s 
To

 b
e 

ev
al

ua
te

d 
an

d 
su

bm
itt

ed
 to

 C
B 

fo
r d

ec
is

io
n 

In
su

ffi
ci

en
t b

ud
ge

t t
o 

m
ee

t n
ee

ds
In

 5
 Y

ea
r S

tra
te

gy
  t

o 
ch

al
le

ng
e 

an
d 

re
pr

io
rit

is
e 

an
d 

m
on

ito
re

d 
by

 
D

ev
el

op
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 p

la
n 

w
ith

 b
en

ch
m

ar
ki

ng
 w

ith
 

co
m

pa
ra

bl
e 

au
th

or
iti

es
, w

ith
 lo

ca
l P

Is
.

H
of

AS
/H

of
P 

(S
S)

 
M

ar
-0

5
KP

I t
o 

be
 u

se
d 

fo
r i

nt
er

na
l b

en
ch

m
ar

ki
ng

.  
N

o 
cr

os
s 

bo
ro

ug
h 

sy
st

em
 

ag
re

ed
 y

et
. 

Sy
st

em
 c

an
't 

ge
ne

ra
te

 
re

po
rts

 in
 ti

m
e

M
an

ua
l s

ys
te

m
s 

as
 b

ac
k 

up
R

is
k 

lo
g 

to
 b

e 
up

da
te

d 
an

d 
re

po
rte

d 
to

 C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

Bo
dy

SP
 M

gr
M

ay
-0

5
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
ris

k 
lo

g 
to

 b
e 

su
bm

itt
ed

 w
ith

 5
 y

ea
r s

tra
te

gy
 b

y 
8t

h 
Ju

ne
N

ot
 u

p 
da

te
d

M
on

ito
re

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
C

B 
ag

en
da

R
ev

ie
w

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

to
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 a

nd
 p

rio
rit

is
ed

 b
y 

C
B

C
B

M
ay

-0
5

R
ev

is
ed

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

ag
re

ed
 b

y 
C

B 
23

rd
 M

ay
.

N
ot

 re
vi

ew
ed

Ite
m

 o
n 

C
B 

ag
en

da
D

ev
el

op
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

fo
r a

ll 
w

or
k,

 in
cl

 
co

nt
. i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t &

 s
tra

te
gi

c 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

.
Bu

si
ne

ss
 

M
an

ag
er

M
ay

-0
5

Se
rv

ic
e 

R
ev

ie
w

 M
an

ua
l p

ro
du

ce
d.

 R
is

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t d
ra

fte
d.

 F
in

an
ci

al
  

an
d 

le
tti

ng
 o

f c
on

tra
ct

s 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 b

y 
en

d 
Ju

ly
.

Sl
ip

pa
ge

 d
ue

 to
 w

or
k 

pr
es

su
re

s.
 O

th
er

 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

th
ro

ug
h 

1:
1s

R
eg

ul
ar

 re
vi

ew
 o

f a
ll 

sy
st

em
s 

to
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d

Bu
si

ne
ss

 
M

an
ag

er
Ju

n-
05

Bu
si

ne
ss

 s
up

po
rt 

no
w

 in
 p

os
t. 

C
on

tin
uo

us
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t w
ill 

be
 b

ui
lt 

in
to

 
pr

ev
io

us
 ta

rg
et

 to
 'd

ev
el

op
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

fo
r a

ll 
w

or
k'

.
Sl

ip
pa

ge
 d

ue
 to

 w
or

k 
pr

es
su

re
s

M
on

ito
rin

g 
th

ro
ug

h 
1:

1s
R

ev
ie

w
 p

ro
ce

du
re

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 to

 in
cl

ud
e 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

an
d 

m
on

ito
rin

g,
 w

ith
 re

po
rti

ng
 to

 C
B.

SP
 M

gr
Ju

n-
05

Se
rv

ic
e 

R
ev

ie
w

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

C
B 

23
rd

 M
ay

. F
irs

t A
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 
pr

od
uc

ed
 in

 J
un

e.
 F

irs
t m

on
ito

rin
g 

re
po

rt 
to

 C
B 

25
th

 J
ul

y.
Sl

ip
pa

ge
 d

ue
 to

 w
or

k 
pr

es
su

re
s

M
on

ito
rin

g 
th

ro
ug

h 
1:

1s
5 

ye
ar

 s
tr

at
eg

y

5 
Ye

ar
 s

tra
te

gy
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

la
n 

to
 b

e 
pr

od
uc

ed
SP

 M
gr

Fe
b-

05
Pr

od
uc

ed
 a

nd
 c

irc
ul

at
ed

N
on

e 
N

/A
5 

ye
ar

 s
tra

te
gy

 p
ro

du
ce

d 
an

d 
ag

re
ed

 w
ith

 c
le

ar
 li

nk
s 

to
 

ot
he

r s
tra

te
gi

es
 

SP
 M

gr
M

ar
-0

5
D

ra
ft 

pr
od

uc
ed

 a
nd

 o
ut

 to
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
18

th
 M

ar
ch

St
ra

te
gy

 n
ot

 ro
bu

st
U

si
ng

 e
xt

er
na

l c
on

su
lta

nt
 to

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 M

gr
. a

nd
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

O
D

PM
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
pl

an
 to

 b
e 

pr
od

uc
ed

 &
 re

vi
ew

ed
 

an
nu

al
ly

, a
nd

 m
on

ito
re

d 
qu

ar
te

rly
C

B
M

ar
-0

5
m

on
ito

re
d 

at
 P

ro
je

ct
 T

ea
m

/C
B 

an
d 

su
pe

rv
is

io
n 

se
ss

io
ns

As
 fo

r s
tra

te
gy

As
 fo

r s
tra

te
gy

 a
nd

 it
em

s 
sc

he
du

le
 d

on
 C

B 
ag

en
da

 
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n
St

at
em

en
t o

ut
lin

in
g 

C
ou

nc
il's

 re
sp

on
se

 to
 In

sp
ec

tio
n 

re
po

rt
C

hi
ef

 E
xe

c
Fe

b-
05

Pr
od

uc
ed

 a
nd

 p
ub

lis
he

d 
5t

h 
M

ay
N

on
e

N
/A

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

of
 c

ha
ng

es
 to

 C
B,

 C
SG

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 a

re
as

 
to

 a
ll 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

. 
SP

 M
gr

Fe
b-

05
C

ha
ng

es
 b

ei
ng

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

ed
N

ot
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
ed

M
on

ito
re

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
1:

1s
N

ew
 li

te
ra

tu
re

 p
ro

du
ce

d 
an

d 
ci

rc
ul

at
ed

 to
 ta

rg
et

 
au

di
en

ce
, a

nd
 to

 w
eb

si
te

/in
tra

ne
t.

SP
 M

gr
M

ar
-0

5
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 1
3/

05
/0

5
Sl

ip
pa

ge
C

om
m

s 
St

ra
te

gy

Aw
ar

en
es

s 
fo

r F
ro

nt
 li

ne
 s

ta
ff 

to
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d

C
om

m
s 

M
an

ag
er

M
ar

-0
5

Ar
tic

le
 in

 a
nd

 to
 a

pp
ea

r t
hi

s 
w

ee
k 

in
 D

ire
ct

or
's

 N
ew

sl
et

te
r, 

ne
xt

 w
ee

k 
in

 
Pe

op
le

 M
at

te
r a

nd
 in

 th
e 

ne
xt

 M
em

be
rs

 M
at

te
r.

N
ot

 d
ev

el
op

ed
C

om
m

s 
St

ra
te

gy

As
se

ss
m

en
t o

f g
ap

s 
to

 b
e 

an
al

ys
ed

C
om

m
s 

& 
SP

  
M

gr
M

ar
-0

5
G

ap
 a

na
ly

si
s 

to
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 a
fte

r a
w

ar
en

es
s 

ra
is

ed
. 

G
ap

s 
m

is
se

d
D

ev
el

op
 C

om
m

s 
St

ra
te

gy
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 s

tra
te

gy
 in

cl
 u

se
r c

on
su

lta
tio

n,
 a

nd
 x

-
de

pt
 a

nd
 x

-a
ut

ho
rit

y 
pa

rti
ci

pa
tio

n
C

om
m

s 
M

an
ag

er
M

ar
-0

5
co

m
pl

et
ed

  A
pr

il 
20

05
N

ot
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 a
nd

 d
oe

s 
no

t i
nc

lu
de

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

M
on

ito
re

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
1:

1s

Li
nk

s 
w

ith
 B

ar
ki

ng
 &

 D
ag

en
ha

m
 D

ire
ct

.
SP

 M
gr

Ap
r-0

5
To

 c
om

m
en

ce
Li

nk
s 

m
is

se
d

M
on

ito
re

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
1:

1s
As

se
ss

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 h

sg
 s

pt
 fo

r B
M

E,
 a

nd
 

ha
rd

 to
 re

ac
h 

gr
ou

ps
.

C
om

m
s 

M
an

ag
er

Ap
r-0

5
C

on
tin

uo
us

 p
ro

ce
ss

. B
M

E 
ho

us
in

g 
co

nf
er

en
ce

 - 
SP

 to
 fe

at
ur

e.
 U

se
r C

ar
er

 
Fo

ru
m

 b
oo

ke
d

In
su

ffi
ci

en
t d

at
a

C
om

m
s 

St
ra

te
gy

R
ai

se
 p

ro
fil

e 
of

 S
P 

th
ro

ug
h 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
s,

 u
se

r a
nd

 c
ar

er
 

fo
ru

m
s 

an
d 

m
em

be
r r

pt
s

SP
 M

gr
Ap

r-0
5

St
af

f a
tte

nd
in

g 
fo

ru
m

s 
as

 th
ey

 o
cc

ur
. S

P 
M

gr
 m

ee
tin

g 
w

ith
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

Pr
of

ile
 n

ot
 p

er
ce

iv
ed

 a
s 

ra
is

ed
C

om
m

s 
St

ra
te

gy
R

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

of
 p

ro
gr

es
s

C
om

m
un

ic
at

e 
SP

 d
el

iv
er

y 
pl

an
 a

s 
ag

en
da

 it
em

 in
 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
m

ee
tin

gs
H

ea
d 

of
 A

du
lt 

Se
rv

ic
e

Fe
b-

05
C

om
m

un
ic

at
ed

 in
 C

B 
an

d 
C

SG
D

el
iv

er
y 

pl
an

 n
ot

 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
ed

C
om

m
s 

St
ra

te
gy

. C
llr

 G
ed

de
s 

as
 

M
em

be
r C

ha
m

pi
on

 a
nd

 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 u
pd

at
e 

of
 p

la
n 

to
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 q
ua

rte
rly

 
SP

 M
gr

Ap
r-0

5
M

on
ito

re
d 

at
 P

ro
je

ct
 T

ea
m

 a
nd

 C
B

D
el

iv
er

y 
pl

an
 s

lip
s

M
on

ito
re

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
C

M
G

 a
nd

 C
B

Q
ua

rte
rly

 re
vi

ew
 o

f p
la

n
H

ea
d 

of
 A

du
lt 

Se
rv

ic
e

Ap
r-0

5
Fi

rs
t r

ev
ie

w
 d

ue
 in

 M
ay

Sl
ip

pa
ge

M
on

ito
re

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
C

M
G

 a
nd

 C
B

An
nu

al
 re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t
SP

 M
gr

 / 
C

B
Ja

n-
06

To
 b

e 
tim

et
ab

le
d

Sl
ip

pa
ge

M
on

ito
re

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
C

M
G

 a
nd

 C
B

Ke
y 

to
 s

ta
tu

s 
ba

r

W
or

k 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

du
e 

da
te

 w
ith

 e
vi

de
nc

e

W
or

k 
in

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
to

 m
ee

t d
ue

 d
at

e 
on

 ti
m

e
W

or
k 

no
t c

om
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

du
e 

da
te

 o
r s

er
io

us
 c

on
ce

rn
s 

ab
ou

t m
ee

tin
g 

du
e 

da
te

17
/0

6/
05

D
SS

An
na

W
at

ki
ns

Su
pp

or
tin

gP
eo

pl
eA

pp
en

di
x1

Su
pp

or
tin

gP
eo

pl
eD

el
iv

er
ya

nd
Im

pr
ov

em
en

tP
la

nM
on

ito
rin

gF
or

m
0.

xl
s

Page 84



Supporting People Manager

Performance and
Business Manager Quality Manager

Supporting People
Officer Supporting People

OfficerAdministrative Post

Contracts Officer

26/05/2005

Supporting People Staff Team

Contracts
Department

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 85



Page 86

This page is intentionally left blank



 1

 
 
ODPM Supporting People Visit to the London Borough of Barking and 
Dagenham 
 
CONTEXT 
 
This visit was undertaken as part of ODPMs support and advice for LB Barking and Dagenham’s following a 
recent Audit Commission inspection, which had assessed the service as poor, with uncertain prospects for 
improvement. Work is now beginning to address the Audit Commission’s recommendations and to move the 
programme forward.   Considerable catch-up work is required and the existing SP team has only been in place for 
a number of weeks.  The purpose of the visit was to explore:  
 

• The current situation in terms of service reviews 
• Areas where the Barking and Dagenham SP team may benefit from further support 

 
Date of visit:    27th April 05. 
ODPM representative: Kate McAllister (specialist consultant) 
Interviewees: Nicola McBride Supporting People Lead Officer Plus SP team 
 
FINDINGS  
 
1. STAFFING AND TEAM 
 
Existing Team 
 
The lead officer has been in post for 2 months.  She has a temporary contract and is in the process of assisting 
the Authority to appoint a permanent replacement.  The team currently consists of one Admin Officer (full-time), 
who had been in post in post for one week at the time of the visit.  There is also a full-time Review Officer, who 
had been in post for 2 ½ weeks, together with a full-time secretary.  All staff have been appointed via temporary 
agency contracts.  The Review Officer and Admin Officer have previous Supporting People experience at provider 
level, but the SPLO does not. 
 
Cordis Bright consultants are also currently temporarily involved on a 4-day per week basis.  They have been 
asked to validate 17 service reviews which were carried out by the previous Supporting People team.  
 
The intention is to recruit a permanent lead officer as soon as possible.  The new post holder can then decide the 
long-term structure of the department, within the resources available. 
 
However a decision has already been made to recruit a dedicated contracts officer, who will develop a steady 
state contract and produce service specifications following review.   
 
Recommendation:  This post should be integrated into the wider Administering Authority contracting and 
commissioning functions as fully as possible.  This should form part of longer-term plans to “mainstream” 
Supporting People and associated activities.  
Recruitment of permanent SPLO 
 
This is still in progress - working its way through internal channels.   
 
The existing SPLO has some concerns that the post is not being recruited at the correct level (Current salary scale 
PO6).  The ideal post holder should have experience of the Supporting People programme and be able to raise 

Page 87



 2

the profile of the programme significantly both internally and externally. It is imperative that a permanent lead 
officer is put in place as a matter of urgency.  
 
2. SPLS 
Barking and Dagenham are using Annite Swift and are about to go on to version 18/19.  There is currently little or 
no knowledge within the team about SPLS and training is planned. 
 
Recommendation:  Training should be arranged for the team as a priority.   The SP team should contact Jon 
Boland who leads on the SPLS at ODPM on 020 7944 2935   
3. MONEY 
 
Funding 
 
There will be a considerable under-spend against the Supporting People Grant by year end, unless needs are 
analysed and appropriate new services developed during the course of the year.   
 
The Supporting People admin budget is however likely to be over-spent - partly because the current team consists 
entirely of agency staff.  Further corporate support will be required to sustain the administrative cost of the 
programme during this financial year.  The Authority has already agreed to allocate a full time contracts officer to 
the team as mentioned above.  However further resources may well be needed in terms of additional review officer 
time if the reviews are to be completed by the ODPM deadline.  See the section below on progress with reviews.   
 
It is critical that a needs analysis is completed so that funding can be appropriately directed to new provision within 
the borough as there is no guarantee that ODPM will be operating an end of year flexibility for the SP funding for 
2005/06 
Payment process 
 
All in order and working well -as far as the team is aware at this stage. 
 
Fairer charging 
 
In place but under-developed. Only 2 applications have been received to date.  Further promotion is required at a 
corporate level. 
 
4. 5-YEAR STRATEGY 
 
ODPM have extended the deadline for submission until 30 June 05.  Feedback on the draft strategic priorities has 
already been obtained from providers and key stakeholders.  However, existing data is limited.  There has been 
no adequate needs assessment to date and very little work to analyse existing supply.  Therefore the strategy to 
be submitted in June will need considerable further development once all necessary data has been collected. 
 
Supply analysis 
Current priorities for the 5-year strategy include the following groups - mental health, offenders, homeless people, 
and domestic violence.   
 
There appears to be under-provision in respect of all these groups - although the team does not have a 
comprehensive overview of current supply - given their short period of time in post and the lack of other relevant 
data. . 
 
Needs analysis 
Commissioning of a needs assessment is an urgent priority.  The team is however already aware that the existing 
provider market is seriously under-developed and that there is a huge local unmet need for Supporting People 
services. 
 
Recommendation:  A comprehensive needs analysis, taking into account the needs of every relevant sector of 
the community, needs to be commissioned as soon as possible and the results fed into the 5-year strategy. (It is 

Page 88



 3

appreciated however that this data will not be available in time to include in the version being presented to ODPM 
in June 05.) 
 
5. CONTRACTING 
 
Interim contracts 
There are 42 contracts in total.  The team are not yet sure how many providers there are within the Borough, or of 
the split between internal and external providers.  This data was due to be collated by 29/4/05. 
 
Steady state contracts 
The SPLO is currently gathering examples of good practice and requested further information from ODPM.   
 
Recommendation:  ODPM can provide details of Administering Authorities with steady state contracts in place 
but cannot recommend any in terms of good practice.  It is up to Barking and Dagenham to decide which, if any, 
best suit their needs and to obtain clearance from their internal legal department before adoption.   
 
6. SERVICE REVIEW PROGRESS 
 
Progress with reviews 
Approximately 17 reviews have been completed to date.  There are however some concerns about the 
comprehensiveness and appropriateness of the methodology used by the previous team. 
 
Cordis Bright is therefore currently carrying out validation checks in respect of all reviews to date.  A report will be 
available by 23 May 05 to submit to the Commissioning Body. 
 
25 reviews have not yet started at all. 
 
There are therefore potentially between 25 and 42 reviews to complete.  With a total of one review officer in post 
and 10 months to go before ODPM's March 06 deadline, there would not appear to be sufficient resources in place 
to complete this task given that a reasonable ratio of reviews for an experienced review officer is 6 (at any one 
time) – with average of 3 months from start to completion of each review.   
 
The example below shows how to use the above average figures to obtain an idea of whether the Authority stands 
a realistic chance of completing the review programme within the ODPM deadline. 
 
Estimate of possible delays in review programme 
 
 Current position Position with additional 

resources in place 
Number of services still to be 
reviewed 

25 - 42 25 - 42 

Number of Fte Review Officers  1 2 
Reasonable Review officer case-
load per quarter 

6 6 

Number of quarters remaining 
between June 05 and April 06 

3 3 

Number of reviews feasible by April 
06 deadline (Review officer case-
load per quarter x remaining 
quarters) x number of review 
officers 

18 36 

Number of reviews likely to be 
still outstanding by April 06 (25 
or 42 minus 18 or 36) 

7 - 24 0 - 8 

 
 

Page 89



 4

Recommendation:   The results of the Cordis Bright validation exercise should be analysed to determine the 
extent of additional work required in respect of the 17 reviews carried out to date.  This will help to determine the 
scope of the task ahead.   
 
Extra resources are likely to be required in any case.  The extent of these will be more easily determined once all 
relevant data is available. 
 
Review timetable 
 
A revised review timetable is being presented to the CB on 23 May 05.  This will prioritise high risk services.   
 
Recommendation:  We discussed using the review programme to help the Authority to release revenue in order 
to achieve 5-year strategic aims, whilst still targeting high-risk services for an early review.   
 
PI reports 
 
No PI data has been provided by internal providers to date.  The admin officer intends to provide training for 
internal providers and to ensure that comprehensive data for both external and internal providers is available by 
the deadline for the next ODPM data extract 
 
Recommendation:  Comprehensive PI reports including data from both internal and external providers should be 
available in time for the next ODPM data extract.  This information should also be regularly reported to the CB as 
part of standard performance monitoring. 
 
Service Review methodology 
 
The review methodology will be presented to the CB on 23 May.  The methodology was reviewed by Kate 
McAllister following the visit and the following recommendations are made: 
 

• Insert details of the rationale behind the revised service review programme for 05/06. (I.e. that services 
perceived to present a risk be prioritised for an early review.) 

• Change the heading under stage 4 of the service review process to read “decision” rather than 
“Outcome”, wherever the 4 stages of the review process are referred to. 

• Consider removing the reference to a 2nd Review Officer being involved in reviews as standard, since 
the current establishment consists of only one officer. 

• Include reference to the need to interview service users as part of standard validation visits. 
• Separate references to contract negotiations and implementation into a new section entitled 

commissioning and procurement 
. 
7. ELIGIBILITY AND VALUE FOR MONEY 
 Barking and Dagenham have based their approach to value for money and eligibility on that of another 
Administering Authority.  They have set parameters in respect of value for money, in line with the approach 
outlined in recently published ODPM best practice guidance.  There are two versions of the eligibility policy – a 
“short guide” and the full policy.  Both were presented to the CB in April 05 and then circulated to providers. 

Both documents were reviewed following the visit – and the following recommendations are made: 

Short version 

• Include a reference to general social support as well as personal care in the section which defines 
eligibility. 

• Ancillary services – include the definition of acceptable parameters which appears in the full version. 

• Consider re-wording the reference in the flow chart re specific and identifiable vulnerabilities.  The 
current version implies that anyone who cannot demonstrate the above is ineligible for SP grant.  Many 
individuals entering sheltered housing do not receive an initial needs assessment before they take up 
the tenancy, so their vulnerabilities would not be known at service entry point. 

 

 

Page 90



 5

Full version 

• Consider re-wording Section 4 – focus on housing.  This section currently states that “independence in 
housing can be defined as accommodation where the user has an “interest” in the property (through a 
tenancy or ownership) with all the rights and responsibilities that flow from that, and the maximum 
degree of control over their living environment and who they share it with.  In order to maintain 
independence they need to be able to: 

o Pay their rent 

o Fulfil other responsibilities inherent in a tenancy or owner occupation etc 

Some recipients of Supporting People grant may be hostel dwellers with little interest in the 
accommodation bar a bare licence, and/or may be living in a womens refuge.  The current definition 
makes no reference to people in these circumstances, who are legitimately entitled to access Supporting 
People funding. 

A form of words used by a number of other Administering Authorities, which is less prescriptive, was forwarded to 
the SPLO for information. 

 Training on eligibility 
A training day for the SPLO and her team on eligibility has been arranged for 31 May 05. 

8. PROCUREMENT AND COMMISSIONING 
As mentioned above, funding has been made available by the wider Authority for a dedicated contracts officer who 
will have responsibility for the procurement and commissioning of Supporting People funded services. 
 
9. COMMISSIONING BODY 
 
Memorandum of understanding 
 
There is currently no memorandum of understanding.  However a revised terms of reference for the CB are 
currently being re-drafted and are due to be presented to the CB on 23/5/05 

Terms of reference for the CSCG and provider forum were approved by the CB on 8/4/05 
 
Recommendation: 
A Memorandum of Understanding needs to be drawn up and presented to the CB as a matter of urgency. 

10. USER INVOLVEMENT 
 
A draft user consultation strategy is being drawn up.  The overall aim is to make contact with each existing user 
forum.  Little progress has been made to date in this area.  In the past, the onus had been on the providers to 
consult - obtain feedback etc.  The new team intends to be much more proactive. 
 
Supporting People will also have a slot at the BME elders conference in August 05.  Discussions are already 
underway with BME elders about sheltered housing provision.  Data gathered to date will be fed into the 5-year 
strategy. 
 
11. INCLUSIVE FORUM  
 
There are no immediate plans to develop an inclusive forum.  Instead, the team intend to tap into existing client 
specific fora in order to discuss current strategic needs etc 
  
12. ENGAGING WITH STAKEHOLDERS 
 
Provider forum 
 
There is a provider forum, attended by senior staff of external providers.  Internal providers have now started to 
attend - but internal representatives may not be at a sufficiently senior level.  The SPLO will address this as part of 
an overall effort to raise the profile of internal providers.   
 

Page 91



 6

The internal communications manager does however attend the core strategy group. 
   
Provider Training 
 
Sitra are currently providing training for providers on support planning.  They have also been engaged to provide 
the SP team with an overview of the Supporting People programme.  The SPLO is also discussing with them the 
option of an ongoing training programme for providers, with an emphasis on overall service outcomes, rather than 
process alone. 
 
Overall, provider understanding of the requirements of the Quality Assessment Framework is good.  A number of 
QAF self-assessments have already been submitted - and appear to have been completed quite competently.  
Further training on the review process will be targeted at locally-based smaller providers. 
 
13. RISK 
 
A risk strategy is being presented to the next CB.  This will include a risk log for the programme. 
 
Individual service risk is assessed as part of the review programme and there is a section covering risk in the 
review methodology. 
 
The team intend to arrange training for smaller providers on risk. 
 
14. COMMUNICATION 
 
The previous SP team used to issue quarterly newsletters to providers.  The current team intend to reinstate this 
practice as soon as practically possible. 
 
They also intend to produce leaflets for service users. 
 
15. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
A summary of the key recommendations included within the body of the report is set out below: 
 
Recommendation:  Additional contracts officer.   This post should be integrated into the wider Administering 
Authority contracting and commissioning functions as fully as possible.  This should form part of longer-term plans 
to “mainstream” Supporting People and associated activities. 
 
Recommendation:  SPLS.  Training should be arranged for the team as a priority.  Please contact Jon Boland at 
OPDM  
 
Recommendation:  Needs analysis.  A comprehensive needs analysis, taking into account the needs of every 
relevant sector of the community, needs to be commissioned as soon as possible and the results fed into the 5-
year strategy. (It is appreciated however that this data will not be available in time to include in the version being 
presented to ODPM in June 05.) 
 
Recommendation:  Steady state contracts.  ODPM can provide details of Administering Authorities with steady 
state contracts in place but cannot recommend any in terms of good practice.  It is up to Barking and Dagenham 
to decide which, if any, best suit their needs and to obtain clearance from their internal legal department before 
adoption.   
 
Recommendation:   Review programme.  The results of the Cordis Bright validation exercise should be 
analysed to determine the extent of additional work required in respect of the 17 reviews carried out to date.  This 
will help to determine the scope of the task ahead.   
 
Extra resources are likely to be required in any case.  The extent of these will be more easily determined once all 
relevant data is available. 
 

Page 92



 7

Recommendation:  PI’s.  Comprehensive PI reports including data from both internal and external providers 
should be available in time for the next ODPM data extract.  This information should also be regularly reported to 
the CB as part of standard performance monitoring. 
 
Recommendation: Service Review methodology.  
 

• Insert details of the rationale behind the revised service review programme for 05/06. (I.e. that services 
perceived to present a risk be prioritised for an early review.) 

• Change the heading under stage 4 of the service review process to read “decision” rather than 
“Outcome”, wherever the 4 stages of the review process are referred to. 

• Consider removing the reference to a 2nd Review Officer being involved in reviews as standard, since 
the current establishment consists of only one officer. 

• Include reference to the need to interview service users as part of standard validation visits. 
• Separate references to contract negotiations and implementation into a new section entitled 

commissioning and procurement 
 
Recommendation: Eligibility policy  
 
Short version 

• Include a reference to general social support as well as personal care in the section which defines 
eligibility. 

• Ancillary services – include the definition of acceptable parameters which appears in the full version. 

• Consider re-wording the reference in the flow chart re specific and identifiable vulnerabilities.  The 
current version implies that anyone who cannot demonstrate the above is ineligible for SP grant.  Many 
individuals entering sheltered housing do not receive an initial needs assessment before they take up 
the tenancy, so their vulnerabilities would not be known at service entry point. 

Full version 

• Consider re-wording Section 4 – focus on housing.  This section currently states that “independence in 
housing can be defined as accommodation where the user has an “interest” in the property (through a 
tenancy or ownership) with all the rights and responsibilities that flow from that, and the maximum 
degree of control over their living environment and who they share it with.  In order to maintain 
independence they need to be able to: 

o Pay their rent 

o Fulfil other responsibilities inherent in a tenancy or owner occupation etc 

Some recipients of Supporting People grant may be hostel dwellers with little interest in the 
accommodation bar a bare licence, or may be living in a womens refuge.  The current definition makes 
no reference to people in these circumstances, who are legitimately entitled to access Supporting 
People funding. 

Training on eligibility.   A training day for the SPLO and her team on eligibility has been arranged for 31 May 05. 

Recommendation: Commissioning Body.  A Memorandum of Understanding needs to be drawn up and 
presented to the CB as a matter of urgency  

 

It is also clear that the SP programme needs to have a greater priority at a corporate level. Without such corporate 
buy-in to the programme it will be difficult for the SP team to make the necessary changes required before the 
Audit Commission re inspect in 12/18 months time.  

Page 93



Page 94

This page is intentionally left blank



THE EXECUTIVE 
 

14 JUNE 2005 
 

REPORT FROM THE DIRECTOR OF REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT 
 

BARKING AND DAGENHAM SUSTAINABLE ENERGY 
STRATEGY 
 

FOR DECISION 

This report is presented to the Executive for the adoption of the Sustainable Energy 
Strategy as a corporate strategy and support the establishment of an Energy Strategy 
Steering Group. 
 
Summary 
 
The Barking and Dagenham Sustainable Energy Strategy (Appendix A) aims to reduce the 
Borough’s climate change impact.  It is a corporate strategy with cross-cutting policies 
influencing most departments.  Due to the importance of climate change, it has the 
potential to become a high profile strategy for the Council. 
 
The Strategy contains policies to promote energy efficiency and renewable energy in 
existing buildings and in new buildings and the regeneration of the Borough.  The Strategy 
has eight Strategic Objectives, forty three policies and fifty six actions. 
 
The Implementation Plan (Appendix B) will be taken forward by the Energy Strategy 
Steering Group and it provides an indication of the resource implications of the Strategy, 
but detailed assessments will need to be compiled for each policy by the council section 
responsible for its implementation.  
 
Any additional funding required to implement the Strategy will be subject to either the 
capital bid process or the 2006/07 revenue budget process.  There are also substantial 
external funding pots available for implementing this Strategy. 
 
The Council ‘leading by example’ is a vital component of this Strategy – core to this will be 
an ‘invest to save’ approach to improving the energy efficiency of council buildings. 
 
Key climate change initiatives are brought together in this Strategy, such as improving the 
energy performance of housing, implementing the London Plan’s energy policies and the 
Mayor’s policy for a ‘zero carbon’ development in every borough. 
 
The Greater London Authority (GLA) has also chosen Barking Town Centre to be one of 
only five ‘Energy Action Areas’ in London to act as ‘showcase low carbon communities’. 
This will involve the Council working with the GLA and other key regeneration partners to 
ensure that sustainable energy technologies are an integral part of the regeneration of the 
town centre. 
 
Corporate endorsement of the Strategy will help boost its profile and give its policies a 
higher priority.  Having the Strategy in place will significantly increase the Council’s 
chances of obtaining external funding. 
 
Wards Affected - All. 
 

AGENDA ITEM 10

Page 95



 
Recommendations 
 
The Executive is recommended to:  
 
1. Adopt the Sustainable Energy Strategy as a corporate strategy;  
 
2. Support the establishment of an Energy Strategy Steering Group to oversee the 

implementation and monitoring of the Strategy;  
 
3. Endorse Barking Town Centre as an ‘Energy Action Area’ to be taken forward in 

partnership with the Greater London Authority; and 
 
4. Note that any additional funding required to deliver the Strategy will be subject to either 

the capital bid process or the 2006/07 revenue budget process.  
 
Reason 
 
This Strategy directly contributes to the following Community Priorities  
 
• Making Barking and Dagenham Cleaner, Greener and Safer 
• Improving Health, Housing and Social Care 
• Regenerating the Local Economy 
• Raising General Pride in the Borough 
 
Contact 
Gordon Glenday 

 
Sustainable 
Development Group 
Manager 

Tel: 020 8227 3929 
Fax: 020 8227 3774 
Minicom: 020 8227 3034 
E-mail: gordon.glenday@lbbd.gov.uk 
 

 
1. Background 
 
1.1 The Cleaner, Greener and Safer sub-group of the Barking and Dagenham 

Partnership has requested a climate change and energy strategy for the Borough.  
The Council signed the Nottingham Declaration on Climate Change in July 2001 
which commits the Council to prepare a strategy to reduce energy consumption 
and carbon dioxide emissions.  

 
1.2 In addition, the Mayor of London published his Energy Strategy in 2004 which 

outlines policies for reducing London’s carbon dioxide emissions; this Barking and 
Dagenham Energy Strategy aims to implement these policies.    

 
1.3 The first draft of this Sustainable Energy Strategy was produced in 2002 but due to 

the extensive work required in its development and its cross-cutting nature it failed 
to progress.  It has been taken forward by the Environmental Sustainability Team 
over the last eight months so as to provide a strategic framework for addressing 
carbon dioxide emissions across the Borough.  This Energy Strategy closely 
follows the Mayor of London’s Energy Strategy and it aims to implement national 
and regional climate change policy at the local level.   
 

Page 96



1.4 The Sustainable Energy Strategy contributes directly to four of the Community 
Priorities:  
 
• Making Barking and Dagenham Cleaner, Greener and Safer – through 

addressing a key environmental issue;  
• Improving Health, Housing and Social Care – addressing fuel poverty is 

important in improving health, housing and quality of life;  
• Regenerating the Local Economy – sustainable energy is a growing business 

area; and, 
• Raising General Pride in the Borough – a greener Borough and more eco-

friendly buildings like the Millennium Centre will contribute to the pride within 
the Borough. 

 
1.5 This is an ambitious long-term strategy for a ‘low carbon’ Borough which aims to 

address all carbon dioxide emissions in the Borough, including those from the 
Council’s own activities, housing, business and transport.  

 
1.6 Implementation will be overseen by the Energy Strategy Steering Group which will 

meet quarterly.  The Strategy is being led by the Sustainable Development Group 
in the Department of Regeneration and Environment, and has been written in 
conjunction with Transportation, Asset Management, Regeneration, Economic 
Development and also with the Housing and Education departments.  Policies and 
actions fall on all these sections of the Council.  

 
1.7 The Sustainable Energy Strategy is attached as Appendix A and the 

Implementation Plan is attached as Appendix B.  As the Energy Strategy Steering 
Group will be responsible for implementing the Implementation Plan, the timetable 
of the Plan is provisional at this stage. 

 
2. Proposal 
 
2.1 The Borough needs a sustainable energy strategy to provide a local response to 

climate change.  Many other local authorities have had a climate change strategy 
in place for some time however; few councils have a strategy as comprehensive 
and cross-cutting as this one.  In order to be successful the Sustainable Energy 
Strategy requires a high profile status and those Officers responsible for its 
implementation will need the space (time and resources) to implement its policies 
and actions.   

 
Risk Assessment 

 
2.2 Climate change and energy issues are growing in importance at the international, 

national and regional level and will therefore continue to grow in importance for 
local authorities.  This Sustainable Energy Strategy will enable the London 
Borough of Barking and Dagenham to take forward climate change solutions, 
energy efficiency and renewable energy.  This will better prepare the Council for 
future responsibilities and duties in this important area.  The risks to the Council of 
failing to take a strategic and high priority approach to energy efficiency and 
renewable energy are high.  
 

Page 97



2.3 The Sustainable Energy Strategy has ambitious objectives and there is also the 
risk of the council failing to live up to expectations following the adoption and 
launch of this strategy.  To manage this risk, the Sustainable Development Group 
will Chair the Energy Strategy Steering Group and report annually to the Executive 
on the implementation of the Strategy.  

 
 Approach 
 
2.4 The coordination of the Energy Strategy is led by the Sustainable Development 

Group within the Planning Division and is a component of the Balanced Scorecard.  
The policies related to regeneration, housing and other areas will need to be a 
component of their Balanced Scorecards – the Energy Strategy’s Implementation 
Plan outlines who is responsible for implementing each policy.   

 
 Impact on Local Economy 
 
2.5 The Energy Strategy could have many positive impacts on the local economy by 

encouraging environmental business and activities.  Energy efficiency and 
renewable energy are growth businesses and incorporating these features within 
the regeneration of the Borough will have many benefits for the London Borough 
of Barking and Dagenham. 

 
Environmental issues and impact 

2.6 The Sustainable Energy Strategy specifically aims to address the Borough’s 
climate change impact and therefore has a very positive environmental impact.   

 
3. Financial Implications  

 
Capital Issues 

 
3.1 Policy 2A in the Sustainable Energy Strategy states that the Council will improve 

the energy efficiency of council buildings through an ‘invest to save’ scheme. 
Actions 2A (i) and 2A (ii) involve developing the invest-to-save business plan later 
in 2005.  Although ‘invest to save’ schemes can take a variety of different 
approaches they require some level of up-front investment.  The level of the initial 
investment can be determined by the Council based on projected reduced running 
costs.  The proposal for an ‘invest-to-save’ energy efficiency scheme will be taken 
to the CMT later in the year. 
 

3.2 There are numerous good examples of local authorities implementing ‘invest to 
save’ energy efficiency programmes in their building stock.  Through investing 
£200k a year, Redbridge Council has made a net saving of £1.04 million over the 
last 15 years.  Through implementing a similar programme Woking Council has 
delivered fuel bill savings of £4.7 million over the past 10 years with annual 
savings of £700,000 a year; all from an initial investment of £250k.  Woking 
Council ring-fenced all fuel bill savings resulting from their efficiency investments 
and continue to invest this money in efficiency measures. 
 

3.3 Energy and water surveys undertaken by consultants Advanced Demand Side 
Management Ltd (ADSM) for a number of council buildings in 2002 identified 
efficiency measures that could deliver annual fuel bill savings of £8.5k for the 
Town Hall and £20k for Barking library.   

Page 98



 
3.4 Implementing the Decent Homes standard across the Council’s housing stock up 

to 2010 will require all available housing capital funding.  However, external 
funding is available for special energy efficiency projects that improve social 
housing energy performance beyond Decent Home standards.  Housing and 
Health will need to allocate Officer time to considering these alternative options for 
funding innovative energy efficiency measures. 
 
Policy Issue for Capital Spending in the Council 

 
3.5 The Sustainable Energy Strategy has many implications for the Capital 

Programme in terms of environmental standards for purchasing and construction/ 
refurbishment projects. The ‘Council Leading by Example’ section of the Strategy 
requires the Council to follow best practice in purchasing energy efficient 
equipment and energy efficient design in refurbishments and ‘new build’.  This will 
require changes in the criteria for successful projects, currently there is no 
provision within the Capital programme for sustainable energy projects and any 
future bids for resources will need to be considered as part of the overall review of 
Capital schemes. 
 
Revenue Issues 

 
3.6 The exact nature of the resource costs and revenue issues associated with 

implementing each of the policies and actions in the Strategy need to be 
determined by the sections responsible for their implementation.  These resource 
issues will become more apparent once the Energy Strategy Steering Group is 
established to oversee the Strategy’s implementation.  Nonetheless, the attached 
Implementation Plan provides an initial assessment of the resource implications of 
each policy.  
 

3.7 Key resource implications associated with the implementation of the Sustainable 
Energy Strategy could include; 
 
• energy efficiency ‘invest to save’ programme for council buildings – most likely 

to be sourced from Capital Funding; 
• energy efficiency programme for the Borough’s schools – could require an 

Officer to promote energy efficiency to the Borough’s schools; 
• social and private housing energy efficiency programmes – funding might be 

required to commission study into scope for improving the energy performance 
of the Borough’s housing; 

• energy / carbon assessments for key regeneration sites – a study is already 
taking place into a sustainable energy strategy for Barking town centre’s 
regeneration; 

• preparing business plan and set-up costs for an Energy Services Company 
(ESCo) – although external funding could be available for this. 

 
3.8 There are numerous sources of external funding that are available for delivering 

this Sustainable Energy Strategy, these are listed at the back of the Strategy 
document.  However, accessing this external funding will require effort, and will 
often only be available once the Council has put in the groundwork to improve 
eligibility. This Sustainable Energy Strategy provides the Council with the context 
and background to successfully apply for external funding.  If revenue resources 

Page 99



are required to promote sustainable energy schemes these bids will need to be 
considered as part of the 2006/07 budget process. 

 
4. Staffing Implications 
 
4.1 These will also become clearer following the establishment of the Energy Strategy 

Steering Group and once each responsible section begins implementing their 
policies and actions.  There may be staffing implications for the following key 
policy areas: 
 
• Implementing a best practice energy management programme across council 

property. 
•  Running an energy efficiency scheme with the Borough’s schools.  
• Increasing energy efficiency activity with regard to the Borough’s housing. 

 
5. Consultation  
 

The following people have seen this report and have either raised no objection or 
have confirmed that they are happy with this report as it stands. 

 
Internal: 
Councillor McKenzie, Environment and Sustainability Portfolio 
Councillor Smith, Housing and Public Health Portfolio 
Councillor Kallar, Regeneration Portfolio 
 
Regeneration Board – 30 November 2004 
 
Regeneration and Environment 
Jim Mack, Head of Asset Management & Development 
Keith Stubbs, Energy Conservation Officer,  
David Higham, Group Manager Strategic Transportation,  
David Harley, Principle Regeneration Officer,  
Rob Shooter, Group Manager, Regeneration Implementation,  
Robert Farley, Team Leader Planning Policy,  
Steve Jones, Street Lighting Manager,  
Colin Reynolds, Assistant Manager-Fleet, 
David Waller, Interim Head of Finance, 
 
Housing and Health 
Dan Read, Private Sector Housing Manager,  
Isabella Rossi, Project Manager-Housing Strategy,  
Ken Lyons, Acting Capital Works Manager,  
Ken Jones, Head of Housing Strategy,  
David Woods, Director of Housing & Health 
 
Education, Arts and Libraries 
Andy Carr, Assets Manager,  
 
Corporate Strategy 
Muhammad Saleem, Solicitor to the Council & Monitoring Officer 
Paul Feild, Corporate Lawyer  
 

Page 100



External: 
Joanna Dawes, Principal Policy Advisor-Energy, Greater London Authority 
Penny Bramwell, Head of Sustainable Development Unit, Government Office for 
London 
 

Background Papers  
 

• The Sustainable Energy Strategy  
• Implementation Plan 
• Mayor of London’s Energy Strategy, Green Light to Clean Power’, February 

2004 – www.london.gov.uk/mayor/environment/energy/index.jsp 
• UK Government Energy Policy, ‘Our Energy Future – Creating a Low Carbon 

Economy’, February 2003 – www.dit.gov.uk/energy/whitepaper/index.shtml 

Page 101



Page 102

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 14

Page 103

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7, 8 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 108

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 109

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7, 8 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 110

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 15

Page 111

By virtue of paragraph(s) 8 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 116

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 16

Page 117

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7, 8, 9 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 124

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 17

Page 125

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7, 9 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 144

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 18

Page 145

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7, 9 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 148

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 19

Page 149

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7, 9 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 152

This page is intentionally left blank


